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Summary

The Glimmerglass Historic District is a 15,000-acre cultural landscape in the northeastern
corner of Otsego County, New York. The district includes portions of three towns—Otsego,
Springfield, Middlefield—and the entire village of Cooperstown.

The district encompasses the physical and social sphere of Otsego Lake—a long, narrow
glacial lake—and its immediate environs, generally defined by the ridgelines that frame the lake on
all sides. Because the natural boundaries of this district are so dramatic and definitive, remarkable
consistency characterizes the social, functional, and artistic definitions of the area included in the
district over a two-hundred year period. Likewise, the distinctive physical character of this
landscape inspired its use for purposes related to the significant themes recognized in this
nomination and helped to contain these uses within a well-recognized natural boundary.

The district landscape is generally characterized by its dominant features: the long, narrow
lake itself; ridges rising more or less abruptly on its longer east and west shores; and lower, rolling
hillsides enclosing the broader, flatter land at the head and foot of Otsego Lake. Certain natural
features serve as visual points of reference. These include the Susquehanna River, flowing south
out of the district from the foot of the lake; Mount Vision, rising just east of the river; and Mount
Wellington (locally known as Sleeping Lion for its shape), the elongated 600-foot hill near the
north end of the lake.

Within the district, patterns of development generally correspond to the conditions of its
topography: the lower and more gradual slopes on the west side of the lake show evidence of
agricultural use and retain considerable amounts of cleared, open land; the much steeper ridge
along the east shore, though once cleared for logging, has reverted back to its settlement era
forested state; the low-lying lakeside land at the north end was also used for agriculture; while the
broad, level site that commands a view of the entire district from the foot of the lake is the site of
the large village of Cooperstown.

The lake shore and surrounding hillsides are developed with a variety of built features that
illustrate human activity in the district over a period of more than two hundred years, c1785-1949.
Perhaps most prominent is the densely settled village of Cooperstown, with its wealth of
residential, commercial, civic, resort, and religious buildings. Nineteenth-century agricultural
activity is illustrated by surviving farmsteads on the western slopes, while earlier farm buildings
adapted for use as estates in the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries can be found
primarily along the lakeshore in the west, north, and northwestern parts of the district.
Recreational features from the late nineteenth century were established both along the lower
hillsides and on the immediate lakeshore. Other features that mark the recreational use of the
district, such as docks, boathouses, trails, monuments, designed gardens, scenic viewpoints,
commemorative features and museums are scattered in appropriate locations throughout the
district.
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The Glimmerglass Historic District includes 1475 contributing features. Of these, 540 were
previously listed on the register. Previously listed resources include the Cooperstown Historic
District, the Cooperstown Post Office, Hyde Hall, and the Hyde Hall Covered Bridge. Both the
post office and the covered bridge were identified and listed individually as part of statewide
thematic resources surveys. Although they are included within the boundary of the new district,
primary documentation for each of them is on file separately.

The Cooperstown Historic District was first listed on the National Register in 1980. In 1988,
the Cooperstown Post Office (within the district boundary but non-contributing due to age) was
listed on the register individually as part of United States Post Offices in New York State, 1858-
1943. In 1992, the district's period of significance was expanded and an additional twenty-four
resources (including the listed post office) were reevaluated as contributing. In 1997, the district
boundary was slightly expanded to include several estate support buildings that had been
inadvertently excluded from the original district.

The Glimmerglass Historic District encompasses all properties in Cooperstown previously
listed on the register and takes in additional areas of the village that had not previously been
listed. In order to create the most accurate record of National Register listed properties in
Cooperstown, this nomination encompasses and replaces the documentation for the previously
listed district. As such, the individual property descriptions for the original district have been
updated and incorporated into the list for this nomination. In noting the status of previously listed
resources as contributing or non-contributing, the updated list takes into consideration any
substantive changes in integrity and the more expansive period of significance documented for the
new district. All previously listed resources are identified with an * in the annotated property list.

Hyde Hall is the main house of an early nineteenth century estate. It and some of its
historic outbuildings are now within Glimmerglass State Park. This park was developed on some
of the original estate land, which was reconfigured to accommodate contemporary recreation.
Hyde Hall was originally listed on the National Register in 1971. This nomination included only
the estate house itself. In 1985, Hyde Hall was declared a National Historic Landmark. The NHL
nomination discussed only the estate house and included no list of contributing resources. In the
map accompanying the NHL nomination, however, the boundary was drawn to include the
carriage house, gate house, family burial ground, a reservoir, and the immediate landscape around
the house. Because the status of these features was unclear, this nomination counts these support
features as new contributing components, along with several estate-related properties outside of
the park boundaries. The Hyde Hall Covered Bridge is also part of the original Clark estate. The
bridge, located in another area of the state park, was listed individually in 1998 as an example of a
covered bridge type.
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Natural Features

The visible landscape of the Glimmerglass Historic District bears the evidence of four main
geological events. The first was the laying down of limestone sediments in an aerobic shallow sea
environment during the Devonian period 350 million years ago. These were later overlain by
acidic black silts in a still, anaerobic deep sea environment, which were compressed into shale.
Both layers were then uplifted in a massive orogeny and, finally, carved into long, narrow valleys
by retreating glaciers between 50,000 and 60,000 years ago. In the Allegheny Plateau region,
which includes northern Otsego County, these valleys run north-northeast to south-southwest,
while the intervening ridges have very steep eastern faces and less steep western ones determined
by the underlying folds in the rock. Otsego Lake fills one of these glacial valleys and the
Susquehanna River flows south along the valley floor. Thus, this is a landscape within the larger
Allegheny Plateau geological area.

The Glimmerglass Historic District focuses on Otsego Lake, its most prominent and
defining feature. The lake is a narrow sheet of water between eight and nine miles long and
about 1200 feet above sea level; at no point is it more than a mile and a half wide. It has two
lobes at the north end: the larger and western one is considered the north end of the lake; the
smaller, eastern one is called Hyde Bay for the Hyde Clarkes, who once owned the land at the
north end and built Hyde Hall overlooking the bay. Mount Wellington, colloquially known as
Sleeping Lion, rises about 600 feet above the point between the head of the lake and Hyde Bay.
The district's north boundary includes Mount Wellington and a smaller hill to its northwest—these
two features visually frame the district when viewed from the lake surface. Further north of Mount
Wellington, the land slopes gently upward to a line of rounded hills known historically as the
"Summit." The Summit, which lies north of the district boundary, marks the divide between the
Allegheny Plateau of steep, shaly uplands and the gentler limestone topography of the Mohawk
Valley to the north.

On the east and west sides, the lake is enclosed by ridges of land created by retreating
glaciers. The eastern ridge rises precipitously from the lake to about 1800 feet, and the creeks on
this side cut deep ravines into the sedimentary rock. This eastern ridge tightly encloses the lake,
while on the west side the land rises in two more gentle stages, the first to a ridge of about 1500
feet, and then a second more westerly one of about 1900 feet. The lower ridge on the west side
visually encloses the Glimmerglass landscape when viewed from lake level and thus forms the
district boundary.

Many watercourses empty into the lake, though its main source is underground springs.
Several large creeks—Shadow, Hayden, and Cripple—run off the Summit to empty into the north
end of the lake. Hayden Creek is an outlet of Summit Lake, while Cripple Creek empties water
from Weaver's and Young's lakes (historically also called the Twin Lakes), located northwest of the
district in the town of Warren in Herkimer County. Shadow Brook flows south in a shallow valley
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into Hyde Bay. Otsego Lake's east and west shores undulate with points, or small capes, created
by the outwash of these numerous small creeks. These points include Brookwood (also called
Two-Mile), Three-Mile, Five-Mile, and Hickory Grove (also called Six-Mile) on the west shore. On
the east side, these capes include Point Judith, Point Florence, the Dugway (actually the area
between two creeks), and Pegg's Point.

At the south end of the lake, the valley and accompanying ridges continue in a south-
southwestly direction, with the Susquehanna River flowing along its floor. A low bluff rises at the
base of the lake, following the western contour of the river bank. This bluff levels out into a small
plain extending to the point where the western ridge begins rising to heights known as Hannah's
Hill and West Hill. East of the river's outlet, the land slopes upward immediately to the eastern
ridge. The hill known as Mount Vision lies almost directly east of the outlet and commands a
view to the head of the lake. Visually, the south end of the Glimmerglass landscape is enclosed
by two low hills south of Red Creek, which flows into the Susquehanna. The district boundary
follows as closely as possible the ridgelines of the two low hills and crosses the Susquehanna
Valley to meet the western boundary. These are in turn framed by the higher summits of Murphy
and Cornish hills, which rise south of the district boundary.

Spatial Organization

Two main development patterns shape the Glimmerglass Historic District's spatial
organization: its plat into regular lots during the 1760s, 1770s, and 1780s following different
patterns carried out by surveyors working for a variety of patent holders and its later subdivision
related to resort development capitalizing on the area's natural features and cultural importance.
Generally, woodlands blanket slightly more than half of the district's landscape, mainly on its
eastern side, and open fields and pastures give parts of the west side and north end of the district
a distinctly pastoral appearance. Large estates retain open land along much the western shore,
while pockets of camps rim the shoreline between Five-Mile Point and the north end of the lake
and at Pegg's Point on the east side. Tiny clusters of individual camps and overnight camps
punctuate the mainly wooded east shore. Finally, the densely packed village of Cooperstown
nestles at the foot of the hills at the southern end of Otsego Lake, where it empties into the
Susquehanna River.

The patent plats dating to the mid-1700s guided the initial organization of the landscape,
mainly for farming. Of the variety of initial plat patterns surrounding Otsego Lake in that period,
only parts of the 100,000-acre Great Patent (owned first by George Croghan, then by William
Franklin, and finally partly by William Cooper) on the west and north sides of the lake can be
visually traced with ease in the district's current landscape. Here, historic property divisions ran in
long strips of land from shoreline to ridgeline. This pattern breaks roughly at the lower ridgeline
(about 1500 feet), suggesting a hilltop-to-hilltop range line struck across the peaks by the
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surveyors for an easy reference point. This practice, common in hilly country with water features,
provided each lot with water access for transportation as well as a variety of types of land for
different uses, from arable and grazing to woodlot. Portions of these strip lots dating from the
1700s remain visible in treelines and hedgerows marking old boundaries above the subsequent
lakefront development on the west side of the lake. The old lots laid out on the eastern hillsides
are now hidden by unbroken woodland. The present day wooded appearance of the east shore
of the district is the result of the Clark family's purchase of much of this land from the 1870s
onward. As the land was bought, it was allowed to reforest, recreating as nearly as possible the
hills' presettlement appearance.

In addition to the large lot plats for subdivision and agriculture, the village of
Cooperstown's densely packed streets retain a strong visual relationship with its earlier periods of
development. The initial village blocks occupied the bluff at the source of the Susquehanna River
at the south end of Otsego Lake, but its street plan expanded south and west as the village grew
from a few streets in the 1780s to a much larger market village and county seat during the 1800s.
Main Street remains a tightly packed commercial district, while most residential areas are
characterized by tree-lined verge lawns abutting generous yards and gardens, which provide a
sense of spaciousness.

While organization patterns related to the development of the village of Cooperstown and
the creation of farms on the shores of Otsego Lake cut across the entire period of significance,
some areas within the Glimmerglass project boundary illustrate later organizational patterns related
mainly to the development of a summer resort focused on the lake. Relatively small lengths of
shoreline are densely packed with camps on very small lots, while a considerable part of the
western and northern shorelines still retain summer estates with lengthy shore frontages. Both
camp and estate areas generally retain many trees that partially hide the buildings of these
properties during the summer months. On the east side of the lake, a few tiny clusters of camps
can be picked out in the otherwise heavily wooded landscape stretching from lake beach to
ridgeline. Star Field, a large open field, which provides a vantage point from the ridgeline, opens
about a third of the way north on the east shore, and is a prominent local landmark. Non-historic
camp subdivision similar in intention and use to that on the west shore characterizes the south
shore of Hyde Bay and Pegg's Point. Also hidden on the wooded eastern shore is Lakewood
Cemetery, a large rural cemetery laid out on the steep slope of the east ridge beginning in 1859.
This large property's terraced landscape probably owes much to the effects of erosion over steep
hillsides filled with tree roots left after its clearance. These became the groundwork for the
cemetery's romantic landscape punctuated by trees, divided by low walls into family plots, and
accessed by winding drives and steep stairs.
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Circulation Features

Historic circulation features within the Glimmerglass Historic District developed primarily in
response to the region's geographical features. Settlement patterns related to the spatial
organization of the patent plats also played a role in their development. Within the district, the
historic circulation systems remain essentially intact. Additional roads accessing non-historic
subdivisions near Five-Mile and Pegg's points are the only non-historic additions.

The oldest circulation feature in the Glimmerglass Historic District is Otsego Lake itself. In
the early historic period and for all of prehistory, movement by water was easier than travel by
land in the area. In the late 1700s the lake was viewed as part of a travel corridor between the
Mohawk and Susquehanna valleys, potentially allowing a freight connection between the Hudson
River navigation and the Chesapeake Bay. This idea persisted as late as 1827, when New York
State assessed the feasibility of a canal connecting Cooperstown and Binghamton via the
Susquehanna River as an alternative to the proposed Chenango Canal, which was eventually built
instead. Otsego Lake became an internal circulation feature within the Glimmerglass landscape,
used for steamboat travel from the 1800s through the 1930s. Throughout the period of
significance down to the present day, it remains a recreational waterway.

Early roads in the Glimmerglass Historic District generally connected the village of
Cooperstown with surrounding areas, including the Susquehanna River Valley, the Mohawk Valley,
and Albany. While George Croghan, the first holder of the Great Patent, had intended to build a
road to Breakabeen in Schoharie County to link the area with the Hudson River, this route never
materialized. Instead, main routes extended south along the Susquehanna River and west to Fly
Creek (now New York State Route 28), north along the eastern shoreline of Otsego Lake through
East Springfield (now County Highway 31), northwest through Pierstown (now County Highway
28), and northeast to Cherry Valley (now County Highway 33). These roads all have relatively
gentle grades, probably chosen to ease the movement of goods along them. Those that are now
county routes preserve their historic character in their gently winding courses, relatively narrow
roadbeds, and tendency to follow natural features. East Lake Road (County Highway 31) follows
the contour of the lake shore, while County Highway 33 travels the first alluvial terrace
overlooking Red Creek. Pierstown and East Lake roads retain relatively narrow courses, which
would have been narrower still when first laid out. Cut-and-fill characterizes the base of the
former, where it follows the creek valley up from lake level; the latter retains considerable
evidence of this construction method in places where the road is cut from a hillside and the fill
from the cut is used to buttress the route. In areas where the route follows a ridge or a river
valley, like New York State Route 28 running south from the village of Cooperstown and County
Highway 33 northeast to Cherry Valley, this work intensive construction method was unnecessary
due to flatter, wider terrain. This gentler terrain has also enabled these routes to be widened
considerably over time. The other roads remain more narrow, due in part to the constricted
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nature of their geography. Pierstown Road (County Highway 28) follows the shoulder of the first
ridge west of Otsego Lake beginning in the creek valley where Leatherstocking Falls descends to
the lake level. In the early period, the road following the western shoreline of Otsego Lake
connected to Pierstown Road for the only route to the northwest. The route along the western
shore (now New York State Route 80) was laid out in the 1840s as a plank road under a state
charter. This route also used the geography—in this case, the outline of Otsego Lake—as a
guiding feature. Though adopted as state route in the first half of the twentieth century, the road
remains narrow along much of its course due to the constricted nature of the terrain, as does its
sister road (County Highway 31 or East Lake Road) traveling up the east shoreline of Otsego Lake.

As agricultural productivity increased on remote farmsteads in the early 1800s, a relatively
small network of routes developed within the Glimmerglass Historic District for local movement.
People and goods traveled to Cooperstown, the regional hub, or went directly to a route
connecting the Glimmerglass region with other areas. These patterns survive today through
continued use. While the routes connecting the region with other places follow gentler terrain,
internal circulation features often tackle steeper geography. As a result, the latter routes retain
considerable cut-and-fill construction and often remain very narrow. Red House Road, the Canyon
Road (part of County Highway 28), and Wedderspoon Hollow Road remain very narrow roads,
with cut-and-fill construction, descending to Otsego Lake on the west side of the lake following
watercourses, a common place to build roads in the settlement period. Red House Road and the
upper part of Wedderspoon Hollow Road remain dirt roads, while the Canyon Road is paved.
Adopted as part of New York State Route 28, the road going west from Cooperstown through the
saddle between Hannah's Hill and West Hill also follows the watercourse pattern as it descends
along the course of Willow Brook into the village of Cooperstown. In addition to these historic
routes, a handful of short, often deadend roads provide access to small, non-historic subdivisions
within the Glimmerglass Historic District. These include Parshall Road, Reiss Road, Pine Ridge
Road, Glimmer Hill Road, Browdy Mountain Road, and Stocking Brook Road in the town of
Otsego, and Prevost Lane, Memory Lane, and Pegg's Point Road in the town of Middlefield.

On the east side of the lake, only three roads—Chicken Farm Hill Road, Van Yahres Road,
and Springfield Hill Road—span the ridge to connect East Lake Road (County Highway 31) and
Middlefield Center Road (County Highway 33). All are narrow and unpaved, with switchbacks to
ascend the steep western slope of the ridge. They are tightly framed by woodland and probably
preserve the highest degree of historic integrity of any roads in the district.

The village of Cooperstown retains its historic street plan, which developed in several
phases from the late 1700s through the late 1800s. William Cooper's rational grid laid out in the
1780s included streets north of Church Street and east of Pioneer Street. The grid was extended
west to Chestnut Street early on, where it intersected the southern route to mill hamlets at Milford
and Portlandville on the Susquehanna River. As the village expanded after the Civil War, streets
like Delaware and Susquehanna continued further south on their courses to intersect newly added
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east-west streets. Most new streets continued the grid pattern characteristic of much of the village
plan. With the exception of Walnut Street east of Delaware Street and Riverside Drive, a tiny cul-
de-sac off of Susquehanna Avenue near the river, the village's plan west of the Susquehanna
remains virtually unchanged from about 1900. The historic street layout is linked to the historic
circulation features, allowing movement both within the larger district and beyond the area in a
pattern established more than a century ago. Within the village of Cooperstown, non-historic
subdivision of the old Bowers estate into the Lakeland Shores development includes Lakeshore
Roads North and South and Locust Lane. The subdivision of Fernleigh-Over on the east bank of
the Susquehanna created Fernleigh Drive.

Vegetation

The vegetation in the Glimmerglass Historic District is among the most prominent aspects
of this landscape: it colors the perception of the overall landscape because it cloaks or surrounds
every physical feature and frames every built feature. Its varied greens in summer illustrate the
balance between the more pastoral and gentle west side of Otsego Lake, with its intermittent
woodlots and open land, and the steeper forested east side. In winter, the contrast between snow
and dormant vegetation provides a high contrast view of the same tension. A wide variety of
flora, both native and introduced, illustrates different layers of the district's development and land
use during the period of significance.

The earliest European visitors to the region found an entirely wooded area. Through
clearance for agriculture and subsequent agricultural abandonment, as well as through conscious
conservation efforts, the region has achieved its current balance of woods and open land, which
reflects changing land use patterns over at least the past two centuries. When Richard Smith wrote
one of the area's first descriptions in 1769, he noted that the land surrounding Otsego Lake was
entirely wooded, predominantly with white pine and hemlock. Other native species included
maple, ash, beech, hickory, oak, and chestnut. The trees felled to make way for pastures and
fields were used for lumber, fuel, and making potash. By 1880, the period of most extensive
agricultural land use in the Glimmerglass Historic District, the west side of the lake was almost
entirely cleared to the ridge, as were most hillsides at the north and south ends. The east ridge,
however, which was too steep to plow efficiently, had been at least partially lumbered off but was
beginning to reforest naturally. While these reforested areas were, of course, much younger than
those found in the 1700s, they matured into the wooded vista extending from north to south, from
shore line to ridge line, still visible today on the east side of the lake.

Land in all stages of natural reforestation may be observed in the proposed district, and
virtually all the woodland now visible in the Otsego Lake landscape developed through the disuse
of previously cleared land over the past century. While forests were cleared for farming on the
west, north, and south sides of Otsego Lake, much of the east side appears to have been strip cut
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for lumber at least once by the mid-1800s, as illustrated by period photographs. By the 1870s and
1880s, however, the Clark family's purchases of parcels on the eastern hillsides overlooking the
lake was intended to allow the hillsides to reforest naturally. These woods, though they
incorporate old house sites with locust trees and orchards in some areas, apparently grew with
little management, though in isolated areas along the ridge line some early twentieth century
coniferous forest plantations stand. In other areas, some property owners have consciously
reforested small portions of their land, creating plantations primarily of Scotch pine, red pine, and
spruce. These species were recommended in federal guidelines for reforesting the northeastern
United States after the passage of the Clarke-McNary Act in the 1920s because they grow quickly
and, when planted in close formation, produce a crop of straight, nearly branchless trunks useful
for lumber and pulp. Such plantations can be picked out at a distance by their consistent color
and regular appearance. Plantations were grown on the west face of Mount Wellington at the
north end of the lake; Scotch pine was used on the Chalet and Iroquois farm properties for
treelines edging fields and roads. Spruce, also used in plantations, became a popular tree to plant
near houses, and many dwellings in the Otsego Lake area, especially turn-of-the-century camps
and village properties, are now shaded by huge Norway spruce trees.

Considerable amounts of land on the hillsides on the west side of Otsego Lake and at its
north and south ends are in the early stages of agricultural abandonment, which has occurred in
most of the district during the past fifty years. The area's remaining open land is the legacy of a
once profitable agricultural region where farms occupied much of the land on the west side of the
lake from ridgeline to shoreline, at the north end in the town of Springfield and south of the
village of Cooperstown. In part because the area's farm economy has declined, evidence of
nineteenth-century agricultural practices remain clear in some parts of the Glimmerglass landscape
instead of being obliterated by later farming methods and organization. Nineteenth-century
practices included the introduction of European grasses and clover for hay; the growing of grain,
including wheat, maize, barley, oats, and rye; and the grazing of sheep and cattle. Features related
to nineteenth-century agriculture include the land divisions into field, meadow, and pasture, which
can be picked out in fencing and treelines planted to break the wind and slow erosion. Such
features marked property lines too. In much of the Glimmerglass Historic District, the diminution
of open acreage hides many more of these old treelines, which can be identified as larger
deciduous trees with low branches amid younger trees and invasive shrubs with denser, tighter
habit surrounding them. Intentionally and unintentionally introduced species, including grasses
and invasive aliens like burdock, plantain, and thistle, characterize open land and edge habitats.
Thickets of wild apples are the inheritance of intense orcharding, an intentional planting pattern
popular from before 1850 through the early 1900s. The descendants of these orchards line
watercourses and dot former pastureland, though few orchards remain orderly enough to be
identified except at Pinehurst, Cary Mede, and Glimmerglen. Numerous orchard sites may be
hidden in woodland areas that were still open at the turn of the century. Old pastures become
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thickets of burdock, apple trees, and a variety of other scrubby vegetation. These in turn give way
to light woods of poplar, birch, cherry, and soft maple, usually within twenty or thirty years.
Formerly cleared land can sometimes be picked out by the presence of wild apple, black locust,
willow, and other non-native species mixed with native ones in now wooded areas.

The Glimmerglass landscape also includes several designed landscapes, mostly associated
with summer estates developed in early 1900s. The best-preserved of these is at Mohican Manor,
or the Spaulding Estate, on the west side of the lake, nearly overlooking Sunken Island. The
garden at Brookwood, on Brookwood Point, also retains considerable amounts of early plant
materials, as well as its plan and architecture. Remnants of others survive at Glimmerglen, the
next property north of Brookwood, and at Fynmere, Fernleigh, and Heathcote overlooking the
source of the Susquehanna River. In addition to these gardens, the district's largest and oldest
surviving designed landscape is Lakewood Cemetery, a rural cemetery organized in 1859. This
cemetery incorporates steep winding paths within a terraced, wooded landscape ascending the
eastern ridge just north of the village line.

Built Environment

The Glimmerglass Historic District retains a wide variety of built features illustrating layers
of historic development in the landscape surrounding Otsego lake. Examples of historic farm
properties, camps, summer estates, and gentleman's farms survive, as well as resort-related
properties like golf courses, hotels, public beaches, picnic grounds, and, of course, village
architecture in Cooperstown. Different areas of the district are characterized by different types of
buildings, which fall into three main categories: agricultural, resort, and village. In general, farm
properties survive on the hillsides overlooking the west and north shores of Otsego Lake. Resort
properties focus on the lake, and so occupy a narrow ribbon of land along the shoreline. These
are more numerous and more prominent on the west and north shores and around Hyde Bay; a
few appear in clusters at the foot of the densely wooded eastern hillsides of the district. The
village of Cooperstown occupies a site overlooking the outlet of the Susquehanna River at Otsego
Lake's south end.

Agricultural architecture: Before 1850 or so, the built environment of the landscape surrounding
Otsego Lake, exclusive of the village of Cooperstown, was virtually all related to agricultural
endeavor. Evidence of this historic use survives in farmhouses, outbuildings, and open
land—some still farmed. Many old farm properties retain frame farmhouses, often in the Greek
Revival or Italianate styles, and large dairy barns dating mostly to the last quarter of the nineteenth
century. These frame barns, with their mow entrances in the long wall, have gable roofs and rest
on banked stone basements. Some preserve granaries, hop houses, and stone smokehouses, in
addition to other types of outbuildings like horse barns, hay barns, and chicken and pig houses.
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In some cases, only the dwelling remains because the farm has ceased operations and the
outbuildings have been taken down.

While vernacular farms are typical of upland areas, old farm properties with lake frontage
developed differently in the late 1800s. With the region's increasing popularity as a summer resort,
some wealthy families, a few with local connections, purchased such farms to turn into summer
estates. Many of these summer estates continued farming, though the operation usually changed
focus to model agricultural pursuits like stock raising or model dairying. To accommodate these
ends, older outbuildings were often replaced with higher style frame barns and sheds influenced
by the Shingle, Stick, Eastlake, and Colonial Revival styles. Some families retained the older
dwellings, often remodeling and enlarging them, or keeping them as tenant houses. Several
summer estate owners built large mansions with elegant entertaining rooms and servants' quarters.
These houses were designed in a variety of styles, including Italian Renaissance, Colonial Revival,
and Tudor Revival. As boating was an important part of the summer's activities, many owners also
added boathouses at the water's edge. Most of these summer estates retain a high degree of
historic integrity in spite of being about a century old, and together they form an important visual
component on the west and north shores of Otsego Lake. They are characterized by considerable
open space, occasional gardens, and light woods punctuated by a variety of remodeled vernacular
buildings and high style buildings.

Resort architecture: Before 1870, the Otsego Lake area was already a summer destination for
relatively wealthy city dwellers seeking a healthy rural resort. Early on, the resort centered on the
village of Cooperstown where hotels and boarding houses accommodated visitors, many of whom
came for several weeks or even months during the summer. With the exception of the frame,
mansard-roofed Fenimore Hotel annex near the corner of Chestnut and Main streets and the Pratt
Hotel, formerly the Pioneer Hotel, on Pioneer Street in the village, none of these nineteenth-
century hostelries survive.

By the mid-1870s a second pattern of summer vacation—the camp holiday—emerged on
Otsego Lake's shores. Both permanent camps and tent platforms grew increasingly popular in the
1880s, and considerable numbers of photographs survive to illustrate the trend. Camps from all
periods beginning in the 1880s crowd the shoreline between Five-Mile Point in the town of Otsego
to White's Creek in the town of Springfield. Tiny clusters of historic camps and a few individual
sites punctuate the densely wooded shore of the east side of the lake in the town of Middlefield.
Non-historic camps that continue the use pattern into the latter half of the twentieth century pack
the shore further north in the town of Middlefield at Pegg's Point and along the southern rim of
Hyde Bay.

Typical camps of all periods share many characteristics, and often camps of different
periods are interspersed with each other. In general, all are oriented toward the lake, the district's
most prominent natural feature and an important tourist draw. The buildings strongly resemble



United States Department of the Interior OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Glimmerglass Historic District
Continuation Sheet Otsego County, New York
Section 7 page 12 Narrative Description

vernacular housing of the same period with simple, angular lines, a lack of elaborate detail, and
siding and sash chosen from readily available millwork. Most have simple rectangular plans and
gable roofs, though in their proportions they allude to the predominant tastes of their period of
construction. Those dating to the late 1800s often have simplified Italianate or Queen Anne forms
and detailing, while ones built in the early 1900s display simple bungalow forms with rustic details
derived from the Arts and Crafts style. The lakeside, or front, entrance usually climbs a flight of
stairs to a full width porch, which provides a visual connection with the water. As they were built
for summer use, many stand on piers, though in the non-historic period some owners have
replaced the piers with concrete foundations. In addition to the many vernacular frame camps, a
few larger and more stylish ones, such as those at Otsego Colony, Seneca Lodge, and the Bissell
Camp, appear too.

By the early 1900s, access for local people who did not own lake frontage was increasingly
difficult. To alleviate this, public parks and one shareheld property provided access. The village
of Cooperstown acquired land at Three-Mile Point on the west side of the lake and at Fairy Spring,
north of Lakewood Cemetery on the east side. The Hyde Bay Association formed at the north end
of the lake in the town of Middlefield, and a little later, about 1930, the Public Landing in the town
of Springfield opened at the base of Mount Wellington. All of these properties provided bath
houses, small craft access, and swimming. The latter two were also steamboat stops until the
boats went out of service in 1935. With the exception of Three-Mile Point, all of these properties
retain simple frame buildings typical of camp development, including bath houses, pavilions, and
cabins, dating to the historic period.

In addition to boating and tennis, both popular pastimes among owners of summer estates
on Otsego Lake, golf took hold here too, and the courses provide considerable open land along
the lakeshore. Reputedly the oldest American golf club still using its original course, the Otsego
Golf Club retains its original, rustic club house overlooking the head of the lake and its historic
landscape. At the south end of the lake, the Leatherstocking Golf Course was laid out in the 1910s
on land contiguous to the Otesaga Hotel in Cooperstown. This eighteen-hole course also retains
considerable amounts of its early landscape and is undergoing renovation to return it to its historic
plan and appearance.

Non-historic development includes a handful of motels and tourist cabins on the west side
of Otsego Lake in the town of Springfield and a contemporary campground. Several of the motels
incorporate pre-World War II cabin colony developments. In general, these properties continue
the pattern of resort development beyond the period of significance and are non-contributing due
to age alone.

Village architecture: The village of Cooperstown, already partially listed as a National Register
district, retains a considerable range of commercial and domestic architecture dating from the late
1700s through the entire historic period, including buildings and landscape related to the area's
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development as a resort. In general, the village developed from a rectilinear grid plan laid out in
the 1780s at its northeast corner on a low bluff overlooking the Susquehanna River. The oldest
commercial and residential street, once called Second Street because it was second away from
Otsego Lake, is lined with frame and brick buildings. Residential streets, mostly with large lots
and considerable street frontages, characterize this oldest section. The dwellings are generally
frame, and some properties retain outbuildings, mainly small carriage barns. As the village
expanded during the second half of the nineteenth century, streets were laid out in formerly
agricultural areas bordering the village and the commercial district was linked to the main access
road to the south, now New York State Route 28. Most streets followed the earlier established
grid, so the village still follows a generally rectilinear organization. Later added streets generally
retained lots of similar size to older streets, so that while the dwellings in Cooperstown's later
neighborhoods have buildings with forms and stylistic details typical of later periods, the overall
density is generally homogenous. Thus areas, or neighborhoods, in Cooperstown can be
distinguished mainly by building use, style, and period.

The already listed portions of the village include Main Street (formerly Second Street) lined
with older frame and brick commercial buildings and dwellings between the river and the
intersection with Chestnut Street (New York State Route 28), as well as a late nineteenth century
residential area west of that, and large mansions on large lots east of the river, mostly built before
the mid-1800s. The streets north and south of Main Street retain similarly early dwellings, mainly
frame; three church buildings and two churchyard cemeteries; and additional commercial
buildings. By the mid-1800s, the village had expanded considerably from its initial plan to include
residential streets south and west. Frame construction continued to dominate. The Greek Revival
and Italianate tastes strongly influenced the massing and details of these dwellings so that broad,
rectangular, gable-roofed houses with partial returns intermingle with taller, squarer plan buildings
with bracketed rooflines.

The village continued to expand after the Civil War. The Irish Hill neighborhood
developed in the 1870s and 1880s on the east side of Hannah's Hill overlooking Main Street. This
area's streets followed the steep terrain of the hillside, and frame houses influenced by Greek
Revival and Italianate aesthetics were built. The Roman Catholic cemetery occupied a site at the
top of Main Street on Irish Hill, too.

Nestling at the foot of Hannah's Hill, the area west of Chestnut Street and north of Main
Street developed in the 1890s and early 1900s as an upper middle class residential area, almost like
a small suburban pocket of the rural village. These properties all retain generous lots, often twice
or three times the size of those laid out in the pre-Civil War era. The frame dwellings are a
catalog of Queen Anne and Stick style designs typical of suburban and rural village development
of the period and occupy undulating lots with lawns and mature trees.

The area south of Beaver Street, the village's southern boundary until the 1880s, was
subdivided for residential development that dovetails visually with that north of Beaver Street.
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Until the 1870s and 1880s period, this area was agricultural land and in the 1868 Beers Atlas hop
kilns were noted here. Agricultural outbuildings and a single farmhouse at the backs of some lots
on South Avenue predate the redevelopment of the area as a working and middle class part of
town in the 1880s. As development began, dwellings constructed using builders' plans popular in
the late 1800s crossed the old village boundary and continued south, matching in form and style
many found interspersed on streets north of Beaver Street. Lots continued to be developed in this
part of town into the early 1900s, so that Queen Anne style and four-square examples survive here
too.

When the Cooper House hotel burned in 1891, its ten-acre lot, nestled at the base of West
Hill and extending east to Chestnut Street and north to Glen Avenue, was subdivided to meet the
continuing demand for working and middle class housing in the village. Here, late Victorian frame
vernacular dwellings are interspersed with four-square type houses and bungalows dating to the
first decades of the 1900s. This neighborhood centered on the old Thanksgiving Hospital facing
Grove Street, opened in 1896 and now used as a retirement home, and the old high school, built
in 1908, facing Chestnut Street. The latter was demolished in 1969 and replaced by a non-historic,
two-story apartment complex. East of the river overlooking Fernleigh-Over, Estli Avenue
developed as a summer home location with large Colonial Revival and Shingle style houses set on
big lots.

Until about 1900, the old fairgrounds occupied a large site at the corner of Beaver and Fair
streets at the southeast corner of the village. This land was subdivided for residential lots and
individual houses were built using a variety of styles, including Arts and Crafts, Shingle, and
Colonial Revival. Across from these, the Mary Imogene Bassett Hospital was built in several stages
beginning in 1918. The earliest portion was a three-story stone Georgian Revival building; the
cupola from the Phoenix Mill, an early nineteenth century cotton spinnery on the Susquehanna,
crowned its gable roof. The hospital has been added to several times in its history, so that today
the earliest portion is the smallest.

Very little non-historic development has occurred in the village of Cooperstown. A modest
number of modular homes and ranch style dwellings have filled in open lots in the village, but the
predominant pattern has been to open a road or cul-de-sac and build a group of new houses
instead. Thus, Walnut Street between Delaware and Susquehanna streets retains a coherent group
of post-World War II houses. Lakeland Shores developed in the 1960s on the old Bowers family
estate east of the river between the shoreline and East Lake Road. A group of multiple dwellings
faces subdivided lots on part of the old Fernleigh-Over property, also east of the river, but south
of Main Street. This, too, once belonged to the Bowers family, but was purchased by Edward
Clark in the 1880s.

While the bulk of Cooperstown's buildings are dwellings, resort sites dating to the period
of significance survive too. Three museums opened by the Clark family between 1939 and
1946—The National Baseball Hall of Fame and Museum, the Fenimore Art Museum, and The
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Farmers' Museum—are all prominent features in the village's built environment. The Baseball Hall
of Fame occupies a Main Street site, while the Fenimore Art Museum and The Farmers' Museum
reuse the Fenimore Farm site just inside the village's northern boundary. This early farm property
became a gentleman's farm belonging to James Fenimore Cooper in 1813. Subsequently, Supreme
Court Judge Samuel Nelson, Edward Clark, and finally Edward Severin Clark owned the property,
which illustrates the layering of historic use within the Glimmerglass Historic District. The Farmers'
Museum also includes a grouping of historic buildings collected in the region and erected in a
village setting. This museum, with its 1940s origins and in light of its recreational role, contributes
to the district's historic significance.

The brick Colonial Revival style Otesaga Hotel, opened in 1909 to provide modern
accommodation for tourists, is a prominent resort landmark. Other buildings designed originally
as tourist accommodations in the village date mostly to the post-1950 period, but many older
dwellings are now opened as bed-and-breakfasts. The Moderne style Lakefront Motel at the foot
of Fair Street, however, dates to the period of significance.

Conclusion

The Glimmerglass Historic District preserves a cultural landscape characterized by the
layering of historic features within a distinctive and outstanding natural setting. These layers are
characterized by patterns illustrated in the landscape's spatial organization, circulation features,
vegetation, and built environment; they overlap within the landscape to reveal a cultural landscape
characterized by both change and continuity over a two hundred year period.

Annotated Property List

An annotated property list of resources in the Glimmerglass Historic District follows. This
is organized by municipality in alphabetical order. Within each municipality, the list is presented
in alpha-numeric order by street and street number. This list includes basic descriptions of
buildings, sites, structures, and objects, as well as historic information about individual properties
in the district. Property numbers in this list match those on the the individual town maps
presented in this nomination.
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ATWELL RD

Village of Cooperstown

Atwell Road was opened in 1946 to connect Fair and River streets north of Bassett Hospital. It is named for
Dr. Floyd J. Atwell (¢.1940) of Cooperstown, who was the village health officer, a physician at the hospital,
and the high school doctor.

1 Atwell Rd

AVERILL RD

Historic name: Mary Imogene Bassett Hospital

First building: Built 1917-1919. Complex of four four-story, rectangular plan, gable-
roofed stone Georgian Revival buildings with classical friezes, porticoed center
entrances, and gable-roofed dormer windows, connected by hyphens; roof of one
hyphen surmounted by a cupola taken from the Phoenix Mills cotton spinnery built
in the early 1800s. The cupola was replaced with a reproduction in 1998.
Architect: Frank P. Whiting.

First addition: Built 1952.

Second addition: Built 1970. Architect: Skidmore Owings and Merrill

Clinic building: Built 1993. Three-story masonry building built into bluff
overlooking Susquehanna River with two levels below grade.

Third addition: Built 1996. Four-story masonry buildig for wards and Emergency
Room.

Historic note: Mary Imogene Bassett Hospital was built by Edward Severin Clark as
a community hospital beginning in 1918. The stone was quarried from the Clark
quarry on the east side of Otsego Lake. Named for its first chief physician, Mary
Imogene Bassett, the hospital first opened in 1918 to American airmen returning
from World War I. It then served as an infirmary for the influenza epidemic of
1918-1919. 1t finally opened to the public in 1922, but Dr. Bassett died six month
later, leaving it leaderless. The hospital closed soon after. In 1926, however, the
hospital reopened with Dr. MacKenzie and Dr. Greenough at its head, and has
remained open ever since. Bassett Hospital pioneered the first known prepaid
health insurance plan in the nation in 1931, which failed. The hospital has
expanded considerably from its first building, designed by Frank P. Whiting, which
still stands on the hospital campus.

Averill Street intersects Main Street on Irish Hill near St. Mary's Cemetery. The street first appears on the

1903 map of the village.

37 Averill Rd Built ¢1970. Single-story, four-bay, gable-roofed, rectangular plan, frame dwelling
with shingle siding. N/C

39 Averill Rd Built 1953. Single-story, four-bay, gable-roofed, rectangular plan, frame dwelling.
N/C

» Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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73 Averill Rd Built ¢1890. Two-story, three-bay, square-plan, frame dwelling with pyramidal roof

and single-story wing; paired and single six-over-six sash and non-historic doorway;
attached non-historic garage.

Historic note: This was part of the old Cory Farm. In 1898, Edward Severin Clark
allowed a nine-hole golf course to be laid out on the property, and the house was
remodeled in the Colonial Revival taste for use as the clubhouse.

81 Averill Rd Built 1993. Pole barn with vinyl siding built as ambulance garage and office. N/C

BEAVER ST

Beaver Street, called both Arlington Avenue (1868 Atlas) and Fifth Street during the 1800s, formed the south
border of the village until the 1880s. Then the land south of it was subdivided for more village housing and
that area was incorporated into the village, as is reflected in the 1903 New Century Atlas.

*1 Beaver St Name: Harrison House (part of Bassett Hospital)
Built 1934. Two-story, three-bay dwelling used for offices; masonry first floor with
four-over-sash; overhanging vertical flush board frame second story with posts
extended into dependent drops and eight-over-eight sash; large stone end
chimneys; two-story frame attached garage with apartment above.

*18 Beaver St Built 1924. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with Colonial Revival door frame and six-over-six sash; vinyl siding.
Garage: Two-bay, frame with wood shingle siding, 1935.

*20 Beaver St Built 1916-1919. Bungalow-style, frame dwelling with recessed porch set under
extended front roof; large gable-roofed dormer in front roof face; shingled upper
story; vinyl-sided first story; six-over-one sash.

Carriage shed: Two-level, novelty-sided, frame, c1917.

*21 Beaver St Built c1870. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with twelve-over-twelve sash; asbestos shingle siding; non-historic, single-story
frame addition on east side and Colonial Revival (c1930) entrance vestibule on
center entrance.

Cabin: Single-story, frame, clapboarded cabin at back of property, c1930.

Historic note: According to lore, part of this dwelling comes from an older building,
but the raking cornice and moldings suggest that it mostly dates to the 1870s. Itis
not mapped in the 1868 Beers Atlas.

*22 Beaver St Built ¢1922. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with enclosed sunporch on west side; center entrance with porch supported by
Tuscan columns; lunettes in gable ends; eight-over-one and six-over-one sash.
Garage: Novelty-sided, frame with paired doors, c1922.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*31 Beaver St Name: Bassett Hall

Built 1927. Two-story, rectangular plan, hip-roofed building with half-timbered
walls, slate roof, and masonry enclosed porches with asymmetrical, flared
pediments; further two-and-a-half-story wing of similar size on west end similar in
form and exterior finishes; dormer windows across entire roof (gabled in east wing;
shed-roofed and breaking the roofline in the west wing); lantern at center of
ridgeline.

Historic note: Bassett Hall replaced the older orphanage building, an organization
begun by writer Susan Fenimore Cooper in the 1880s. The old brick orphanage
building burned in 1926, and was replaced by this one in 1927. In 1933, the St.
Christina School took over the building. In 1944, the Cooperstown Academy
occupied the building. In the early 1950s, it was renamed Bassett Hall, when it
became a residence for nursing students at Bassett Hospital.

*42 Beaver St Built 1954. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame dwelling with
overhanging upper story and attached garage. N/C

*44 Beaver St Built 1956. Split-level frame dwelling with garage. N/C
Historic note: This house was built from an American Home Blueprint Home plan,
No. 28.

45 Beaver St Built c1875. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with clapboard siding; raking cornice

trimmed with a flattened modilion motif; non-historic one-story, gable-roofed
addition at southwest corner; porch with corner braces wraps front and east facade,
set into the L; retains paired period Italianate doors with arched windows; four-
over-four sash throughout; three-sided, single-story bay window on front facade.
Shed: Non-historic frame. N/C

47 Beaver St Built c1875. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with clapboard siding; lower two-
story kitchen ell to rear; porch with elaborate millwork brackets and corner braces
wraps front and east facade, set into the ell; period paired Italianate doors in main
entrance and Italianate window frames with paired one-over-one sash in front gable
end and two-over-two sash in most other openings.

Shed: Frame, ¢1920.

*48 Beaver St Built c1800. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with raking cornice
and porch supported by turned columns with corner braces spanning front; two-
over-two sash; clapboard siding.

Carriage shed: Two-level, novelty-sided with period sliding door. c1900.

49 Beaver St Built ¢1905. Two-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with steep gable
roof; one-story kitchen ell at rear; hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan columns
spans front facade; retains variety of period windows including diamond lattice
casements and diamond lattice upper sash in one-over-one sash; decorative shingle
detail in gable end, but remaining structure resided in aluminum.

Carriage shed: Frame, c1895.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*50 Beaver St Built ¢1870. One-and-three-quarter-story, two-bay, frontal gable frame dwelling with

flushboard siding and pedimented window frames; two-over-two and paired one-
over-one sash; porch with turned columns and corner braces spans front facade;
three-sided bay window.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1930.

51 Beaver St Built ¢1885. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with frontal
gable roof; stove chimney placed in center of ridge; siding replaced with aluminum
and windows replaced with non-historic six-over-six storm sash.

Garage: Frame, ¢1920.
Historic note: This house was moved to the site according to period newspaper
accounts.

51%: Beaver St Built ¢1920. Two-story, modified four-square-type dwelling with frontal gable roof
and hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan columns spanning front facade;
windows replaced, mostly in period configuration, including triple window in
parlor; more details probably lost when resided with vinyl.

*52 Beaver St Built ¢1916. Four-square type, pyramidal-roofed frame dwelling with porch
supported by Tuscan columns spanning front facade; hip-roofed dormer in front
roof face; eight-over-one sash except for tripled three-over-ones in front parlor
window; vinyl siding.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1930.

53 Beaver St Built ¢1920. Two-story, four-square-type dwelling with pyramidal roof and hip-
roofed porch supported by Tuscan columns spanning front facade; hip-roofed
dormer window in front face of roof; braced pent roof over basement door; one-
over-one sash throughout except for fixed Queen Anne example in stair area.
Garage: Non-historic frame with novelty siding. N/C

*54 Beaver St Built ¢1890. Frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-story, two-bay, frontal gable main
block and lower two-bay wing with back ell; replacement sash; non-historic two-
bay garage; non-historic enclosed front porch; vinyl siding.

55 Beaver St Built ¢1910. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with a modified gambrel
roof and cross-gabled wing; porch supported by Tuscan columns shelters main
entrance and part of front facade; variety of period windows including one-over-
one, paired one-over-ones, and Queen Anne parlor window.

57-59 Beaver Built c1885. Two-story, six-bay, frame, two-family dwelling with "gothic gable"
bisecting gable roof; one-story kitchen ell to rear; six-over-six sash throughout,
somewhat longer in first floor openings; small Victorian entry porch shared by both
doorways.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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61 Beaver St Built c1885. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with one-story shed-roofed kitchen

ell to rear; retains novelty siding and paired one-over-one sash with decorative
window frame above in gable end; all other sash two-over-two; open porch set in
L

Historic note: This house and #63, 65, 67, and 69 Beaver were identical to #34, 36,
37, and 38 Delaware Street. All were built by W.D. Burditt, who at this period held
much of the farmland south of Beaver Street.

*62 Beaver St This property was incorrectly addressed in 1980 building list. See 28 Eagle St for
description.
63 Beaver St Built c1885. Two-story, T-plan, frame dwelling with one-story, shed-roofed ell to

rear; retains paired one-over-one sash with decorative window frame in gable end;
two-over-two sash in remaining openings; resided with aluminum.

Garage: Frame, c1900.

Shed: Non-historic frame. N/C

Historic note: This house and #61, 65, 67, and 69 Beaver were identical to 34, 36,
37, and 38 Delaware Street. All were built by W.D. Burditt, who at this period held
much of the farmland south of Beaver Street.

*64 Beaver St Built 1917. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with flat-roofed, two-
story back ell; two-over-two sash; vinyl siding.
Historic note: According to a period newspaper account, this house was moved to
the site from Elm Street in 1917.

65 Beaver St Built c1885. Two-story, T-plan, frame dwelling with non-historic one-story ell to
rear; all openings, siding, and details changed or lost during recent renovation,
including fenestration.

Garage: Non-historic frame. N/C

Historic note: This house and #61, 63, 67, and 69 Beaver were identical to 34, 36,
37, and 38 Delaware Street. All were built by W.D. Burditt, who at this period held
much of the farmland south of Beaver Street.

*66 Beaver St Built ¢1880. Frame dwelling with two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, main block;
Italianate bracketed hood over side hall entrance retaining period door with paired
arched lights; one-and-a-half-story wing; pedimented window frames in upper story;
six-over-six sash throughout.

Garden shed: Frame, ¢1920.

¥ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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67 Beaver St Built c1885. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with two-story rear ell and further

additions overshadowing original plan; vinyl siding and altered fenestration, though
paired one-over-one with decorative window frame survives in front gable end. N/C
Historic note: This house and #61, 63, 65, and 69 Beaver were identical to 34, 36,
37, and 38 Delaware Street. All were built by W.D. Burditt, who at this period held
much of the farmland south of Beaver Street. This property was owned by the
Saxton family who ran a general store from it for nearly forty years. The back part
of this building was moved from Railroad Avenue, where the Saxtons opened their
first store.

69 Beaver St Built c1885. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with single-story rear ell; two-over-
two sash in most openings (ones in first floor replacement) and paired one-over-
one with decorative window frame in front gable end; enclosed brick porch with
vertical three-over-one sash set in corner of L, added ¢1920; vinyl siding.

Shed: Frame, ¢1920.

Historic note: This house and #61, 63, 65, and 67 Beaver were identical to 34, 36,
37, and 38 Delaware Street. All were built by W.D. Burditt, who at this period held
much of the farmland south of Beaver Street.

*70 Beaver St Built c1892. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with paired one-over-one sash;
flat-roofed back ell. Aluminum siding.

71 Beaver St Built c1870. Two-story, square plan, frame, two-family dwelling with entrances on

Beaver St and Delaware St (#27); flat roof has unusual coved cornice matched by
coved cornices on entrance porches on north and west facades, the latter altered
¢1900; retains both original two-over-two sash and replacement sash in original
fenestration plan; asbestos shingle siding and coursed ashlar stone foundation.
Garage: Frame with flushboard siding, c1920.
Historic note: This property was part of a four-acre lot owned by J.H. Story in 1868,
who grew hops here. According to a newspaper account, Luther Burditt bought the
property in 1881, and planned to make a double tenement out of the hop house on
the land. This two-family house may be the converted hop house.

77 Beaver St Built 1912. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with flared, deep eaves
pyramidal roof; one-story kitchen ell at rear and enclosed sunporch on east facade;
hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan columns spans front; retains clapboard
siding and one-over-one sash; hip-roofed dormer with matching roofline in front
roof face; front parlor wall bowed out slightly.

Carriage shed: Frame frontal gable clapboard (being converted to studio), c1900.
Historic note: This house was moved to the site in 1913, a year after it was built,
according to notes in the Florence Peaslee Ward files at NYSHA.

*78 Beaver St Built ¢1890. Two-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling; porch with square
columns set on knee wall spans front facade; lower two-story back ell; replacement
sash.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame, novelty siding with raking cornice, ¢1890.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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79-81 Beaver Built ¢1920. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, frame, two-family dwelling with

gable roof. Hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan columns spans front; retains
one-over-one and paired one-over-one sash throughout as well as period main
entrance doors, raking cornice, and plain window frames.

Shed: Non-historic frame. N/C

*80 Beaver St Built 1903. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling; raking cornice; non-historic
two-story back ell; porch with turned columns and corner braces on front and side;
replacement sash.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame with novelty siding, c1903.

*82 Beaver St Built c1900. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross-gabled
wind; Queen Anne style details; shingle details in gable ends; replacement one-
over-one sash.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frontal gable, frame with novelty siding, c1900.

83 Beaver St Built ¢1909. Two-story, four-square, concrete block dwelling with deep-eaved
pyramidal roof and non-historic one-story back ell; porch supported by rusticated
concrete block columns spanning front facade; retains hip-roofed dormer with
decorative casements in front face of roof; mostly one-over-one sash otherwise;
main block resided in aluminum.

Historic note: This house built by a contractor mason named George Flynn for
himself.

*84 Beaver St Built ¢1900. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with decorative
vergebords; porch with turned columns and corner braces spanning front facade;
two-story back ell; one-over-one sash.

85 Beaver St Built ¢1912. Two-and-a-half-story, three-bay, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with
frontal gable roof; hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan columns spans front
facade; decorative wood shingles in gable ends, but vinyl siding on rest of building;
variety of windows, including one-over-ones, Queen Anne parlor window, triple
window in front gable, and diamond lattice casements.

87 Beaver St Built ¢1910. Two-story, two-bay, square plan dwelling with concrete block first story
and frame second story sheathed in asphalt shingles; pyramidal roof with hip-roofed
dormer in front face; enclosed semi-circular front porch with fixed ten-light
windows wraps front entrance at northeast corner.

Carriage shed: Frame with novelty siding, c1900.

*88 Beaver St Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with wood shingle siding; gable-roofed dormers with paired casements break front
roofline; replacement sash; glazed entrance porch (c1920).

Historic note: This house is reputedly a former hop house from the Moses Lippitt
farm, later, remodeled as a dwelling. In the 1903 New Century Atlas, the property
was owned by Mrs. Webster.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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89 Beaver St Built ¢1910. Two-story, modified four-square plan, frame dwelling with small one-

story ell to rear and metal-shingled pyramidal roof; hip-roofed porch with Tuscan
columns spans front facade; hip-roofed dormers with six-over-six sash in front and
east faces of roof; otherwise one-over-one sash throughout; retains clapboard
siding.

91 Beaver St Built ¢1905. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with single-story
kitchen ell to rear and gable roof; porch with curved footprint supported by slender
Tuscan columns spans front and west facades; three-sided bay windows on first
story east side and second story front; one-over-one sash throughout except for
Queen Anne parlor windows with leaded glass details in upper light; retains
clapboard siding.

95 Beaver St Built ¢1952. Two-story, masonry, building designed as a motel; later two-story wings
with additional rooms. N/C

BEECH ST

Beech Street is part of the Irish Hill neighborhood, which developed in two main phases: the first in the
1870s and the second in the early 1900s.

2 Beech St Built ¢1900. Two-story, three-bay, gable-roofed, rectangular plan, frame dwelling
with shed-roofed, enclosed front porch; vinyl siding; mostly six-over-one sash.

6 Beech St Built ¢1920. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling; vinyl
siding; replacement sash.

10 Beech St Built ¢1930. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with gable roof
and single-story wing; enclosed shed-roofed porch spans front facade.

12 Beech St Built ¢1880. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with shed-roofed porch set in
L. Aluminum siding; pedimented window frames with two-over-two sash; millwork
detailing on window and door frames.

13 Beech St Built ¢1900. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, frontal gable frame dwelling with
enclosed, gable-roofed entrance; vinyl siding; non-historic six-over-six replacement
sash. ¢1900. Virtually all historic detail lost in renovation. N/C

14 Beech St Built c1880. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling;
gambrel roof pierced by three gable dormers with pedimented sash.
Shed: Single-bay, ¢1900.

19 Beech St Built c1860. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with side hall
entrance framed by Greek Revival entablature; asbestos shingle siding and six-over-
six sash, except for added upper story (c1960) over back ell.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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20 Beech St Built c1900. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frontal gable, frame dwelling

with single-story ell to rear; shed-roofed porch over main entrance; retains two-
over-two sash in most openings; aluminum siding.
Garage: Non-historic frame. N/C

21 Beech St Built ¢1970. One-story, modular dwelling with aluminum siding. N/C

BROOKLYN AVE

Brooklyn Avenue runs along the Susquehanna River valley floor on the east side of the river, connecting Mill
Street with Susquehanna Avenue (County Highway 52) near the old mill hamlet of Bowerstown. It
developed during the first half of the nineteenth century and appears to be the location Susan Fenimore
Cooper calls "The Lane" in Rural Hours (1850).

12 Brooklyn Ave Built ¢1980. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with clapboard
siding and attached garage. N/C

15 Brooklyn Ave Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with cross-
gabled roof and clapboard siding. N/C

16 Brooklyn Ave Built ¢1900. One-and-three-quarters-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with shed-
roofed porch supported by Tuscan columns set in L; clapboard siding and one-
over-one sash, some replaced.

17 Brooklyn Ave Built ¢1920. One-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling with frontal hip-on-gable roof;
flanked by wings—south single-story wing with exposed rafter ends and north wing
with non-historic carport; wood shingle siding and period six-over-one sash, several
paired and a ribbon of windows in front gable end.

18 Brooklyn Ave Built ¢1880. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with single-story, gable-roofed
kitchen ell behind and shed-roofed porch in the L; pedimented window frames with
two-over-two sash; paired ones have one-over-one sash; clapboard siding.

20 Brooklyn Ave Built ¢1880. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with two-story flat-roofed ell and
shed-roofed porch in L; pedimented window frames with two-over-two sash; paired
ones have 1/1 sash; wood shingle siding.

23 Brooklyn Ave Built ¢1970. One-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with aluminum siding. N/C

25 Brooklyn Ave Built ¢1860. Two-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame main block with single-story
wing; porch with Tuscan columns (c1900) spans wing; main block retains raking
cornice with Italianate molding; nine-over-six and six-over-six sash throughout;
frame two-story addition, c1900.

g Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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34 Brooklyn Ave Built c1870. Dwelling with two-story, three-bay, square-plan, flat-roofed, frame main

block and offset two-story square block at northwest corner; retains deep cornice
and eaves supported with brackets; replacement six-over-six sash and vinyl siding.
¢1870.

Garage: Non-historic, frame. N/C

36 Brooklyn Ave Built c1910. One-and-three-quarters-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with shed-
roofed wing; vinyl siding; one-over-one sash may be replacements; main entrance
framed by pedimented hood supported by braces.

Garage: Novelty-sided frame, c1930.

CHESTNUT ST

Chestnut Street, the south route leaving the village connecting it with the mill villages Milford and
Portlandville on the Susquehanna, was one of the most desirable residential streets in the mid-1800s. Until
the late 1800s, its south end was farmland, but this area has been subjected to late twentieth century
development typical of village boundary areas.

*2 Chestnut St Built 1864-1870. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with concave mansard roof;
Italianate style window frames with two-over-two sash; center entrance porch with
squared, chamfered columns; segmental arched window above porch in upper
story.

Garage: Non-historic, frame, c1955. N/C

*4 Chestnut St Built 1939. Two-story, four-bay, Colonial Revival style frame dwelling with two-story
pedimented portico spanning three bays; open porch on north side; eight-over-eight
sash; fieldstone chimney.

Historic note: This house replaced Butternut Cottage in 1939. The new house was
designed by Linn Kinne for Orange Van Horne, and written up in 7he Upstate
Monthly August 1941 issue.

*6 Chestnut St Built 1830. Frame temple form Greek Revival style dwelling with two-story, frontal
gable main block flanked by single-story, two-bay wings; "eared" doorframe on
center entrance; porch with Tuscan columns spans center block; six-over-six and
three-over-six sash; partial returns.

*8 Chestnut St Built 1830. Frame temple form Greek Revival style dwelling with two-story, frontal
gable main block flanked by single-story, two-bay wings; porch with square Doric
columns spans center block; six-over-six sash; partial returns.

*10 Chestnut St Built ¢1900. Frontal gable, single-story, brick livery stable used as offices with
frontal gable frame addition to front facade and non-historic frame addition at rear.
Historic note: This building was built as a livery stables. A 1910 newspaper account
described its updating and expansion to include 45 stalls by its owner Fred W.
Greene. It laster became a frozen food plant. In 1957, it was renovated as a car
dealership with roughly its present appearance.

» Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*12 Chestnut St Built 1830-1840. One-and-a-half-level frame carriage barn with millwork

vergeboards at eaves; single-story back ell.

*14-16 Chestnut St Built 1874. Two-story frame hotel building with mansard roof and highly articulated
front facade; Italianate window frames; cornice with brackets; dormer windows with
convex frames in roof; Italianate style porch with squared, chamfered columns
spanning front facade.

Historic note: The frame annex for the Fenimore Hotel located on the opposite
corner was designed by H.J. Hardenburgh. It is the only nineteenth century resort
hotel building in Cooperstown still operated as a hotel.

*18 Chestnut St Built c1813. Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with full returns and Greek
Revival style entablature over front door.
Historic note: This office was used by Ambrose Jordan, one of Cooperstown's early
lawyers. Jordan was father of Susan Jordan, who married Edward Clark, a lawyer
and partner in the Singer Sewing Machine Co. This building was moved to its
present location in 1917, when the place (160 Main Street) where it stood became
the site of the new railroad passenger station.

*20 Chestnut St Built 1813. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling, now
used as a shop; Tuscan columns spanning front facade; six-over-six sash; Greek
Revival center entrance doorway with sidelights.
Historic note: Locally called Jordan Cottage, this building was owned by lawyer
Ambrose Jordan (his office is 18 Chestnut Street), this building was owned by
Jordan from 1815 to 1820. Alfred Corning Clark bought the building in 1890 and
renovated it, replacing mid-nineteenth century squared, chamfered columns. The
building was renovated again in 1998 replacing much historic fabric.

*15 Chesnut St Historic name: Willowbrook; Name: Cooper Inn
Built 1813-1816. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, brick dwelling with hipped
roof; center entrance with fan light; blind arcades in front facade and segmental
arched windows; set on raised basement. Building remodeled in mid-1800s with
bracketed roof and Italianate interior. Now used as an inn.
Historic note: This house was built for Elihu Phinney, Cooperstown's preeminent
printer during much the village's early history. The property now occupies a large
corner lot, but during the last quarter of the nineteenth century and the early
decades of the twentieth, the Fenimore Hotel stood on the Main Street side of the
lot.

*22 Chestnut St Historic name: Nelson Block
Built 1862-1863. Three-story, brick, flat-roofed commercial building with brick
segmental arched window frames and decorative brick corbel course at roofline;
six-over-six sash.
Historic note: This brick building was built by Luzerne Bolles for Judge Samuel
Nelson as a grain storage depot.

¥ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*24 Chestnut St Name: Cooperstown Fire Hall

Built 1972. Single-story, flat-roofed, brick garage with six arched vehicle bays and
office area on north end. N/C

*25 Chestnut St Built 1972. Two-story, five-bay, frame communercial building with vinyl siding. N/C
Historic note: The building that stood on this spot was given to the Presbyterian
Church in 1963. It is now 25 Church Street.

*26 Chestnut St Name: Otsego County Office Annex
Built 1923. Single-story brick commercial building with pedimented front facade,
built as a grocery store.
Historic note: This building has been remodeled twice since its original construction
as a garage in 1923. In the 1950s, it was sheathed with metal siding by its owner
Victory Markets. It was remodeled again in the 1980s, this time in brick, as an
office building.

*29 Chestnut St Built 1976. Single-story, masonry gas station. N/C

*31 Chestnut St Historic name: Higgins Cottage
Name: Chamber of Commerce
Built ¢1856; moved 1976. One-and-a-half-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-
roofed, frame dwelling used as an office; six-over-six sash; millwork vergeboards
match ones on 37 Chestnut; non-historic back ell for washrooms.
Historic note: This building was a small farmhouse on West Lake Road, within
village limits. It was moved in 1976 to become the new Chamber of Commerce.

*37 Chestnut St Built c1860. Two-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-
story wing; Greek Revival style side hall entrance; six-over-six and replacement
sash; millwork trim on eaves replaced during renovation in 1990s.

*39 Chestnut St Built c1860. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with Stick style pediment over center bay probably added c1885; one-over-one sash;
aluminum siding.

*40-44 Chestnut St Built 1853-1868. Two-story, frame, three-unit dwelling comprised of a frontal gable
center block flanked by two-story gable-roofed wings; two-over-two sash. Possibly
more than one building, not all original to site.

*46 Chestnut St Built c1830. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-
story, four-bay wing; corner pilasters and full returns; Greek Revival style
entablature on side hall entrance.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frontal gable, frame, c1880.

*47 Chestnut St Built 1872. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame, multiple-unit dwelling with several
additions to rear; center entrance with extended porch; Queen Anne porch, glazed
¢1920, spans front and sides; bracketed roofline; two-over-two sash. Built for Dr.
Siver.

y Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*48 Chestnut St Built 1911. Two-story, frontal gable, concrete block dwelling with shingles in gable

end; center entrance; porch with turned columns and corner braces spans front
facade; one-over-one sash; asbestos shingles. Built by George Flynn for Dr. Floyd
Atwell.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frontal gable, frame, c1911.

*50 Chestnut St Built ¢1850. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with partial returns;
porch with turned columns and corner braces spans front facade; six-over-six sash;
asbestos shingles.

*51 Chestnut St Built 1873. Two-story, brick dwelling with irregular roof and plan; distinctive wood
vergeboard on eave and roof peak; variety of segmental arched window frame with
one-over-one sash. Built by John Pank, a builder.

Garage: Two-bay, pyramidal-roofed, frame, ¢1925.

*52 Chestnut St Built ¢1840. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross-gabled
8 8 8
wing; partial returns; side hall entrance porch with Tuscan columns (c1900); two-
over-two and nine-over-six sash; back ells, partially non-historic.

*53 Chestnut St Built 1910. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross-gabled wings;
Palladian windows and shingle details in gable ends; porch with Tuscan columns
spans front and north side. Built by John Pank.

Garage: Two-bay, brick with shed-roofed dormer in front roof face, c1925.

*54 Chestnut St Built 1883. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with center
entrance tower; steeply pitched roofs and pedimented window frames; braces at
roofline. Built for Dr. James E. Parshall.

Carriage shed: Two-level frame carriage shed with cross gable.

*55 Chestnut St Built 1912. Two-story, hip-roofed frame dwelling with cross gables; shingled upper
story and clapboard first story; one-over-one sash, including Queen Anne parlor
types; porch with paired Tuscan columns spans front facade. Built for Mr. Rose,
father-in-law of Orange van Horne.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame, c1912.

*56 Chestnut St Built 1858. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with full returns and
flushboard siding in tympanum; porch (added 1915) with Tuscan columns spans
front facade; several back ells.

*58 Chestnut St Built c1850. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with partial returns;
six-over-six sash except for later parlor windows with stained glass insets; front
porch with Tuscan columns (c1920); aluminum siding.

Garage: Two-bay, novelty sided, frame, ¢1920.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*59 Chestnut St Built c1820. Two-bay, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with

two-story back ell and large non-historic addition; center entrance with glazed
porch supported by Tuscan columns (c1910); porch on south side with Tuscan
columns, now glazed (c1910); partial returns and six-over-six sash.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame, ¢1900.

*60 Chestnut St Built ¢1855. Two-story, three-bay, square plan, frame dwelling with several back
ells; Greek Revival style entablature frames side hall entrance; bracketed roofline;
two-over-two sash. Built for Mr. Manning, a minister.

*63 Chestnut St Built 1864. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, brick dwelling;
arched cast iron window frame heads; center entrance; Italianate porches over
entrance and on south side; bracketed roofline. Built for Jedediah Sill, apparently
on speculation.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frame with battened doors and a cupola ventilator, c1865.

*64 Chestnut St Historic name: The Maples
Built 1856. Two-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with extended
center front porch surmounted by center pediment; modilion blocks at roofline;
center entrance front porch with squared, chamfered columns; paired, scrolled
brackets; side porches with slender, octagonal columns; friezeband windows in
main block. Architect: Luzerne Bolles; built for Jedediah P. Sill.
Garage: Non-historic, frame, ¢1970.
Historic note: The Maples was built as J.P. Sill's dwelling, and once had an elaborate
set of porches on both the first and second floors of the building. The property
was also once set off by a cast iron fence made by a Fly Creek manufacturer.

*65 Chestnut St Built ¢1910. Two-story, rectangular plan dwelling with stucco first story and
shingled upper story; porch spanning front facade supported by tapered, squared
brick columns; heavy braces at roofline; paired casement windows.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frame, with keyhole windows in gable ends.

*66 Chestnut St Built c1840. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-story wing;
louvered fan in gable end and full returns; Greek Revival doorframe on side hall
entrance.

Historic note: This house once occupied the northwest corner lot at Chestnut Street
and Glen Avenue, but was moved in 1903 to free the spot for the new Methodist
Church. Before it was moved, it had a wing on the north side.

*67 Chestnut St Built 1862. Two-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling with square plan, flat-roofed main
block; brackets at roofline; irregularly massed lower wings and ells; brackets on all
rooflines; six-over-six sash.

Carriage shed: Frame, c1865.

¥ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*68 Chestnut St Historic name: United Methodist Church

Built 1903. Square-plan brick church with main entrance porch at southeast corner
and decorative brick detailing in gable ends; Akron plan interior. Large stained glass
windows on south and east walls facing Glen Avenue and Chestnut Street
respectively.

*69 Chestnut St Built 1917. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with concrete block foundation; lunettes in gable end; center entrance porch with
Tuscan columns; six-over-six sash.
Garage: Frontal gable, frame, with paired doors, ¢1930.

*70-74 Chestnut St Name: Cooper Lane Apartments
Built 1970. Two-story, brick apartment complex. N/C
Historic note: This apartment complex stands on the site of the Cooperstown High
School, which opened in 1908. Before this period, the land was part of the Cooper
House hotel property. The hotel burned in 1891, opening up this part of the village
for a variety of development, mainly residential.

*71 Chestnut St Built 1979. Two-story, frame office building with gable roof. N/C

*73 Chestnut St Built ¢1930. Single-story, three-bay, brick Moderne style commercial building with
parapet and vitrine windows in front facade; center entrance; rear part of the
building added later. Once housed a creamery plant.

*75 Chestnut St Built ¢1929-1933. Two-story, frontal gable, two-family dwelling with storefronts in
ground level; stucco first floor; asbestos shingled upper story; replacement sash.

*76 Chestnut St Built 1875. Two-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with
extended center entrance porch surmounted by pediment; one-and-a-half-story
kitchen ell; scrolled brackets at roofline; friezeband windows; replacement sash;
Queen Anne style porch with turned columns and corner braces spans front facade.
Carriage shed: Frontal gable with raking cornice, frame, c1875.

*77 Chestnut St Built 1882-1883. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with two-story, frontal gable,
main block flanked by different height wings; full returns on main block; turned
brackets at roofline. Built for Francis C. Smith.

Carriage shed: Two-bay, frontal gable with raking cornices, frame, c1880.

*78 Chestnut St Built ¢1840. One-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling;
lower kitchen wing; porch with Tuscan columns and corner braces spans front
facade; two-over-two sash.

*79 Chestnut St Built ¢1880. Frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, main block
with one-and-a-half-story wing and back ell; pedimented window frames with
replacement sash; porch with turned columns and sawtooth detailing; novelty
siding.

Carriage shed: One-and-a-half-story, novelty-sided, frame, c1880.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*80 Chestnut St

*81 Chestnut St

*82 Chestnut St

*83 Chestnut St

*85 Chestnut St

*87 Chestnut St

*88 Chestnut St

*90 Chestnut St

*01 Chestnut St

*92 Chestnut St

Village of Cooperstown

Built 1960. One-story, ranch-style, frame dwelling with shingle siding. N/C

Built 1892. Two-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with shingled upper story and
clapboard first story; recessed front porch spans two bays; octagonal tower with
convex roof in front facade; mostly one-over-one sash. Built by B.F. Murdock.
Carriage shed: One-and-a-half, novelty-sided, frame, c1892.

Built 1852. Frame Gothic Revival style, symmetrical dwelling with frontal main block
flanked by lower steeply gabled wings; later (c1870) two-story ell to rear; large,
decorative vergeboards on main block and wings; two-over-two sash. Used as a
funeral home. Built by C.J. Stillman.

Built 1871. Two-story, square-plan, brick dwelling with blind arches in front facade
and pediment surmounting center bay; frame Italianate center entrance porch;
scrolled brackets at roofline. Built by B.F. or H.K. Murdock.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame, c1871.

Built ¢1875. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with low gabled roof and pediment
surmounting center bay of front facade; keyhole windows in gable ends; bracketed
roofline and small vergeboards on eaves; paired and single sash. Built by B.F.
Murdock, H.K. Murdock, B.M. Cady.

Carriage shed: Two-story frame with paired doors, c1900.

Built ¢1870. Two-story, frame dwelling with frontal gable main block and one-and-
a-half-story, five-bay wing; porch with slender square columns and octagonal caps
spans wing; corner pilasters; lunette window in gable end; six-over-six and
replacement sash; vinyl siding.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, c1960. N/C

Built 1901. Two-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling with hip-on-gable roof and cross-
gabled wing on south side; porch with Tuscan columns on wooden piers spans
front facade; variety of period sash including Queen Anne parlor types; non-historic
back ell used as doctor's office.

Garage: Two-bay, pyramidal-roofed, frame, c1925.

Built 1959. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame motel. N/C

Built c1885. Two-story, L-plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with low cupola and
scrolled brackets at roofline; segmental-arched window frames with two-over-two
sash; wood shingle siding.

Built ¢1900. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with cross gables; shingled gable
ends; porch with paired Tuscan columns spans front facade; dentil course in
cornice.

Barn: Large two-level frame with shingled gable ends converted to motel units. N/C

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*93 Chestnut St

*94 Chestnut St

*95 Chestnut St

*96 Chestnut St

*97 Chestnut St

*98-100 Chestnut St

*99 Chestnut St

*102 Chestnut St

106 Chestnut St

108-110 Chestnut St

113 Chestnut St

Village of Cooperstown

Built 1907. Two-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with shingled gable
ends; one-over-one sash and Queen Anne windows with stained glass insets.

Built c1905. Two-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with higher, hip-
roofed back ell; shingled frontal gable end; one-over-one sash and Queen Anne
parlor types with stained glass uppers; aluminum siding.

Garage: Non-historic, frame, ¢1950. N/C

Built 1890-1909. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with
replacement sash and siding; much historic detail lost.
Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, c1960. N/C

Built 1907. Two-story, three-bay, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with two-story back ell;
gable-roofed dormer with Palladian window in front roof face; modilion block and
dentil course at roofline; porch with Ionic columns spans front facade; mostly one-
over-one sash.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable frame with novelty-siding, c1907.

Built ¢1865. Two-story, three-bay, square plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling; scrolled
brackets at roofline; paired arched window frames with two-over-twos ash; side hall
entrance; asbestos shingle siding.

Built ¢1875. Two-family, frontal gable frame dwelling with two-story main block
and flanking lower two-story, single-bay wings; porches in corners created by
wings; pedimented window frames with six-over-six sash; modilion blocks at
roofline.

Built ¢1950. Single-story, brick commercial building designed as a gas station. N/C

Built ¢1933. Single-story stucco commercial building with brick knee wall; masonry
lighthouse on northeast corner. Complex includes gas station, convenience shop,
and non-historic carwash.

Historic note: This gas station was first the Colonial Beacon Oil Co., which is
probably the reason for the lighthouse. It later became an Esso station.

Built 1955-1956. Single-story, frame commercial building with bracketed roofline.
N/C

Historic note: This building was manufactured by the Ward Cabin Co. in Houlton,
Maine. It was originally log-faced, but has more recently been clapboarded.

Built 1985. Single-story, brick and frame commercial building with mansard roof
sheathed in heavy shingles. N/C

Built 1959. Single-story, masonry and steel frame commercial building designed as a
bowling alley; now used as a grocery store. Substantially enlarged, from
approximately 20,000 sq.ft. to 29,000 sq.ft. in 1993.

‘ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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114 Chestnut St Built c1953. Single-story, masonry gas station with two service bays.

117 Chestnut St Built ¢1890. Single-story, three-bay, brick power station with paired, battened doors

in center front under brick arch flanked by large windows.
Historic note: This appears to have been a power station for the old trolley line
which traveled along NY Route 28 and Chestnut Street.

122 Chestnut St Built ¢1900. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with glazed
sunporch spanning front facade; wood shingle siding; one-over-one sash.
Shed: Small frame gable-roofed, c1900.

126 Chestnut St Built ¢1870. Frame dwelling with two-story, three-bay main block with bracketed
cornice and sidehall entrance porch with scrolled and mansard-roofed, single-story
wing; pedimented window frames with six-over-six and paired four-over-four sash.

130 Chestnut St Built ¢1870. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, center entrance frame dwelling
with deck roof; segmental-arched window frames with two-over-two sash; paired
Italianate doors in segmental arched frame; later gabled dormers in front and side
roof faces; aluminum siding.
Carriage shed: Two-bay, frontal gable frame with period sliding doors, ¢1900.

132 Chestnut St Built c1890. Two-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with elaborate Queen
Anne style porch spanning front and south side; one-over-one sash in square-
headed frames; shingle detail in gable ends.

133 Chestnut St Built 1988. Double-wide prefabricated building.

134 Chestnut St Built c1850; remodeled ¢1900. Wing-and-upright frame dwelling with Greek Revival
style doorframe in upright block; roof appears raised and replaced ¢1900 and
Queen Anne style porch added; six-over-six sash in most openings; two-over-two in
first story public rooms.

135 Chestnut St Built 1975. Trailer home brought to site.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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CHURCH ST

*1 Church St Historic name: Christ Church Rectory

Built 1888. Two-story, rectangular plan Tudor Revival dwelling with brick first story
and shingled second story; pair of half-timbered crossgables in front facade; leaded
glass casement windows set in stone frames in first floor; "gothic" arched sash in
upper story; porches with turned columns and acroteria; single-bay garage attached
to southwest corner, c1950. Architect: James R. Constable; Builder: S.R. Barnes.
Historic note: The rectory is part of the Christ Church complex of buildings, which
occupies land given to the congregation in 1807. The complex includes the church
itself, the St. Agnes chapel, a large churchyard with a lychgate facing River Street, a
1906 parish hall (subsumed by later building in 1969), and the rectory. Until the
addition to the parish hall, all of the Christ Church buildings reflected the Episcopal
taste for styles inspired by medieval buildings, including the Gothic Revival and
Tudor Revival.

11 Church St Built 1988. Two-story, five-bay, center entrance, frame dwelling with attached
garage. N/C
*13 Church St Built 1938. One-and-a-half-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame

dwelling with two gable-roofed dormers in front roof face and flared eaves; same
height back ell; six-over-one sash; aluminum siding. Built by Harris Clark and John
Wedderspoon.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1960. N/C

*15 Church St Built 1838. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
two-story back ell; partial returns; one-over-one sash (early twentieth century
replacements); clapboard siding.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1950. N/C

*17-19 Church St Built in two phases: east portion, c1840; west portion c1860. East portion: One-and-
a-half-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with side hall entrance with
"eared" frame. West portion: One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan,
gable-roofed wing with raking cornice. Matching porches with pierced board
supports and decorative millwork corner braces, c1870.

*25 Church St Name: Presbyterian Church Office
Built ¢1820. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
two-story back ell; six-over-six sash; porch with squared, chamfered columns and
dentil course at roofline on center entrance, c1850.
Historic note: This house once stood at 25 Chestnut, but was moved in 1963 to this
location. Two c1860 frame dwellings were demolished to make way for this
building.

: Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*27 Church St Name: Presbyterian Manse

Built 1883; remodeled 1939 by Frank P. Whiting. Two-story, three-bay, Colonial
Revival style dwelling with paired six-over-six sash in first floor front and blind
arches over parlor windows on west wall; partial returns; garage attached ¢1950.
Built by Charles Root.

Historic note: The previous building on this site was moved to 3 Elm Street.

COOPER PLACE

*11 Cooper P1 Built ¢1915. Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with smaller enclosed frontal
gable porch; small open porch with square column at corner inset in main block;
one-over-one sash; rusticated block foundation.

*17 Cooper P1 Built ¢1955. Single-story, shed-roofed, frame dwelling with novelty siding; glazed
front porch; one-over-one sash.
Garage: Two-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1950.
Historic note: Appears to have been a laundry owned by the Lucia family.

*18 Cooper P1 Built c1915. Single-story, frontal gable frame dwelling with shingle siding; center
entrance; porch with tapered squared columns on block piers spans front facade;
one-over-one sash.

*Cooper Pl; end Built ¢1870. Single-level, gable-roofed frame barn with board-and-batten siding and
bracketed roofline; pedimented window frames with six-over-six and nine-over-six
sash.

Historic note: This was a stables for the Cooper House hotel.

COUNTY HIGHWAY 31 (Co Hwy 31)
110 Co Hwy 31 Built c1975. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with stone-faced first story

and two single-story wings. N/C
Garage: Non-historic with T-111 siding. N/C

116 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1980. Frame, rectangular plan split-level dwelling with band of windows
across front. N/C

128 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1965. Frame, rectangular plan, split-level dwelling with stone-faced and wood
exterior. N/C

136 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1980. One-story, frame dwelling with porch spanning part of the front;
attached stone-faced garage. N/C

142 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1960. One-story, frame dwelling with clapboard siding and attached garage.
N/C

* Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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145 Co Hwy 31 Built c1980. One-story, frame dwelling with stone-faced end walls and attached
garage. N/C

148 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1980. One-story, frame dwelling with shed-roofed porch spanning part of
front facade; attached garage. N/C

154 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1970. One-story, frame dwelling with enclosed porch and clapboard siding.
N/C

DELAWARE ST (South of Beaver St)

The northern portion of Delaware Street was conveyed to the corporation of Cooperstown on the 5th of
March, 1874, by H.F. Phinney. Most of the buildings on the street post-date the conveyance. The southern
portion of Delaware Street was laid out in the early 1880s to extend available residential lots in the village.
By about 1920, the street had achieved its current appearance.

*3 Delaware St Built ¢1915-1920. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
enclosed porch on north side; vertical three-over-one sash, tripled in front parlor.
Garage: Two-bay, novelty-sided, frame, c1940.

*5 Delaware St Built 1882. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with bracketed roofline;
decorative millwork window frames with two-over-two sash; porch with squared,
chamfered columns spans front facade. Built for W.S. Basinger.

*7 Delaware St Built 1891. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with raking cornice; two-over-
two sash; three-sided bay window on front facade.
Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1930.

*9 Delaware St Built ¢1885. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling; porch with squared,
chamfered columns and corner braces set in corner; three-sided bay windows on
south side and front; one-over-one sash; paired Italianate doors; asbestos shingles.
Carriage shed: Two-level, novelty-sided, frame with sliding battened doors, c1885.

*10 Delaware St Built 1908. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with shingle-faced cross gables; one-over-one sash. Built by B.F. Murdock.
Garage: Non-historic frame, c1965. N/C

*11 Delaware St Built c1884. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with novelty siding; shed-
roofed, two-story back ell; porch with Tuscan columns spanning front facade
(c1900); raking cornice; six-over-one and two-over-two sash.
Outbuilding: Non-historic frame workshop at rear of property. N/C

b4 Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*12 Delaware St Built 1900. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with shingle details

in gable end; Queen Anne windows in gable ends; porch with turned columns
across font facade; shed-roofed kitchen ell at rear; two-over-two sash.

Garage: Non-historic two-bay frame, c1970. N/C

Historic note: This house was once virtually identical to #14 next door.

*13 Delaware St Built c1884. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with single-story back ell; two-
over-two sash; asbestos shingles.
Garage: Two-bay frame, c1960. N/C

*14 Delaware St Built 1900. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with non-historic
back ells; porch with turned columns spans front facade; shingles in gable end;
one-over-one sash.

Garage: Non-historic, single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1960. N/C
Historic note: This house was once virtually identical to #12 next door.

*15 Delaware St Built ¢1884. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with replacement sash and
new wood siding; raking cornices; porch with octagonal columns set on knee walls.

*16 Delaware St Built 1896. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with two-story back ell; one-
over-one sash; non-historic porch set in corner; vinyl siding.
Garage: Two-bay, frontal gable, frame garage, c1960. N/C

*17 Delaware St Built ¢1884. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with non-historic enclosed
porch set in corner; one-over-one sash.
Carriage shed: Two-level, novelty-sided, frame with raking cornice, c1884.

*18 Delaware St Built 1890-1910. Two-story, frame dwelling with steep gabled roof; irregular
fenestration; mostly latticed upper sash; two-story back ell; Colonial Revival
detailing; asbestos shingles.

Carriage shed: Two-level, novelty-sided, frame, 1890-1910.

*19 Delaware St Built c1884. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with paired brackets and deep
frieze at roofline; porch with squared, chamfered columns on knee wall spans front
and south side; lower two-story back ell.

Garage: Shed-roofed, novelty-sided, frame, c1910.

*20 Delaware St Built c1896. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with shingles in
gable ends; Queen Anne parlor windows; two-over-two sash otherwise; porch with
turned columns spans front facade; vinyl siding.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1940.

*21 Delaware St Built ¢1884. Two-story, cross-gabled, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with porch (added
1901) supported by turned columns on front and north side; lower two-story back
ell; paired brackets at roofline.

Carriage shed: Two-level frontal gable, frame with shingles and keyhole window in
gable end, c1884.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*22 Delaware St Built 1896. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with porch supported by turned
columns wrapping front and north side; raking cornice; one-over-one sash; asbestos
shingles.

Garage: Single-bay, novelty-sided frame, ¢1940.

*23 Delaware St Built c1890. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross-gabled
rear ell; porch with turned columns and corner braces; two-over-two sash.
Carriage shed: Two-level, frame replicates old one. c1994.

*24 Delaware St Built c1878. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with lower frontal gable block
extending from front facade; porch with turned columns and corner braces set in
corner; two-over-two sash.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1960.

*26 Delaware St Built 1900. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-story
kitchen ell; porch with turned columns spans front facade; shed-roofed porch at
back.

Carriage shed: Two-level, novelty-sided, frame, c1900.

28 Delaware St Built 1888. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-story ell behind;
flat roof has deep cornice and decorative brackets, matched by porch supported by
turned columns set in the L; clapboard siding; one-over-one sash replaces older
ones.

Historic note: Built by George Webster, a contractor, on land bought from Luther 1.
Burditt, an attorney and land speculator.

29 Delaware St Built c1905. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, frame, frontal gable dwelling
with one-story shed-roofed kitchen ell at rear. Second, smaller gable set obliquely
against main gable on front facade. Siding replaced with aluminum and all
windows replaced. Door frame not original; Queen Anne-style porch has been
removed.

30 Delaware St Built 1912. Two-story, four-square type, frame dwelling with pyramidal roof and
one-story kitchen ell at rear; hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan columns spans
front facade; variety of period windows, mostly one-over-one sash, but also Queen
Anne parlor window and oval window in bathroom on second floor; two square-
sided bay windows on south wall; vinyl siding.

Garage: Frame pyramidal-roofed (matches house), ¢1920.

31 Delaware St Built c1890. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frontal gable, frame dwelling
with lower two-story wing on south wall; ell behind. Retains clapboard siding and
two-over-two sash throughout, with a few fixed Queen Anne decorative windows;
wood shingle detail in gable ends, period door; Queen Anne-style porch removed
1998.

: Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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32 Delaware St Built ¢1880. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with full height ell behind; flat-

roofed, open porch set in the L on north side; retains three-sided, single-story bay
window on front facade with paired one-over-one sash above; other sash single
one-over-one, probably replacing older ones; clapboard siding.

34 Delaware St Built 1886. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-story, shed-
roofed kitchen ell behind; non-historic porches replace earlier ones in L and off
back; retains two-over-two sash throughout except for paired one-over-one sash
with decorative window frame in front gable end wall; raking cornice; novelty
siding.

Shed: Non-historic frame. N/C

36 Delaware St Built 1886. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with single-story shed-roofed
kitchen ell behind; enclosed porch with one-over-one windows in L on south side,
€1920; retains two-over-two sash throughout except for paired one-over-one sash
with decorative window frame in front gable end wall; raking cornice; novelty
siding.

37 Delaware St Built 1886. Two-story, three-bay, gable-roofed, frame main block with cross-gable in
front facade; two-story ell behind. Enclosed porches on south and west walls;
retains two-over-two windows in addition to paired one-over-one with decorative
window frame in west and south facades; raking cornice; novelty siding.

38 Delaware St Built 1886. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with two-story back ell; enclosed
porch in L on south wall; retains two-and-two sash throughout except for paired
one-over-one sash with decorative window frame in front gable end wall; aluminum
siding.

Garage: Single-bay frame with pyramidal roof, c1930.

39 Delaware St Built 1886. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-story shed-
roofed back ell, extended (c1990); open porch in corner of L, c1900; retains two-
over-two sash and paired one-over-one with decorative wood frames in front gable
end; raking cornice, novelty siding.

40 Delaware St Built ¢1920. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with gambrel
roof and shed dormers running full depth of building; retains variety of period
windows, mostly multi-light sash and some casements; sidehall entrance has
sidelights and small pedimented overhang drawn from pent roof spanning front
facade; wood shingle siding.

Garage: Frame with wood shingles, c1910.

41 Delaware St Built ¢1970. Single-story, double-wide pre-fabricated dwelling. N/C

» Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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42 Delaware St Built ¢1905. Two-story, rectangular plan frame dwelling; irregular roof with by cross

gables and dormers; porch supported by turned columns with elaborate millwork
brackets and fretwork spans front and part of south wall. Siding replaced with
vinyl except for wood shingle details in gable ends; windows mostly period, include
one-over-one sash and Queen Anne parlor window. Built by Luther Robinson.

43 Delaware St Built c1885. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan frame dwelling with frontal gable
roof; small entrance porch probably replaces early one; retains two-over-two sash;
asbestos shingle siding.

45 Delaware St Built c1885. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling; porch with turned columns

and corner braces spans front facade; retains two-over-two sash; vinyl siding.
Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame with clapboard siding, c1885.

46 Delaware St Built ¢1911. Two-story, four-square plan, frame dwelling with small, one-story ell to
rear and pyramidal roof with deep eaves; hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan
columns spans front facade. Retains wood shingle cladding and period eight-over-
one sash, as well as leaded windows in stair hall and bathroom. Built by Luther
Robinson. Once matched 48 Delaware St.

Garage: Frame, shingled pyramidal roofed, c1910.

48 Delaware St Built c1911. Two-story, four-square plan, frame dwelling with small, one-story ell to
rear and pyramidal roof with deep eaves. Hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan
columns spans front facade. Vinyl sided, but retains period eight-over-one sash, as
well as leaded windows in stair hall and bath. Built by Luther Robinson. Once
matched 46 Delaware St.

Garage: Frame, c1950. N/C

EAGILE ST

Eagle Street was laid out by 1868, the year that the Beers Atlas was drawn, but no house lots were yet
platted. The land on the west side of the street was owned by W.M. Clinton, who may also have owned the
east side as well. Shortly after 1868, house lots were divided off, and by 1903, the street was fully
developed. It was paved in 1928.

*3 Eagle St Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with boxed gutters,
flared eaves, and low gable roof; modilion blocks in cornice; single-story, flat-roofed
back ell; porch with turned columns and corner braces spans three bays;
pedimented window frames; aluminum siding.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, ¢1930.

*4 Eagle St Built ¢1905. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with board-and-batten detail in
gable ends and sawtooth pattern in full returns; raking cornice; Queen Anne porch,
barge boards, and parlor windows; one-over-one sash otherwise.

Garage: Single-bay, pyramidal-roofed, ¢1930.

o Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*5 Eagle St Built c1880. Two-story, cross-gabled, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with two-story, flat-

roofed rear ell; porch with turned columns and corner braces on front and south
sides; vinyl siding.
Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame garage, c1970. N/C

*7 Eagle St Built ¢1875-1879. Two-story, frame dwelling with three-bay, frontal gable main
block with pedimented window frames, two-over-two sash, and side hall entrance;
wing added c1900 with latticed windows. Both blocks have partial returns,
replacement two-over-two sash, and vinyl siding.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frame with flushboard siding, ¢1880.

*8 Eagle St Built ¢1860. Frame dwelling with two-story, three-bay, frontal gable main block with
partial returns and Italianate window in gable end; and one-and-a-half-story, two-
bay, frame building (which appears older) used as a wing; three-sided bay window
added to front of wing and porch spans rest of facade; two-story back ell.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, c1955. N/C

*9 Eagle St Built c1877. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with Italianate
window in gable end; porch with square columns and corner braces spans two
bays and south side.

Garage: Two-bay, pyramidal-roofed, frame, 1925.

*10 Eagle St Built ¢1880. Two-story, three-bay, pyramidal-roofed, square-plan dwelling with non-
historic gable-roofed back ell; Italianate style center entrance porch with squared,
chamfered columns and millwork braces; two-over-two sash.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, novelty-sided, frame, c1940.

*11 Eagle St Built 1871. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with same height
back ell; pedimented window frames with two-over-two sash; side hall entrance.
Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame with shop behind, c1880.
Historic note: This house was built as the Methodist parsonage. At this time, the
Methodist Church stood on Elm Street. In 1902, the house and lot on Eagle Street
and $2,100 were exchanged for the lot at the corner and Chestnut Street and Glen
Avenue, where the current Methodist Church, built in 1903, stands.

*12 Eagle St Built 1880-1883. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with low frontal gable roof
and boxed gutters; single-story back ell; modilion blocks at roofline; porch with
turned columns and corner braces spans front facade; two-over-two sash.
Carriage shed: Single-bay, frontal gable, novelty-sided, frame, c1885.

*13 Eagle St Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with Italianate style
hood over side hall entrance; lower two-story wing and two-story flat-roofed back
ell; two-over-two sash; wood shingle siding.

Carriage shed: Frame with aluminum siding, c1880.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*14 Eagle St

*15 Eagle St

*16 Eagle St

*17 Eagle St

*18 Eagle St

*19 Eagle St

*20 Eagle St

*21 Eagle St

*22 Eagle St

*23 Eagle St

*24 Eagle St

Village of Cooperstown

Built c1880-1883. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with low frontal gable roof,
flared eaves, and boxed gutters; two-story, flat-roofed back ell; modilion blocks at
roofline; two-over-two sash; asbestos shingles.

Built 1875. Frame dwelling with two-story, three-bay main block and one-and-a-
half-story wing; pedimented window frames with two-over-two sash; pedimented
door frame over side hall entrance with paired, double arched light doors; arcaded
porch with squared, chamfered columns spans wing.

Garage: Non-historic frame with board-and-batten siding, ¢1990. N/C

Built 1880-1883. Two-story, three-bay frame dwelling with low frontal gable roof
and boxed gutters; two-story, flat-roofed wing and single-story back ell; modilion
blocks at roofline; two-over-two sash.

Garage: Frame, c1900.

Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with Colonial
Revival style front porch and door frame; two-over-two sash.
Carriage shed: Two-level, novelty-sided, frame, c1880.

Built 1880-1885. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with cross-gabled wing and
same height back ell; low frontal gable roof with flared eaves and boxed gutters;
modilion blocks at roofline; Italianate door with paired, arched lights in side hall
entrance; pedimented window frames with two-over-two sash.

Carriage shed: Novelty-sided, frame, 1880-1885.

Built ¢1880. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with pedimented window
frames and six-over-six sash; partial returns.

Built 1880-1885. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with boxed gutters and
raking cornice; single-story back ell; two-over-two sash; asbestos shingles.
Carriage shed: Frontal gable, novelty-sided, frame, c1885.

Built 1965. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with attached
garage and aluminum siding. N/C

Built 1890. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with shed-roofed back ell;
porch with knee walls in corner; two-over-two sash; aluminum siding.
Garage: Non-historic frame, c1960. N/C

Built ¢1880. Frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-story main block and two-story
wing; enclosed non-historic porch in corner; replacement sash and siding.
Garage: Frontal gable, frame, ¢1930.

Built c1880. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with raking cornice; enclosed
entrance porch (c1900); two-over-two sash.
Garage: Non-historic cinder block, c1980.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*25 Eagle St Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with wing added

¢1900; porch with Tuscan columns spans front and north side; pedimented window
frames in main block; two-over-two sash throughout.
Shed: Non-historic, frame. N/C

*27 Eagle St Built ¢1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with Queen Anne
style front porch; single-story, gable-roofed, back ell; pedimented window frames
upstairs and plain frames down; replacement sash throughout.

28 Eagle St (This property was incorrectly addressed 62 Beaver St in 1980 list)
Built c1870. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-story back
ell; Italianate hood over front entrance; flushboard siding and Italianate molding
detail creates appearance of raking cornice; pedimented window frames upstairs
and plain frames down; six-over-six and six-over-one sash.

ELK ST

*1 Elk St Built 1870. Two-story, three-bay, brick dwelling with polychrome slate mansard
roof; Italianate style porch on front and side with squared, chamfered columns.
Historic note: This house was built for Elizabeth Scriven Clark, though she may
never have occupied it. Its small brick carriage shed faces onto River Street (#56),
and is now converted to a house.

*5 Elk St Built c1825. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with single-story back ell; six-over-six sash; later Italianate style entrance porch with
squared, chamfered columns.

*6 Elk St Built 1894. Two-story, Queen Anne style dwelling with rectangular plan main block
and steep gabled roof pierced by two gable-roofed dormers with shingle siding;
Palladian windows in end gables; porch with spindled balustrade and supported by
Tuscan columns spans front facade; mostly one-over-one sash. Built for Lynn J.
Arnold.
Carriage shed: Two-level frame with clapboard siding and non-historic fenestration,
c1894.

*8 Elk St Built ¢1880. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, mansard-roofed, frame dwelling with
pedimented window frames in upper story; two-over-two sash otherwise; aluminum
siding.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, ¢1930.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*9 Elk St Built 1900. One-story, seven-bay, hip-roofed, frame building designed as a stables

on banked basement; elaborate Georgian Revival detailing includes engaged paired
Tuscan columns framing center entrance and large windows; quoins; cornice with
triglyphs and metopes. Architect: Percy Griffin.

Historic note: F. Ambrose Clark built this horse and carriage stables in 1900. He
was a sport driving enthusiast, a sport popular among wealthy Americans in the late
1800s, though the sport fell in popularity, with increasing numbers of automobiles
and the paving of roads during the early 1900s. Eventually this building became
the Carriage and Harness Museum of the New York State Historical Association,
built around Clark’s collection. The museum closed in 1958. It is now used as
office space for Bassett Hospital.

ELM ST

*1 Elm St Built ¢1810. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
neoclassical door frame around center entrance; two-story back ell; one-over-one
sash.

Garage: Non-historic, frame, c1970. N/C

*2 Elm St Built 1860-1870. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with Greek
Revival door frame hidden by Gothic Revival entrance porch supported by
octagonal columns; three-sided bay window on east side; single-story, gable-roofed
back ell; two-over-two sash.

*3 Elm St Built ¢1820; moved to site from 27 Church Street in 1883. Two-story, three-bay,
rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with paired nine-over-one sash in
front facade; center entrance with porch supported by paired square columns;
brackets at roofline; shingles in gable ends.

Historic note: This house was the Presbyterian manse associated with the
Presbyterian Church on Pioneer Street. It was moved to this site in 1883. The
Otsego Farmer noted that it was remodeled in 1886 by Mr. Scott, who changed the
roof, put on additions, and added a large piazza.

*6 Elm St Built c1820. Two-story, six-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling;
main entrance and door in two-story back ell retain Greek entablatures with dentil
courses; full returns; six-over-six sash.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, ¢1960. N/C

*14 Elm St Built ¢1820. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
back ell; Greek Revival style entablature on center entrance; six-over-six sash; end
chimneys.

2 Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*15 Elm St Built ¢1835. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling

with elaborate Greek Revival style door frame with fretwork pilasters; three back
ells of decreasing height and size; porch spanning two bays on front (c1870); two-
over-two sash.

Garage: Non-historic frame, c1970.

*16 Elm St Built c1883. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-story back
ell; enclosed side porch with pierced board balustrade and square columns (c1900);
three-sided bay window in parlor.

Garage: Frontal gable, frame, c1930.

*17 Elm St Built 1886. Two-story, brick dwelling with irregular plan and roof; stone water table
and raised courses in brick walls; variety of windows include segmental arched
frames and gothic dormers; porch with squared, chamfered columns.

*18 Elm St Built ¢1840. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling;
shed-roofed back ell; partial returns; six-over-six sash and six-light casements in
second floor; vinyl siding.

*19 Elm St Historic name: Baptist Church parsonage
Built ¢1917. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, rectangular plan, frame dwelling
with glazed vestibule porch on side hall entrance; six-over-one sash, tripled in first
floor front; vinyl siding; non-historic attached garage.
Historic note: The Baptist Church's first parsonage was at 46 Susquehanna Avenue.
This lot was traded for that one in 1917.

*21 Elm St Historic name: Baptist Church
Built 1889-1890. Irregular plan, frame church with open center square cupola and
open belltower at northeast corner; cut stone foundation; Eastlake style wood work
remains exposed in tower and at roofline; otherwise vinyl siding. Architect: M.H.
Hubbard.
Historic note: The Baptist congregation built its first church on this site in 1835-
1836. Before this time it shared the Methodist Church, which was at that period
located on the site where the Cooper House hotel, first a seminary, would be built
in 1861. In addition to the main church building, there was also a small Greek
Revival style chapel on the property. In 1889, the Baptists elected to replace their
old church building. They retained M.H. Hubbard of Utica to design the Stick style
church (Hubbard called it Romanesque), which once had a porte-cochere on its
east side, capped by a pointed roof. The old church was bought by E.A. Potter,
who reused the lumber to build a storehouse near the railroad depot for hop
merchants Lane and Brady. This building may still stand on Grove Street. The
chapel was moved next door to the Roman Catholic church, where it stood until
1962, when it was torn down to make way for the new parish hall.

*22 Elm St Built c1840. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with front entrance
porch (c1930) and side porch with knee walls (c1920); two-over-two sash.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*24 Elm St Built c1840. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling

with two-story back ell; Greek Revival door frame and cornice with partial returns;
two-over-two sash.

*26 Elm St Built c1840. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with same height back ell; entrance porch with slender square columns with Gothic
capitals; shed-roofed dormers run full length of roof front and back; two-over-two
sash; wood shingle siding.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, c1980. N/C
Historic note: This dwelling and #26 appear to have matched each other originally.

*28 Elm St Built c1840. One-and-a-half-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with same height back ell; gable dormers break front roofline; two-over-
two sash; end chimneys.

*31 Elm St Historic name: St. Mary's Roman Catholic Church
Built 1867. Frontal gable, brick church with tower (added 1881) centered over main
entrance; Gothic arched windows; brick buttresses; corbel courses on tower;
brackets at roofline. Builder: McCabe Bros.
Rectory: Built 1884-1885. Two-story, mansard-roofed, L-plan, brick dwelling with
Italianate style veranda supported with squared, chamfered columns wrapping front
and side; cut stone lintel and sill blocks; two-over-two sash; bracketed roofline.
Parish Hall: Two-story, brick building. Built 1963. N/C
Historic note: The Roman Catholic parish was organized in 1847, reflecting a
population shift in Cooperstown to a predominantly protestant one to a more
diverse group, including mainly Irish immigrants. The parish built its first church in
1851. This brick church was built in 1867, and early photographs show it standing
near the old Academy building, later moved to 26 Susquehanna Avenue. The
congregation built a new rectory in the Second Empire, or mansard, style in 1884-
1885. The old academy building, apparently used as the rectory, must have been
moved across Susquehanna Avenue to make way for the new one. When the
parish acquired the old Baptist chapel from next door in 1889, a veranda was added
to connect the three buildings. In addition to this large property on Elm Street, the
Roman Catholics established their own cemetery on Hannah's Hill west of the
village in 1862. As the hill was settled, it became called Irish Hill, because of its
inhabitants. While the church continues in use, the parish now has its active burial
ground south of the village on NY 28.

*32 Elm St Built ¢1840. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with center entrance
and extended back roofline; asbestos shingles and replacement sash.
Garage: Non-historic, frame, ¢1950. N/C
Historic note: This house is said to be a barn reused as a dwelling in the early
1800s.

*34-36 Elm St Built ¢1840-1860. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with single-story, flat-roofed ell at northeast corner; partial returns and
deep Greek Revival style frieze; two-over-two sash.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*35 Elm St Built ¢1840. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling

with two-story ell at rear; non-historic cinder block addition (added 1955) to front;
wood shingle siding and two-over-two sash.

*38 Elm St Built c1880. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with porch supported by
Tuscan columns on front and side (added 1910); one-and-a-half-story gable-roofed
back ell; pedimented window frames with two-over-two sash throughout.

Garage: Frontal hip-on-gable roofed, novelty-sided, frame with battened doors,
¢1920.

*40 Elm St Built ¢1880. Frame dwelling with two-story, three-bay, square-plan, flat-roofed main
block with lower two-story wing and back ell; paired brackets at roofline; one-over-
one replacement sash.

Carport: Non-historic carport, c1970. N/C

*41 Elm St Built ¢1880. Two-story, L-plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with bracketed roofline;
replacement sash; glazed sunporch with two-over-two sash (¢1920).
Carriage shed: Frontal gable, shingled, frame, 1880.

*42 Elm St Built c1875. Two-story, three-bay, pyramidal-roofed, frame dwelling with flat-roofed
kitchen ell; bracketed roofline; two-over-two sash in front facade and six-over-six
on sides; glazed front porch (c1910).

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, novelty-sided, frame, c1910.

*43 Elm St Built ¢1840. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with
shed-roofed back ell and porch; partial returns; shingle siding; two-over-two sash in
first floor and six-over-six otherwise.

*45 Elm St Built ¢1892. Single-story, frame dwelling with cross-gabled wing extending from
front facade; shingle siding; nine-over-one sash.

*46 Elm St Built ¢1860. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-story wing;
porch with turned columns and pierced board balustrade spans front facade; Greek
Revival door frame on main entrance and partial returns; six-over-six and two-over-
two sash; vinyl siding.
Carriage shed: Frame, novelty-sided, c1880.

*47-49 Elm St Built 1855. Two-story, five-bay, two-family frame dwelling with Italianate style
porch with squared, chamfered columns framing center entrance; two-over-two
sash.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, c1970. N/C

Historic note: This building was moved to the site in 1867 to house the
Thanksgiving Hospital when it was founded. In 1868, it was enlarged and
remodeled. The hospital sold the building 1883.

’ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*51 Elm St Built c1880. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with non-
historic two-story back addition and attached garage; one-over-one sash; aluminum
siding.

*53 Elm St Incorrectly addressed in 1980 list. See 55 Elm Street.

*54 Elm St Built 1860. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with side hall

entrance; six-over-six sash; shingle siding.
Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame with raking cornice, c1860.

*55 Elm St Built ¢1860. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with sidehall
entrance; partial returns; two-over-two sash; aluminum siding.

*56 Elm St Built ¢1888. Two-story, hip-roofed frame dwelling with shingled cross gables in
front and side; vergeboards in gable ends; porch with turned columns and corner
braces spans front facade; one-and-a-half-story kitchen ell; asbestos shingles.
Garage: Non-historic, gambrel-roofed, frame, c1960. N/C

*57 Elm St Built ¢1840. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with porch spanning three bays; partial returns; two-over-two sash.
Carriage shed: Novelty-sided, frame with nine-over-six and six-over-six sash, c1880.

*58 Elm St Built ¢1905. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with shingled gable ends;
porch with turned columns spans front facade; simple vergeboards; two-over-two
sash; vinyl siding.

Carriage shed: Three-bay, frame with battened, sliding doors, c1905.

*59-61 Elm St Built ¢1840. One-and-a-half-story, two-family, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling; each side three bays wide; three dormer windows in front roof face; non-
historic alterations to each side, including attached garage on #61.

*60 Elm St Built ¢1892. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with side hall
entrance; vergeboard in gable end; porch with turned columns spans front facade;
two-over-two sash.

*62 Elm St Built 1919. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with hip-roofed dormer in front
roof face; porch with Tuscan columns spans front facade; shingled upper story and
clapboards first floor; retains period windows and doors in all openings.

Garage: Gambrel-roofed, frame, c1950. N/C

*63 Elm St Built c1885. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with flat-roofed
kitchen ell; shingled upper story and clapboards first floor; Queen Anne style porch
spans front and side.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable with shingled gable end and keyhole window; new
doors, c1885.

i Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*64 Elm St Built 1919. Four-square-type, frame dwelling with stuccoed first story and shingled
second story; sunporch on west side; mainly six-over-one sash as well as other
period types.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1930.

*65 Elm St Built c1860. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with side hall
entrance; six-over-six sash; Gothic frame in attic windows; aluminum siding.

*67-69 Elm St Built ¢1860. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with matching front and side
porches supported by turned columns and corner braces; two-over-two sash; two-
storied, deep-eaved addition to southwest corner (c1880).

Shed: Frame, single-story, ¢1900.

*71 Elm St Built c1860. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-
story shed-roofed back ell; partial returns; porch with pierced board supports spans
front facade; six-over-six sash; non-historic deck at rear.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame with raking cornices, c1860.

72 Elm St (Incorrectly addressed as Chestnut St corner of Elm in 1980 list) Built 1959. Single-
story, masonry gas station with metal sheathing; two-service bays and office; now
converted to office building.

*73 Elm St Built 1878. Two-story, three-bay, square-plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with lower
two-story back ell; frieze band lozenge windows and brackets in cornice; center
entrance framed by Italianate style porch with squared, chamfered columns;
entrance porch matched by veranda on west side and porch along kitchen ell; two-
over-two sash.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frame reproduces c1875 one that stood on the site, c1995.
Historic note: This house was built by the Bunn family on land bought from the
estate of Elihu Phinney in 1878.

ESTLI AVE

Estli Avenue, meaning literally east meadow, connect the East Lake Road with the Middlefield Center Road.
It developed as a summer estate road in the late nineteenth century.

27 Estli Ave Built 1995. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling. N/C

35 Estli Ave Built 1969-1970. Single-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling. Architect: Irving N.
Palmquist. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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45 Estli Ave Historic name: Estli (1903 Atlas)

Built 1884-1885. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame, Shingle style
dwelling with stucco and half-timbered first level; frontal gable of main block has
shingle detail and ribbon of windows overhung by extension of roof supported by
braces; back addition added as a music room 1892; two single-story ells added to
north side, one non-historic. Full front porch supported by turned columns.
Historic note: Dr. E.P. Fowler first visited Cooperstown for the summer in the early
1880s. He built Estli as a two-story Shingle style house with tower as a summer
homer a few years later. He sold a parcel off the south side of his property to a
friend, Frank Waller, who built Owl's Nest, now called Heathcote. In 1951-1952,
the Hoyts, who then owned the house, lowered the roof seven feet and removed
the tower. The remodeling, however, has not changed its strong Shingle style
appearance.

67 Estli Ave Historic name: Owls Nest (1903 Atlas); Heathcote (since c1938)
Built 1886; remodeled c1920. Three-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with strong
Colonial Revival taste detailing, including a Georgian door frame with arched light
and star tracery, demi-lunettes in gable ends, partial returns, and six-over-six sash.
Carriage shed: Frame with elaborate bargeboard in gable end, c1885.
Garden: Designed, Colonial Revival taste garden with pergola, probably partially
laid out by Ellen Biddle Shipman, who also laid out the Cooper family garden at
Fynmere. Heathcote's garden bears strong resemblance to the Fynmere garden.
€1920.
Historic note: Frank Waller bought this land from E.P.Fowler, who built Estli next
door, and built a large Shingle style house and called it Owl's Nest. Dr. Henry S.F.
Cooper bought it in the 1920s, and remodeled it in the Colonial Revival style. To
avoid confusion with the Roosevelt family's house in Hyde Park, New York, also
called Owl's Nest, the Coopers renamed the house Heathcote for an ancestor.

87 Estli Ave Built ¢1920. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with one-and-a-half-story gable-roofed ell to rear; non-historic garage attached to
ell; house retains clapboards and six-over-six sash.

Single-level carriage barn with three arched openings; paired doors and hipped roof
with wood shingles. A further, single-level ell attached at right angles. 1920

Guest house: "The House in the Woods" Wood-shingled cottage made from a tall
building cut in half laterally.

Note: This property was part of the Fynmere property, now abandoned, and is now
jointly owned with Red Creek Farm.

93 Estli Ave Built c1905. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with stuccoed
exterior; a small frontal gable wing extends from front wall; porch with Tuscan
columns between this and the corner of the main block; retains gabled dormers and
six-over-six sash.

Historic note: This building was part of the Fynmere property, and its finish
matches that of the outbuildings remaining on the latter property.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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Estli Ave; East side Historic name: Fynmere
Garden: Abandoned Colonial Revival taste garden, designed by Ellen Biddle
Shipman, c1914-1920, retains walkways, basic layout, stone walls, and some
plantings.
Garden house: A single-level, stuccoed frame building with arched pass-through in
center. Tuscan columns support central portico, c1920.
Bath house: Small, single-story, stuccoed building near site of old swimming pool.
€1920.
Historic note: Fynmere was built in 1902 with a substantial addition in 1904 by
Charles Platt, who brought Ellen Biddle Shipman with him to design the extensive
gardens. The house was owned by James Fenimore Cooper, grandson of novelist
James Fenimore Cooper. After its owner's death, the house was used as a
retirement home for ministers. The house was demolished in the 1970s, but the
skeleton of the garden remains as do some plantings.

120 Estli Ave Historic name: The Cricket
Built ¢1830; extensively remodeled c1885. One-and-a-half-story, four-bay,
rectangular plan, frame dwelling with gable roof extended in front over entry; a
slightly lower wing extends from south wall; wood shingle; nine-over-six sash; two
gabled dormers in front roof face; most stylistic details and extended roof, c1885.
Garage: Small garage with unusual mansard-roofed upper level. Wood shingles.
Matches house.

FAIR ST

Fair Street was named for the old fairgrounds located at its south end during much of the nineteenth

century. The street developed in sections over time, so that it finally achieved its current course in 1895. By
1915, it had reached the development density still visible today. The 1868 Beers Atlas shows a short street
called Main Street joining Third and Fourth streets (now called Church and Elk streets respectively) and Fair
Street running north from the ruins of Otsego Hall to the lake. The newspaper notes that in 1862, Fair Street
was extended through the old Cooper property, though the atlas doesn't reflect that. In 1873, an extension
through the fairgrounds was proposed, but it wasn't until 1895 that James Bunyan provided the right-of-way.

B Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*10 Fair St Name: Lakefront Motel

Built 1955. Motel complex includes three Moderne buildings:

Two-story, rectangular plan, frame motel building with office on street facade, built
1954. N/C

Two-story, rectangular plan, frame motel building on east side of Fair Street, built
1958. N/C

Single-story, rectangular plan, frame motel building with Moderne roofline and
nautical detailing, 1959. N/C

Marina: Includes mooring docks, an excursion boat ticket office, and a small
masonry lighthouse (c1960) overlooking the lake.

Historic note: This part of Fair Street was developed as a docking area by the 1870s
after the steamboats were launched in earnest in 1871. Period photographs show a
large hotel, numerous docks, and a berth for the steamers. The steamboats stopped
running in 1935, and subsequently the area between Fish Street and Fair Street was
redeveloped by the Zoeller family in the mid-1950s with the current buildings. By
1960, the property had assumed its present appearance.

*19 Fair St Built ¢1840; remodeled ¢1930 in Georgian Revival style; stripped of most detail
subsequently. Two-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling with numerous alterations;
asbestos shingle siding; mostly one-over-one wood sash replacing older sash. N/C
Carriage shed: Small frame with clapboard siding, c1880.

*20 Fair St Historic name: Greystone
Built 1831-1832. Two-story, five-bay, hip-roofed, stone dwelling with two-story
frame back ell; six-over-six sash set in stone window frames with dressed limestone
lintel and sill blocks; Federal-style doorframe with engaged columns; non-historic
open porch on north side.

*28 Fair St Built 1822; enlarged and repaired 1856. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-
roofed, frame dwelling with pediment over center three bays; partial returns; six-
over-six sash; clapboard siding.

Carriage shed: Small frame carriage shed faces onto Hoffman Lane at back of
property, c1820.

*30 Fair St Built 1923. One-and-a-half-story, Dutch Colonial style dwelling with stuccoed first
story, clapboard second story, and tile roof; deep-eaved roof with braces; door
framed by heavy stucco columns and arch; sunporch on south wall.

Garage: Non-historic frame. N/C
Historic note: This property was occupied by the Hoffman House hotel's carriage
shed, which was torn down in the early 1920s.

s Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*32 Fair St Built c1816; remodeled in mid-1800s in Italianate style; remodeled in current

Adamesque Revival taste c1900. Three-story, five-bay, double-pile, brick dwelling
with two-story frame back ell and center entrance; brick piazza on south side added
1895; twelve-over-twelve-sash, elaborate frieze, two-level Federal style doorframe
and fanlight, and oculus in pediment all date to early twentieth century remodeling.
Carriage shed: Frame, c1870.

Historic note: This house was owned and used as an office by Dr. Mary Imogene
Bassett in the final quarter of the nineteenth century. Photographs of the house
during this period show a much deeper eaved roof with brackets, two-over-two
sash, and a much simpler doorframe.

Fair St Historic name: The Cooper Grounds
Name: Cooper Park
Park between Main and Church streets, west of River street, enclosed by elaborate
wrought iron fence. Fair Street continues through the park, passing around a statue
of James Fenimore Cooper (Sculptor: Victor Salvatore, 1940)*. In Cooper Park.
Historic note: This statue stands on the site of Otsego Hall built by William Cooper
in 1789. The Hall occupied a large lot in the center of the newly founded village
and had a clear view north up Otsego Lake. The site had, in turn, been the site of
George Croghan's trading post of elaborate log buildings built in 1769. Croghan
held the 100,000-acre Great Patent on the west and south sides of the lake, but he
lost possession through financial mismanagement. William Cooper bought part of
the patent after the American Revolution, and lived in Cooperstown until his death
in 1809. His son, novelist James Fenimore Cooper, bought Otsego Hall in the mid-
1830s and remodeled it as a Gothic Revival house. The latter also worked to
landscape the grounds with winding paths and trees. After his death and the fire
that destroyed the house, the grounds were abandoned. In the 1890s, the Clark
family’s agent, James Bunyan helped clean up the lot and turn it into a park. The
"Indian Hunter" statue by John Quincy Adams Ward was placed on the site in 1898;
it was moved to Lakefront Park to make way for the Salvatore statue.

*65 Fair St Built 1984. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, center entrance frame dwelling with
extended back roof. N/C

*69 Fair St Name: Christ Church Parish Hall
Built 1906; enlarged 1968. Large two-story, brick building with mansard roof added
in 1968 altered and overpowered historic building. South side retains earlier brick
facade and arched gothic windows. N/C

*70 Fair St Built ¢1880. One-and-a-half-story, frame carriage shed converted to dwelling;
attached garage; board-and-batten upper story; clapboard first story; deep eaves;
variety of replacement sash; addition over garage, c1994.

*71 Fair St Built c1830. Two-story, four bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame dwelling with
"eared" door frame; six-over-six sash; shed-roofed back ell; partial returns.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*72 Fair St

*73 Fair St

*74 Fair St

*75 Fair St

*76 Fair St

*78 Fair St

*85 Fair St

*86 Fair St

*87 Fair St

*88 Fair St

*89 Fair St

*90 Fair St

Village of Cooperstown

Built c1909. One-and-a-half-story, frame, hip-roofed, carriage shed with hip-roofed
dormers breaking roofline, converted to dwelling.

Built c1877. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, mansard-roofed, frame dwelling with
glazed porch on south side; side hall entrance; two-over-two sash; shingle siding.

Built ¢1840; remodeled in Queen Anne Style late 1800s; remodeled to current
Colonial Revival appearance 1937. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-
roofed, frame dwelling with side hall entrance with Federal-style door frame and
sidelights; twelve-over-eight sash on first floor and eight-over-eight sash in upper
story; attached non-historic two-bay garage.

Built ¢1877. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, mansard-roofed, frame dwelling with
same height back ell; porch (c1900) spans front and side; pedimented window
frames in upper story; two-over-two sash.

Built c1840. Two-story, four-bay, two-family, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with back ell; porch with turned columns and corner braces spans front
facade; attached, non-historic two-bay garage added 1960-1961.

Built c1855. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with raking cornice; two "gothic" gables break front roofline; pedimented window
frames; end chimneys; non-historic front door and parlor window added c1955.
Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, novelty-sided, c1930.

Historic note: The 1868 Beers Atlas calls this building the Charity House.

Listed building demolished.

Built 1935. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with
enclosed entrance porch with asymmetrical flared frontal gable; six-over-one sash;
brick chimney next to porch; vinyl siding.

Built 1935. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with clapboard siding; six-over-
one sash; three-sided bay window in front.

Built 1935. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with two-story back ell; six-
over-one sash, paired in front parlor; enclosed entrance porch; vinyl siding.
Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1935.

Built 1920. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with shingled upper story and
clapboard first story; four-over-one-sash; non-historic entrance porch and garage.

Built ¢1924. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with glazed porch spanning
front facade; one-over-one sash; vinyl sided first floor; shingled upper story.
Garage: Frontal gable, single-bay, frame, 1930.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*91 Fair St Built ¢1920. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with eight-over-one sash,

tripled in front; side hall entrance with non-historic porch; clapboard siding.
Garage: Frame, single-bay with hip-on-gable roof, ¢1930.

*92 Fair St Built ¢1920. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with enclosed entrance porch
with braces matching ones at roofline; enclosed porch on south side; six-over-one
sash.

Garage: Non-historic frame, c1970. N/C
Shed: Non-historic frame, c1980. N/C

*03 Fair St Built ¢1916. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with deep eaves;
porch with Tuscan columns spans front facade; Queen Anne parlor windows.
Builder: Lynn Parshall.
Garage: Frame, single-bay with hip-on-gable roof.

*04 Fair St Built ¢1920. Two-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with side hall
entrance; eight-over-eight and eight-over-one sash; vinyl siding and non-historic
attached garage.

*96 Fair St Built ¢1915. One-and-a-half-story, frame bungalow-style dwelling with shingled
upper story and clapboard first story; gable-roofed dormer with six-light casements
and oval window in front roof face; non-historic attached shed-roofed garage.

*98 Fair St Built 1922-1924. One-and-a-half-story, frame bungalow-style dwelling with paired
eight-over-one sash and six-over-one sash; non-historic porch spans front facade;
non-historic addition at rear.

Garage: Non-historic two-bay garage, c1980. N/C

*100 Fair St Built ¢1919. One-and-a-half-story, Dutch Colonial style, frame dwelling with clipped
gambrel roof; braced entrance porch; enclosed porch on south wall; wood shingle
siding; eight-over-eight sash.

Garage: Single-bay, pyramidal-roofed, frame, c1925.
Historic note: The plans for this house came from House Beautiful Magazine.

*102 Fair St Built 1916. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with lunettes
in gable ends; two-story porch on south wall with glazed first story and open
second story; neoclassical entrance frames side hall entrance; partial returns; eight-
over-one sash. Architect: Frank P. Whiting.

Garage: Two-bay, frame with partial returns, ¢1940.

*104 Fair St Built c1913. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with stuccoed first story and clapboard story; squared, tapered columns on Arts and
Crafts style porch; gable-roofed dormer in front roof face. Builder: Charles Root.
Garage: Pyramidal-roofed, frame, ¢1925.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*106 Fair St Built 1929. Two-story, Dutch Colonial, frame dwelling with enclosed center entrance
porch; open porch with Tuscan columns on south side; six-over-one sash, paired in
first floor.

Garage: Three-bay, novelty-sided, frame with sliding three-part doors, c1930.

*108 Fair St Built 1913. Four-square-type, frame dwelling with clapboard first story and shingled
second story; hip-roofed dormer in front roof; paired one-over-one sash and Queen
Anne parlor windows with leaded upper sash; porch with square columns spans
front facade.
Garage: Pyramidal-roofed, frame, c1925.

*110 Fair St Built 1923. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, dwelling with vinyl siding, probably
covering concrete block first story and frame upper story; paired and single one-
over-one sash. Builder: T.W. Chapman.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1923. (Appears to have matched #110)

*112 Fair St Built 1923. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, dwelling with concrete block first
story and clapboard upper story; porch with squared, tapered columns on piers;
one-over-one sash; attached non-historic garage. Builder: T.W. Chapman.

FERNLEIGH DR

Fernleigh Drive was laid out in the 1960s on the east side of the Susquehanna River to create housing for
hospital staff. It occupies part of the park area called Fernleigh-Over, part of the Clark family's Fernleigh
estate on the west side of the river, to which it is linked by a stone foot bridge.

1 Fernleigh Dr Built ¢1975. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular frame dwelling with two gable
dormers and attached garage. N/C

2 Fernleigh Dr Built ¢1980. Two-story, frame dwelling with brick first level and attached garage.
N/C

3 Fernleigh Dr Built ¢1975. Two-story, frame dwelling with colonial taste doorway. N/C

5 Fernleigh Dr Built ¢1975. Two-story, frame dwelling with projecting upper story; clapboard siding
and "colonial" taste doorway. N/C

7 Fernleigh Dr Built ¢1970. Two-story, frame dwelling with brick first story and attached garage.
N/C

9 Fernleigh Dr Built c1980. Two-story, frame dwelling with irregular gable roof matched by offset

irregular gable-roofed garage block; clapboard siding. N/C

11 Fernleigh Dr Built ¢1970. One-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling flanked by two one-story wings,
one an attached garage; three gable dormers and "colonial" taste door frame. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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13 Fernleigh Dr Built ¢1975. One-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling with small wing at rear and two-

bay garage set at right angles to main block. N/C

Fernleigh Apts Built ¢1975. Four courtyard groupings of multiple unit buildings sheathed with
wood shingles; gable roofs and prominent chimneys. N/C

Hannah Lee House  Built 1996. Single-story, frontal gable frame building with Stick style decorative
motif in gable end; flanking wings. N/C

FOREST LN

12 Forest Ln Built ¢1970. One-story, frame dwelling on raised basement with full front porch
facing lake. N/C

16 Forest Ln Built ¢1990. One-story, frame dwelling consisting of three blocks of graduated
height, offset from each other; clapboard siding; attached garage. N/C

22 Forest Ln Built ¢1960. One-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with vinyl siding. N/C

GLEN AVE (NY 28)

Glen Avenue was called Grove Street in the mid-1800s, apparently for a grove of ancient Eastern White Pine
trees standing at the base of the hillside on Cooperstown's western boundary. In a joint effort by Fly Creek
and Cooperstown, the road was extended through the glen created by Willow Brook to join the road over
the hill from Fly Creek. Work began at the west end in 1882 and, apparently from the eastern end in 1887.
The road was renamed to reflect its route through the glen. Until 1887, the route to Fly Creek followed
Main Street up Irish Hill, joining the route now in use at the pond created by a small dam, about a third of
the way up the hill.

*4 Glen Ave Built c1883. Two-story frame dwelling with irregular plan and roof; highly
articulated walls include brick first story and board-and-batten and shingled second
story; porch with Eastlake style details spanning front facade; variety of period of
window frames; non-historic back ell matches older building in scale and detailing.
Garage: One-story, frontal gable frame, c1910. Possibly remodeled.

*6-8 Glen Ave Built 1883. Two-story, frame dwelling with clapboard first story and board-and-
batten second story; variety of Eastlake style porches and highly articulated surfaces;
variety of window frames and sash; wing matching main block added 1892. Built
for N.L. Nelson.

Shed: One-story, novelty-sided, c1910.

*10 Glen Ave One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with partial returns; simple
Greek Revival style entablature over side hall entrance; same height back ell;
replacement sash and siding.

Garage: Non-historic frame, c1970. N/C

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*14 Glen Ave Built c1880. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with clapboarded
first story and shingle second story; board-and-batten siding and shingles in gable
ends; Queen Anne style mill work vergeboards on eaves; two-over-two sash.

*16 Glen Ave Built 1969. One-story, pre-fabricated, frame dwelling with aluminum siding and
attached garage. N/C

*17 Glen Ave Built 1909. Two-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with shed-roofed back
porch; shingle detail and latticed sash in gable end; porch with Tuscan columns
spans front facade.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, ¢1920.

*19 Glen Ave Built 1893. Two-story, frontal gable frame dwelling with shingled gable ends; glazed
porches with turned columns and corner braces, added 1903; variety of sash, mostly
paired one-over-one; later addition to front facade, c1920.

20 Glen Ave Built 1870. Two-story, three-bay, square plan, frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-
story wing; vinyl siding. N/C
Historic note: This house was once an elaborate mansard cottage. It was built by
Henry Phinney for his own use. The little building across from it on Grove Street
(#36) was built as his office. The carriage shed at the back of this property, facing
onto Grove, is now associated with the office property and described with 36 Grove
Street.

21 Glen Ave Historic name: Terrace Cottage
Built 1870. Two-story, rectangular-plan, frame dwelling with flanking wings and
deep-eaved, flared gable roof capped by wrought iron ornament and square, three-
story tower; single-story porch with pierced board balustrade spans full front facade
and wraps east side, supported by square columns with corner brackets; clapboard
siding and four-over-four sash in most windows; segmental arched frames.
Garage: Non-historic frame, ¢1970. N/C
Historic notes: Built by Henry Phinney, this house suffered a fire in 1912 and was
remodeled in its original style, though less exuberantly.

22 Glen Ave Built c1840. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with
gable roof and single-story, shed-roofed ell at rear; pair of gable-roofed dormers in
front face of roof with eight-over-eight sash break roofline; non-historic window in
side elevation. N/C
Historic note: This house appears to have been a barn brought from a house on
Leatherstocking Street and converted to a house ¢1960.

24 Glen Ave Built 1955. Single-story brick garage, remodeled as Credit Union Office, c1995. N/C
Historic note: This was Staffin's Glen Garage.

31 Glen Ave Built ¢1900. Two-story, three-bay, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with cross gable;
decorative wood shingles in gable ends, deep eaves, and decorative rafter ends.

® Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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GROVE ST

In 1860, one of the local newspapers announced that a new street would be opened across land owned by
Henry F. Phinney, linking the Milford Road (NY 28) with property that had belonged to John Woods. The
new road cut out dangerous sharp corners around the newly developing rail depot. The paper noted that it
would be named when the village adopted its new street nomenclature, which must have occurred shortly
thereafter. It was apparently named Grove Street for the grove of ancient white pines described by Susan
Fenimore Cooper in Rural Hours (1850). Earlier, the street now called Glen Avenue was shown as Grove
Street.

6 Grove St Built 1911. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with hip-roofed,
Queen Anne style porch spanning two-thirds of front facade; mostly two-over-two
sash; some replacement windows.

8 Grove St Built ¢1900. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
one-and-a-half-story shed-roofed rear ell; flat-roofed porch with pierced board
supports; mostly two-over-two sash.

Shed (across street): Frontal gable, novelty-sided, frame, c1900.

10 Grove St Built ¢1900. One-and-a-half-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with single-story shed-roofed ell at rear; shed-roofed porch with square,
chamfered columns spans front facade; asbestos shingles; replacement sash.

12 Grove St Built ¢1900. Two-story, three-bay, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with shed-roofed,
one-story ell at rear; narrow, hip-roofed porch with square columns spans front
facade; two-over-two sash.

14 Grove St Built ¢1900. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular, gable-roofed frame main block with
one-and-a-half-story gable-roofed wing; shed-roofed porch with square chamfered
columns spans main block; shingle siding; replacement sash.

Shed: Non-historic shed-roofed, lattice-walled frame. N/C
Shed: Non-historic shingled, frame. N/C

15 Grove St Built ¢1890. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular, gable-roofed frame dwelling with
pedimented entrance porch supported by Tuscan columns; six-over-one sash;
clapboards.

26 Grove St Built 1947. Single-story, concrete block warehouse.

i Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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36 Grove St Built c1873. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling; gable-roofed

entrance porch with simple pierced board supports; clapboard siding and
pedimented window frames. Mostly two-over-two sash with some replacements in
side walls.

Shop: One-and-a-half-level, novelty-sided frontal gable frame with six-over-six sash,
1924.

Garage: Frontal gable, frame with clapboard siding and paired doors, ¢1930.

Barn (across street): Two-story, frontal gable, novelty-sided, frame with shed-roofed
addition on side, ¢1890.

Historic note: This little house was built by Henry Phinney, a prominent
businessman in Cooperstown as his office. It stood across from his mansard-roofed
cottage (20 Glen Avenue) in a pattern of work and home being kept close together,
which was more common in the early 1800s, but was decreasingly so by this
period. The shop building on the same side of the road was built by a plumbing
contractor who bought the office later on and used it as his house. The barn across
the street was associated with 20 Grove Street in Phinney's time, but its paint color
links it with this property today.

45 Grove St Built ¢1955. One-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with clapboard
siding and carport. N/C
Carriage shed: Small frame (converted to a garage), ¢1900.

47 Grove St Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with
gable roof with attached garage. N/C

48 Grove St Historic name: Thanksgiving Hospital; now called Clara Welch Thanksgiving Home
Built 1894-1896. Two-and-a-half-story frame building designed as a hospital joined
to two-story, brick, hipped roof building (built 1908) by two-story, gable-roofed
enclosed passage and open breezeway; flat-roofed porches supported by Tuscan
columns nearly span front of each block; gable-roofed dormers; replacement one-
over-one and nine-over-one sash in main blocks. Vinyl siding throughout hides
brick of north wing.

Garage: Non-historic three-bay, gable-roofed, frame at rear. N/C

Historic note: The Thanksgiving Hospital opened in 1896, filling a gap left in the
village's civic structure left open when the older hospital (located on Elm Street)
closed in 1875 due to lack of funds. The brick nurses' residence opened in 1908.
Three years later, the single-story, Italianate style office from the Sill property on
Chestnut Street was moved to the back of the nurses' residence and opened as a
maternity wing, in memory of Henry Dorr Sill. The hospital closed in 1927 with the
growing popularity of Bassett Hospital, and the building was sold to the Walling
Home for Aged People.

55-57 Grove St Built 1905. Single-story, rectangular plan, commercial building housing three units.
Novelty siding; nearly all openings altered or replaced.
Historic note: This building was part of the sawing and planing mill along the
railroad on Grove Street. During World War II, the building was used as factory for
munitions boxes.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing



United States Department of Interior OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Glimmerglass Historic District

Continuation Sheet Otsego County, New York

Section 7, page 61 Annotated Property List
Village of Cooperstown

56 Grove St Built ¢1890. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with single-story kitchen ell at

rear; enclosed porch set in L; vinyl siding and variety of sash, some replaced; raking
cornice. (Matched #58 next door.)
Garage: Frontal gable vinyl-sided frame, ¢1900; much altered. N/C

58 Grove St Built c1890. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling reused as a business, with long,
open shed at rear; enclosed porch set in L; retains clapboards and raking cornice;
replacement sash. (Matched #56 next door.)

60 Grove St Built ¢1890. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with two-story
ell at rear; hip-roofed porch with turned columns and braces wraps side and front
facade; retains period Italianate door with paired arched lights; retains clapboards
and pedimented window frames with one-over-one or two-over-two sash.

Shed: Single-story, frame, c1950. N/C

62 Grove St Built c1890. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with single-story,
gable-roofed kitchen ell at rear; hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan columns
wraps front and north sides; retains pedimented window frames and period two-
over-two sash in most openings; asphalt shingle siding.

Garage: One-and-a-half-level, gable-roofed, frame at back of property facing onto
Maple St, with asphalt shingles. ¢1920.

63 Grove St Built c1890. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with
mansard roof; "gothic" gable in front facade; shed-roofed porch with square
columns over front entrance; non-historic open porch off side ell; vinyl siding and
many windows replaced, in original openings; gable-dormers in mansard.

Historic note: This dwelling was used as the office of the lumberyard and mill
located here around the turn of the twentieth century.

64 Grove St Built ¢1880. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed dwelling with
pedimented center entrance; hip-roofed porch with Tuscan columns spans front
facade; deep roof eaves with decorative brackets; non-historic single-story ell at
rear; vinyl siding and replacement windows.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, with apartment above matches taste of house.
c1985. N/C

66 Grove St Built c1910. Two-story, square-plan, frame dwelling with pyramidal roof and front
porch supported by Tuscan columns; enclosed shed-roofed porch at rear; some
period diamond pane sash and Queen Anne parlor windows survive in some
openings; asbestos shingles; mostly replacement one-over-one sash.

Garage: Small frame with asphalt shingle siding, c1950. N/C

68 Grove St Built ¢1900. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with shed-roofed,
single-story ell at rear; pedimented entrance porch with Tuscan columns; six-over-
one sash throughout; vinyl siding. Building may have been moved to the site; first
appears in 1915 Sanborn insurance map.

: Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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70 Grove St Built ¢1920. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with single-story
wing and attached garage; enclosed front porch; mostly period sash; vinyl siding.
¢1930.

72 Grove St Built ¢1960. One-story, five-bay, rectangular plan dwelling with aluminum siding.
N/C

78-80 Grove St Built c1850. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable frame dwelling with lower one-and-

a-half-story wing; main block has partial returns, friezeband windows, and late
Victorian entrance porch; wing retains six-over-six sash and porch matching one on
main block. Building moved to site in early twentieth century.

82 Grove St Built c1985. One-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with attached
garage; vinyl and stone-faced cladding. N/C

84 Grove St Built c1963. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with vinyl
siding. N/C

86 Grove St Built c1860. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with lower one-and-

a-half-story wing; deep-eaved roof with modilion blocks in raking cornice; boxed
gutters with flared eaves; variety of windows, most with pedimented frames;
bracketed entrance porch. Once an Italian villa, but alterations have changed
appearance.

Garage: Frontal gable, novelty-sided, single-bay frame, c1920.

88 Grove St Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with later single-
story wing; shed-roofed porch with glazed ends, spans main block; clapboard
siding; variety of sash; pedimented window frames.

Garage: Steep-roofed, novelty-sided, frame, c1920.
Chicken house: Two-level, shed-roofed frame, ¢1920.

90 Grove St Built ¢1900. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with prominent
bargeboard and deep eaves; one-and-a-half-story, gable-roofed wing with
pedimented window frames; replacement vinyl sash.

Garage: Single-bay, frame, c1930.

98 Grove St Built ¢1915. One-and-a-half-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with
clapboards on first story and wood shingles on upper; hip-roofed, enclosed porch;
replacement windows, many in original locations.

Shed: Novelty-sided, frontal gable, frame, c1940.

100 Grove St Built ¢1922. Two-and-a-half-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-
story rear ell and enclosed shed-roofed porch; wood shingle siding; mostly vertical
three-over-one sash, with some others.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1963. N/C

g Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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HIGH STREET

Village of Cooperstown

High Street appears on earlier maps of Cooperstown, but the 911 numbering system has redesignated it as
part of Spring Street. See Spring Street for listings.

HILL ST

Hill Street is in the Irish Hill neighborhood of Cooperstown, which developed on the east side of Hannah's
Hill in the post-Civil War period as a working class area, first inhabited mainly by Irish immigrants.

3 Hill St

4 Hill St

6 Hill St

7 Hill St

10 Hill St

11 Hill St

12 Hill St

15 Hill St

HOFFMAN LN

Built ¢1870. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with single-story, shed-roofed
ell at rear; asbestos shingles; two-over-two sash. Raking cornice; Italianate front
door with paired arched lights.

Garage: Non-historic two-bay, single-story, shed-roofed frame. N/C

Shed: One-and-a-half-story, frame with flushboard siding, c1900.

Built ¢1870. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with single-story, shed-roofed
porch; two-over-two sash in most openings; deep eaves and raking cornice.

Built ¢1970. Split-level Ranch style house with vinyl siding. N/C

Built ¢1890. Two-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with shed-roofed
non-historic porch in L; vinyl siding; replacement sash in pedimented window
frames.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay frame. N/C

Built ¢1970. Single-story, three-bay, aluminum sided, modular house. N/C

Built ¢1890. Two-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frontal gable main block with
single-story wing; vinyl siding; mostly replacement sash.
Garage: Cinder block, ¢1960. N/C

Built c1970. Single-story, vinyl-sided modular house. N/C

Built c1870. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frontal gable, frame dwelling
with partial returns; asphalt shingle siding; two-over-two sash and Italianate
bracketed hood over sidehall entrance.

Garage: Non-historic frame. N/C

Hoffman Lane is named for the Hoffman House, a nineteenth-century resort hotel that stood at the northeast
corner of Hoffman Lane and Main Street. In 1868, the Beers Atlas called the lane Beaver Alley.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*8 Hoffman Ln Built c1840-1880. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame barn, modified

and reconstructed in twentieth century.

Historic note: This horse barn is on property owned by Judge Samuel Nelson. The
building may have been used as a studio and display gallery by artists of the 1920s,
including Bruce Nelson and Marguerite Cockett, who also founded the
Cooperstown Art Association in 1923. Now used as a restaurant.

*10 Hoffman Ln Built 1894. Gambrel-roofed, frame building with Shingle style detailing; rectangular
plan wing extends south from main block.
Historic note: C.R. Hartson built this large Shingle style bottling plant and brewery
in 1894 to brew Hinkley Beer.

LAKE ST (western portion is NY 80, locally called Lake Rd or West Lake Rd)

Lake Street was known as First Street until the village renamed its streets because it was the first village
street coming away from Otsego Lake, the region's most distinctive natural feature. West of the intersection
with Chestnut Street, Lake Street is part of New York State Route 80.

*1 Lake St Historic name: Edgewater
Built 1813; remodeled in Italianate style mid-1800s; remodeled again in Colonial
Revival by Frank P. Whiting 1920. Two-story, five-bay, double-pile, brick dwelling
with raised brick pilaster detail marking the bays; center entrance framed by round,
enclosed, neoclassical porch.
Cottage: One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, brick cottage with gabled dormer
windows; six-over-six sash, ¢1940.
Shed: Frame shed with greenhouse attached, c1950.
Historic note: Isaac Cooper, the fourth son of William Cooper, built Edgewater. The
brick is said to have been made on the site. It was bought by Theodore Keese,
William Cooper's grandson, purchased Edgewater as a summer home in 1834. It
became his year round home in 1836. The house has seen two major remodelings.
In the Victorian era, its exterior was remodeled in the Italianate style. In the early
twentieth century, local architect Frank P. Whiting was hired to return it to its older
appearance, following the taste for early American architecture at the period.

2 Lake St Built 1980. One-story, seven-bay, brick dwelling with attached garage; eight-over-
eight sash.
*8 Lake St Historic name: Glimmerglass Cottage

Built 1873 using two older (c1830) buildings. Two-story, four-bay, frame dwelling
with front porch set under center tower; mansard-roofed; Gothic windows in
mansard; otherwise six-over-six sash.

Historic note: Glimmerglass Cottage was created from two older buildings in 1873,
with the projecting Second Empire Style center entrance porch, deep eave cornices,
and Gothic style dormer windows being added at that time. Mrs. Gaylord ran it as
a summer boarding house from 1873 until the late 1800s.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*12 Lake St Built c1845. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling

with Colonial Revival style center entrance porch with Tuscan columns; two-story
back ell; partial returns; six-over-sash upper story; two-over-two sash lower story;
vinyl siding.

*14 Lake St Built c1835. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
later Italianate remodeling of first floor front facade including Italianate door with
arched paired lights; two-over-two sash; two-story back ell retains nine-over-six
sash.

*17 Lake St Built c1835. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with partial returns; later
single-story shed-roofed wing runs depth building; partial returns and six-over-six
sash on main block.

*Lakefront Park Lakefront Park is a grassy area with a small bandstand and the bronze "Indian
Hunter" statue (Sculptor: John Quincy Adams Ward, 1897) set in a terraced
landscape bordered by Fish Street on the east, Lake Street on the south, and
Pioneer Street on the west.

Historic note: Lakefront Park began as a smaller park set aside for the village's use
in 1902. When the steamboats stopped running in 1935, the park expanded, and
the open-roofed bandstand was added. The "Indian Hunter" statue, which first
stood in the Cooper Grounds, is now here.

*19 Lake St Built c1845. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with Greek Revival
style frieze; full returns; pedimented window in gable end; wood shingles siding.
Carriage shed: Two-level frame with novelty siding and pedimented window
frames, c1870.

*21 Lake St Built 1901. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
center entrance; non-historic shed-roofed porch over entrance; raised basement;
one-over-one sash.

*23 Lake St Built ¢1845. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with side hall
entrance; "eared" door frame; Colonial Revival style porch and one-over-one (c1900)
replacement sash; partial returns; wood shingle siding.

*24 Lake St Built 1804; rear portion raised to two stories 1900. Two-story, three-bay, frontal
gable, frame dwelling with Greek Revival style side hall front entrance; further
additions create irregular plan at rear; full returns.

*25 Lake St Built ¢1845. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with wood
shingle siding; two-story ell to rear; wood shingle siding; two-over-two sash in first
story windows; eight-over-one sash in upper story.

Garage: Pyramidal-roofed, frame, with sliding doors, ¢1920.

*26-28 Lake St Built c1865. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with decorative shingles in gable

ends; two-over-two sash; entrance porch with brackets; wood shingle siding.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*27 Lake St Built 1845. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with replacement

sash; partial returns; non-historic shutters.

*30 Lake St Built 1797. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
Federal-style frieze and partial returns; "eared" door frame and porch with square
columns spans center three bays.

Historic note: This building housed the first Masonic Hall in the village of
Cooperstown, and the vaulted ceiling remains in the upstairs meeting room
remains. The Masons of Cooperstown were installed in Albany in December 1795,
and the first meeting was held at Elihu Phinney's house in March 1796.

*33 Lake St Built 1924. Two-story, three-bay, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with center entrance;
hip-roofed, glazed porch spans front facade; vertical three-over-one sash; hip-roofed
dormer in front roof face; exposed rafter ends. Built by Horace Weeks on site of
George Thayer's steam laundry.

*40 Lake St Historic name: Averell Cottage
Built 1793. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
replacement sash and siding; single-story wings flank main block; partial returns;
dentils in frieze; Gothic Revival porch spans three center bays; non-historic two-bay
garage attached at west end; back addition built 1901.
Landscape: The house lot is retained by a high stone wall surmounted by a wood
fence made of scrolled palings.

*41 Lake St Built ¢1825. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with side hall
entrance; Greek Revival style details include corner pilasters, full returns, engaged
columns and pilasters flank front entrance; six-over-six sash; back ell added 1900.

*43 Lake St Built ¢1840. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with raking cornice;
side hall entrance; lower two-story back ell; six-over-six sash; raised stone
basement; final half story added ¢1900.

Carriage shed: Two-level frame with shed-roofed leanto, c1880.

*46 Lake St Historic name: Hawthorne Cottage (1913)
Built 1853. Two-story, frame dwelling with three-bay, frontal gable main block and
mansard-roofed wing with added upper story (1878); two-story Colonial Revival
portico (1913) with monumental Ionic columns spans main block; six-over-six sash.

*47 Lake St Built ¢1920. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed stone dwelling with same
height back ell; pediment with oculus over center bay; demi-lunettes in gable ends;
partial returns; triglyphs and metopes in frieze; six-over-six sash; slate roof.
Historic note: Built for Edward Severin Clark.

7 Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*50 Lake St Built 1808. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with

differing single-story wing; Federal style details include frieze with triglyphs and
metopes, partial returns, highly developed door frame; nine-over-nine sash; attached
non-historic, two-bay frame garage.

Historic note: Built for Robert Campbell of Cherry Valley.

*55 Lake St Built c1850. Two-story, frame dwelling with wing; "eared" Greek Revival style
entablature surrounds door in wing; wing rebuilt 1910 in the Colonial Revival style,
including porch with paired Tuscan columns spanning wing, oculus windows in
gable ends, tripled sash and six-over-one sash in wing; attached, non-historic
garage.

*56 Lake St Built 1951. Single-story, frame dwelling with central main block and flanking wings
set at acute angles to main block; Georgian-influenced arches over windows
flanking center entrance; entire house one-room deep to provide view of lake from
every room.

Historic note: This frame dwelling, though built two years after the period of
significance, is considered a contributing resource because of its exceptional
architectural significance. It was designed by Frank P. Whiting, one of
Cooperstown's most important architects. Whiting designed numerous Colonial
Revival style buildings and additions in the Glimmerglass Historic District. He
designed this fanciful single-pile building as a family dwelling, and in 1999, is
owned by his daughter Elizabeth Wright. It is built on the site of Glimmerview, a
summer house dating to the nineteenth century.

*57 Lake St Built c1845. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
Greek Revival style entablature surrounding center entrance; two-story back ell;
partial returns; Victorian era front porch spans center three bays; six-over-six sash in
upper story; two-over-two sash in lower story.

Garage: Non-historic two-bay, frame, ¢1980. N/C

*59 Lake St Built 1959. Single-story, frame ranch style dwelling with vertical board siding and
brick knee wall; attached single-bay garage. N/C
Historic note: This house and #61 and 63 stand on the site of The Orchards, a large
house built by J.A. Johnston ¢1900.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*60 Lake St Historic name: O-te-sa-ga Hotel

Built 1909. Large Colonial Revival style brick hotel with H-plan; high gambrel roofs
with stepped end chimneys; variety of bonds used for brickwork; monumental
semi-circular entrance porch on street side; open patio on lake side opens off
dining areas.

Service building: Single-story frame service building, 1999. N/C

*Golf course shop (listed as 2 Nelson Avenue in old NR list): Single-story,
rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame building with wing; clapboard siding and
Neoclassical detailing, c1925.

Leatherstocking Golf Course: Golf course laid out in 1911 and redesigned as an
eighteen-hole course somewhat later. Course uses land once part of the Fenimore
Farm property facing Blackbird Bay and on the west side of West Lake Road (NY
80).

Historic note: The Otesaga Hotel, designed by Percy Griffin, opened in July 1909 to
serve the resort trade. The Clark family underwrote the cost of building the
luxurious new hotel to fill the gap left in accommodations by the loss of the old
Cooper House to fire in 1891. The columns were reputedly the largest wooden
ones in the world when they were made. The golf course replaced an earlier
course on the old Cory farm at the end of Averill Road on Hannah's Hill, which was
laid out ¢1898. The Cooperstown Country Club house is located on the course, but
lies outside the village boundary. It is described at 5748 West Lake Road (NY 80) in
the Otsego portion of the property list.

*61 Lake St Built 1953. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with six-over-six sash; Colonial Revival style center entrance; attached
garage. N/C
Historic note: This house and #59 and 63 stand on the site of The Orchards, a large
house built by J.A. Johnston ¢1900.

*63 Lake St Built 1955. Single-story, stuccoed, rectangular plan, gable-roofed dwelling with
variety of windows. N/C
Garage: Single-bay, c1955. N/C
Historic note: This house and #59 and 61 stand on the site of The Orchards, a large
house built by J.A. Johnston ¢1900.

*65 Lake St Built ¢1950. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed dwelling
with aluminum siding; gable-roofed dormers in front roof face; pedimented porch
over center entrance; attached frontal gable garage.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*67 Lake St Built 1802. Two-story, five-bay, brick, hip-roofed dwelling with frame addition at

rear and further frame back ell; Greek Revival style entablature frames center
entrance; triglyphs and metopes in frieze; porch (1910) spans center three bays; six-
over-six sash.

Historic note: Said to be the second brick house in Cooperstown, this dwelling was
built for John Miller. The newspaper noted enlargements and improvements in
1856 and the back ell being raised to two stories in 1887. In 1910, Frank P. Whiting
was retained to make changes, probably in neoclassical style for which he was
noted.

*81 Lake St Two-story, five-bay, center entrance, frontal gable, frame dwelling with same height
back ell; partial returns; renovated 1914 by Charles F. White with curved bay
windows in parlor and Arts and Crafts style center entrance with pilasters and
curved roof.

Garage: Frame, frontal gable, with large six-over-six sash, ¢1920.

83 Lake St Built c1965. Single-story, L-plan, frame ranch style dwelling with single-bay attached
garage; two brick chimneys. N/C

*84 Lake St Built c1830; moved to site c1883. One-and-a-half-story, gable-roofed, rectangular
plan, frame dwelling with non-historic wing and attached two-bay garage; six-over-
six sash; aluminum siding; gable dormers break front roofline; partial returns;
detailing of center entrance hidden by siding.

85 Lake St Built c1985. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with three-bay main block; attached garage. N/C

87 Lake St Built ¢1985. Single-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling partially brick faced;
attached garage. N/C

*88 Lake St Built 1830. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with partial returns;
six-over-six sash. House appears to have been turned 90 degrees.
Garage: Two-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1960. N/C

89 Lake St Single-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with board-and-batten siding; attached garage.
c1980. N/C
*90 Lake St Built 1826. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, frame dwelling with center entrance;

partial returns; acanthus grilles in frieze band windows; six-over-six sash; later ells
to rear and non-historic chimney on east side.

*92 Lake St Built 1852. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with one-story wing;
partial returns; small porch with slender octagonal columns spans wing; center
entrance in main block; vinyl siding. Builder: Arunah Walradt.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*94 Lake St Built ¢1850; remodeled 1902. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with side hall

entrance surmounted by braced pedimented roof; lower back ell; replacement sash
and siding; paired six-over-six sash in gable end; glazed porch at rear.

Historic note: This building is said to have been a cooper's shop, which Albert
Benton remodeled as a dwelling in 1902.

*98 Lake St Historic name: Cooperstown Country Club
Name: Cooperstown Country Club (also 5748 West Lake Road)
Clubhouse: Built c1911. One-and-a-half-story, irregular plan frame dwelling on high,
banked brick basement sited to overlook lake with large open porches on lakeside
supported by battered square columns; casement windows in lower story openings;
eight-over-twelve sash; lunettes in flared gable ends; original Arts and Crafts
appearance masked by later white paint. Architect: Frank P. Whiting.
Maintenance shed: One-story frame building, c1960. N/C
Landscape: Club house stands in the lower portion of the eighteen-hole golf course
following the contour of Blackbird Bay of Otsego Lake. The upper portion of the
course lies across the road between The Farmers' Museum and Glimmerglen Rd. A
row of large poplar trees lines the drive in front of the clubhouse, and a variety of
young maple and pine trees embellish the golf course. The course itself includes
rock outcrops of the steep landscape on the west side of the road and more rolling
features on the Blackbird Bay side. The old lake road can still be followed on the
bluff overlooking the lake, north of the clubhouse and maintenance shed.

*96 Lake St Built 1977. Two-story, frame dwelling with hipped roof. N/C

105 Lake St Built 1997. Frame wing-and-upright dwelling with attached garage. N/C

*107 Lake St Built 1970. Single-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with attached garage; aluminum
siding. N/C

*109 Lake St Built 1959. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame

dwelling with center entrance; single-story wing. N/C

*111 Lake St Built 1853. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross-gabled wing; three-
sided bay windows on front and side; porch with corner braces in corner; one-over-
one and paired one-over-one sash; aluminum siding.

Shop: Two-level, novelty-sided frame with six-over-six sash, c1900.
Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, c1960.

*113 Lake St Built ¢1900. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with same height back ell; later shed-roofed dormer in front roof face;
pedimented window frames with six-over-six sash; Italianate style door with paired
arched lights; non-historic porches on front and side.

Icehouse: Frame building remodeled as guest house. Built ¢1880.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*123 Lake St

*125 Lake St

*131 Lake St

*133 Lake St

LAKEVIEW DR NORTH

Village of Cooperstown

Built ¢1840. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with offset wing on west side; Victorian style porch with paired slender columns;
partial returns; six-over-six sash; French windows in first floor front opening onto

porch.

Built 1886; moved to site 1952. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling
with porch supported by squared, chamfered columns on front and side; one-over-
one sash.

Historic note: This was the farm manager's house for Fenimore Farm during the
time Edward Clark managed the farm. It went with the large, elaborate Stick style
farm buildings he had built in the 1880s. His nephew Edward Severin Clark
replaced most of these timber buildings with stone ones, and this is one of the few
to have survived the remodeling of the property in 1917.

Moved to 31 Chestnut Street to be reused as the Chamber of Commerce office.

Built ¢1850. One-and-a-half-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with single-story back ell; six-over-six sash; porch (c1920) with square
columns and beadboard railing; millwork trim at eaves on main block.

Historic note: This was part of the Bailey Farm. When Edward Clark bought it in
1894, it gave him ownership of all the lake shore from the village north almost to
Two-Mile Point.

Lakeview Drive North, along with Lakeview Drive South and Locust Lane, are roads laid out in the Lakeland
Shores development begun by the Bowers family on land divided from their Lakelands property at the
northeast corner of the village of Cooperstown in 1956. The first house was a model electric house and was
part of a publicity campaign for entirely electric houses. The development included a beach club with

communal access to the
open today.

4 Lakeview Dr North

lake. By 1963, most of the building lots had been built on, though a few remain

Built 1961. Single-story ranch style frame dwelling with shingle siding and screen
porch. N/C

11 Lakeview Dr North Built 1961. Single-story ranch style frame dwelling with hipped roof; sided
with aluminum and T-111. N/C

16 Lakeview Dr North Built 1962. Split-level frame dwelling with stone facing on lowest level;
irregular gable roof. N/C

19 Lakeview Dr North Built 1960. Single-story frame ranch style dwelling with attached garage and
asbestos shingles. N/C

22 Lakeview Dr North Built ¢1960. Single-story frame ranch style dwelling with deep eaves;
clapboard siding. N/C

¥ Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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25 Lakeview Dr North Built 1961. Single-story frame ranch style dwelling with cross-gabled
entrance; clapboard siding; attached garage. N/C

30 Lakeview Dr North Built c1960. Single-story, L-plan frame dwelling with vinyl siding and deck
facing lake. N/C

37 Lakeview Dr North Built 1959. Single-story L-plan frame dwelling; aluminum siding. c¢1970. N/C

44 Lakeview Dr North Built c1963. Single-story T-plan dwelling with brick and aluminum exterior;
hipped roof; deep eaves; attached garage. N/C

52 Lakeview Dr North Built 1962. Single-story frame ranch style dwelling with cross-gabled
entrance and attached garage; vinyl siding. N/C

56 Lakeview Dr North Built 1960. Single-story frame ranch style dwelling with cross-gabled
entrance and attached garage; brick chimney. N/C

62 Lakeview Dr North Built 1960. Single-story frame ranch style dwelling with attached garage;
asbestos shingles. N/C

63 Lakeview Dr North Built ¢1965. Single-story frame ranch style dwelling with wood shingle
siding. N/C

66 Lakeview Dr North Built c1970. Single-story frame ranch style dwelling with frontal gable

window and deck; attached garage; T-111 siding. N/C

LAKEVIEW DR SOUTH
Lakeview Drive South, along with Lakeview Drive North and Locust Lane, are the roads laid out in the
Lakeland Shores subdivision laid out on the Bowers property at the northeast corner of the village of

Cooperstown in the 1960s. See Lakeview North for more complete description.

6 Lakeview Dr South Built ¢1960. Single-story, ranch style frame dwelling with partially exposed
basement; clapboards. N/C

7 Lakeview Dr South Built c1961. Single-story, ranch style, frame dwelling with partially exposed stone
basement and porches wrapping corners of house. N/C

12 Lakeview Dr South Built ¢1959. Single-story, ranch style, frame dwelling on raised basement; vinyl
siding. N/C

13 Lakeview Dr South Built 1961. Single-story, chalet style, frame dwelling with scalloped trim; shutters
with heart cutouts. N/C

29 Lakeview Dr South Built c1960. Single-story, ranch style, frame dwelling with vinyl siding. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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34 Lakeview Dr South

37 Lakeview Dr South

42 Lakeview Dr South

Village of Cooperstown

Built ¢1980. Single-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with stone facing and wood
siding. N/C
Built c1970. Single-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with aluminum siding. N/C

Built c1965. Single-story, ranch style, brick dwelling with attached garage. N/C

LEATHERSTOCKING ST

Leatherstocking Street was laid out by the late 1860s, but had virtually no buildings on it until after the
arrival of the railroad in 1869. The street rapidly developed in the 1870s, so that by the end of that decade
only a few lots remained open.

*3 Leatherstocking St

*5 Leatherstocking St

*7 Leatherstocking St

*9 Leatherstocking St

*11 Leatherstocking St

*14 Leatherstocking St

Built c1875; doubled in size 1906. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with
Greek Revival style door frame; cross-gabled back ell; partial returns throughout;
six-over-six and two-over-two sash; porch (added 1906) with turned columns and
corner braces spans front facade.

Built 1886. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with raking cornice; paired
windows with one-over-one sash; porch with squared columns set in corner.
Carriage shed: Small frame with roofline matching house, c1886.

Built c1884. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with replacement
sash and siding; non-historic Colonial Revival style front porch; replacement sash
and siding.

Garage: Single-bay, pyramidal-roofed, frame, c1925.

Built 1883. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with flared raking cornices;
Queen Anne style porch (added c1890) with turned columns and corner braces on
front and east side; one-over-one sash; enclosed entrance porch. Built for William
B. Smith.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame with novelty siding, c1930.

Built c1875. Frame dwelling with two-story, three-bay, frontal gable main
block with two cross-gabled wings; Colonial Revival style side hall
entrance; two-over-two sash; vinyl siding.

Carriage shed: Large frame converted to garage and apartments. Has lost
much of its historic integrity. N/C

Built 1870. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with one-
and-a-half-story, three-bay wing with gable dormers breaking roofline;
replacement sash; non-historic front porch.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*15 Leatherstocking St Built ¢1869. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with lower

two-story wing; kitchen ell to rear; Colonial Revival style front entrance
with Tuscan columns; sash with smaller multi-light uppers.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame with board-and-batten siding, ¢1860.
Historic note: May be one of two houses built by J.P. Sill on speculation on
Leatherstocking Street in 1869, which were noted in the newspaper. The
other might have been #19. Both appear in photographs dating c1870 with
no other buildings around them.

*17 Leatherstocking St Built 1916. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with variety of sash
with vertical lights in uppers; porch with squared columns spans front
facade; non-historic deck at rear. Builder: John Wedderspoon; mason: Tom
Chapman; plasterer: Charles Winslow.

Carriage shed: Two-bay, frame with battened, paired doors, c1916.

*18 Leatherstocking St Built c1880. Two-story, two-bay, square-plan, frame dwelling with lower,
two-story offset block; further ells to rear; paired, scrolled brackets at
roofline; two-over-two sash; paired Italianate doors with arched lights;
wood shingled siding.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frame, novelty-sided, c1880.

*19 Leatherstocking St Built c1869. Two-story, frame dwelling with three-bay, frontal gable main
block and gable-roofed wing; partial returns; two-over-two sash; wood
shingle siding; entrance porch, 1894.
Historic note: May be one of two houses built on speculation by J.P. Sill on
Leatherstocking Street in 1869, which were noted in the newspaper. The
other might have been #15. Both appear in photographs dating c1870 with
no other buildings around them.

*20 Leatherstocking St Built c1888. Two-story, L-plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with Queen Anne
style porch with turned columns; vinyl siding hides historic details included
brackets at roofline and heads of window frames; two-over-two sash.

*21 Leatherstocking St Built 1950. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed,
frame dwelling with gable-roofed dormers in front roof face; center
entrance; one-over-one sash. Builder: George Squires. N/C

*22 Leatherstocking St Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, square plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling
with one-story back ell; offset Italianate style porches on side hall entrance
and side; decorative millwork brackets; six-over-six sash; pedimented
window frames; Italianate style paired blind arched doors.

*23 Leatherstocking St Built 1870. Two-story, brick dwelling with three-bay, flat-roofed main block
with lower ell (second story added 1897); scrolled brackets at roofline;
pedimented window frames with two-over-two sash; non-historic porch on
west side. Built by Bates Bros.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame, c1870.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*24 Leatherstocking St Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with raking

cornice; shed-roofed back ell; scrolled brackets on hood over side hall front
entrance; two-over-two sash; asbestos shingle siding.
Shed: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, with novelty siding, c1880.

*26 Leatherstocking St Built 1908. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gambrel roofed frame dwelling with
recessed porch with turned columns on southeast corner; asbestos shingle
siding; one-over-one sash; three-sided bay window on front facade; keyhole
windows in gable ends. Built for Fred Gilbert.

*27 Leatherstocking St Built 1897. Two-story, three-bay, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with bracketed
roofline; lower two-story wing; Italianate style window frames with two-
over-two sash; pedimented door frame. Built by Fayette Houck for Frank
Hotaling.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frame, novelty-sided, c1897.

*28 Leatherstocking St Built ¢1870. Two-story, frame dwelling with irregular plan and roof; porch
with turned columns and corner braces spans front and east side; shingled
Queen Anne style gable ends with vergeboards and stained glass windows.
Garage: Frontal gable, single-bay, frame, c1940.

*29 Leatherstocking St Built ¢1870. Two-story, L-plan, frame dwelling with lower back ell;
segmental arched window frames; paired, scrolled brackets at roofline;
shingled.

*30 Leatherstocking St Built ¢1840; moved to site 1881. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular

plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with Italianate style porch on west side
with pierced board supports and corner braces; six-over-six sash; vinyl
siding.

Shed: Shed-roofed, frame, c1930.

Historic note: This cottage was moved from the new courthouse grounds in
1881, shortly after the new building was opened.

*31 Leatherstocking St Built 1870. Two-story, three-bay, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with segmental
arched door frame over side hall entrance; two-story wing; two-over-two
sash; paired, scrolled brackets at roofline; vinyl siding.

LINDEN AVE

Linden Avenue first appears in the 1903 New Century Atlas. The street apparently first developed as part of
Standard Oil Company of New York's depot alongside the railroad track in Cooperstown. Before Socony left
the area in 1942, the street had already become partially residential too.

8 Linden Ave Built ¢1955. Single-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, pre-cut dwelling with aluminum
siding. N/C
* Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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10 Linden Ave Built c1895. Two-story, L-plan, two-family, frame dwelling with single-story kitchen

ell at rear and porch set in L; decorative wood shingles in gable ends; asbestos
shingles otherwise; mostly replacement sash, excluding Queen Anne parlor
window.

Historic note: This house and #12 may have been part of the Standard Oil Company
of New York complex on this site from the mid-1890s to the late 1920s. Socony
Workers reputedly lived in this building.

11 Linden Ave Built c1950. Single-story, rectangular plan, pre-cut, frame dwelling with lower offset
wing; shingle siding and assorted sash; addition 1956. Architect: Liberty Homes, Bay
City, Michigan; Builders: Ross Young and Wilfrid Johnson. N/C

12 Linden Ave Built ¢1890. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with single-story kitchen ell at
rear and non-historic enclosed porch set in L; Queen Anne parlor window; other
sash replaced.

Garage: Two-bay frame, dated 1946. N/C

Historic note: This house and #10 may have been part of the Standard Oil of New
York complex on this site from the mid-1890s to the late 1920s. The office was
located in this building.

13 Linden Ave Built c1950. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with gable roof
and enclosed center entrance porch; retains eight-over-eight sash and two gable-
roofed dormers (added c1955) in front roof face. Architect: Liberty Homes, Bay City,
Michigan; Built by Ross Young and Wilfrid Johnson. N/C

14 Linden Ave Built ¢1895. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame building with novelty siding with
cinder block addition to front, c1942.
Historic note: Built as bulk tank storage for Standard Oil Company of New York,
which operated a distribution plant on this site from the mid-1890s until the late
1920s. When SOCONY pulled out of Cooperstown in 1942, Taylor's bought the
storage facility and added the cinder block portion.

15 Linden Ave Built 1945-1947. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan dwelling with brick and
stone cladding; front entry porch supported by brick columns.
Garage: Two-bay, flat-roofed frame, c1980. N/C

17 Linden Ave Built 1960-1961. Single-story, three-bay, frontal gable, rectangular plan, cinder block
office building. N/C
Garage: Non-historic three-bay, frame, at rear. N/C

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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20 Linden Ave Name: Otsego County Highway Department

Built ¢1900. Two-story, square plan, frame building with shed roof and two-over-
two windows used as warehouse.

Garage: Eight-bay, non-historic cinder block with gambrel roof. ¢1960. N/C
Shed: Frame, c1900.

Shed: Frame with T-111 siding, c1990. N/C

Office building: Single-story, frame, with vinyl siding, ¢1960. N/C

Vehicle shed: Six-bay frame, ¢1920.

Shed: Novelty-sided frame with shed roof, c1920.

Barn: Seven-bay cinder block, ¢1970. N/C

Barn: Pole-type with corrugated metal siding, c1990. N/C

Salt shed: Gambrel-roofed frame, c1980. N/C

Warehouse: Frame building with corrugated metal siding, ¢1970. N/C

25 Linden Ave Built ¢1920. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with gabled dormers
on sides; porch with square columns spans front facade; aluminum sidings;
replacement sash.

26 Linden Ave Non-historic trailer home. N/C

28 Linden Ave Built ¢1920. Frame dwelling with frontal gable roof and single-story, shed-roofed ell
at rear; hip-roofed porch with tapered square columns spans front facade; retains
variety of non-period sash, mostly one-over-one; vinyl siding. (Once matched #30
Linden Ave.)
Garage: Non-historic frame. N/C

30 Linden Ave Built ¢1920. Frame dwelling with frontal gable roof and single-story ell at rear; hip-
roofed porch spans front facade; variety of sash, mostly replacement one-over-one;
aluminum siding.

Garage: Non-historic frame. N/C

36 Linden Ave Built ¢1920. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with frontal
gable roof and shingle siding; enclosed hip-roofed porch spans front facade; variety
of sash, mostly period.

38 Linden Ave Name: Cooperstown Central School.
Built 1969. Single-story masonry building. Architect: Warren Ashley. N/C

40 Linden Ave Built ¢1920. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with hip-roofed porch
supported by turned columns spanning front facade, probably replacing earlier one;
vinyl siding and replacement windows; cast iron porch railings made by Art
Calhoun, owner.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, with paired doors, c1925.

42-44 Linden Ave Built ¢1900. Single-story, frame commercial building; replacement siding hides
historic appearance. N/C

¢ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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46-48 Linden Ave Built ¢1970. Single-story, frame commercial building. N/C

50 Linden Ave Built c1850. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, rectangular plan main block with
two-story, three-bay wing and single-story; non-historic ell off rear; retains six-over-
six sash throughout; clapboard siding and raking cornices.

Shed: Frame, gambrel-roofed. N/C
Barn: Frame horse barn with novelty siding, c1900.

54 Linden Ave Name: Church of Christ
Built c1965. Single-story, cinder block building. N/C

LOCUST LN
Locust Lane, along with Lakeview Drive North and South, is one of the roads in the Lakeland Shores

subdivision made on the Bowers property at the northeast corner of the village of Cooperstown in the 1960s.
See Lakeview Drive North for more detailed discussion.

1 Locust Ln Built ¢1970. Single-story, ranch style, frame dwelling with hipped roof; aluminum
and T-111 siding. N/C

2 Locust Ln Built 1961. Single-story, ranch style, frame dwelling with asbestos shingles; attached
garage. N/C

5 Locust Ln Built ¢1970. Single-story, ranch style, frame dwelling with clapboards; attached
garage. N/C

. Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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MAIN ST

Village of Cooperstown

When Main Street was first laid out, it as Second Street because it was the second street away from Otsego
Lake, the area's most distinctive natural feature. From the beginning it developed as a commercial and
residential thoroughfare. At the east end, it connected with Chicken Farm Hill Road, the oldest connecting
route between Cooperstown and Cherry Valley. At the west end it intersected the main route south along
the Susquehanna River valley and the route west over the hill to the mill hamlet of Fly Creek.

*1 Main St

*2 Main St

*3 Main St

Historic name: Woodside Hall

Built 1824. Temple-form, stone dwelling with two-story, three-bay main block and
flanking single-story, two-bay wings; side hall entrance in main block with arched
late Federal style doorway; two-story porch with Ionic columns spans main block;
full returns; six-over-six sash; detailing more reminiscent of Federal period than
Greek Revival.

Gatehouse: Two-story, stone gatehouse with cavetto cornice and Gothic window in
upper level, c1840.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frame, c1850.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frame, with cupola ventilator, c1850.

Landscape: This property occupies a raised lot overlooking Main Street as it
descends to the river crossing. A stone retaining wall matching the house and
gatehouse in style sets the house and land off from the road as it curves north as it
passes the property.

Historic note: Judge Eben Morehouse built Woodside Hall in 1824, and continued
adding buildings to the property until he left it in 1836. G. Pomeroy Keese wrote in
the late 1890s that Morehouse was appropriately named because he kept adding
more to his house. In addition the buildings still on this property, Morehouse built
a small Gothic Revival style summer house (now 3 Main Street), which is now
divided off and largely hidden by later renovations. This building was an early
example of the style in Cooperstown. In the Victorian era, the neoclassical porch
was remodeled in the Italianate style, but Walter Stokes, who bought the house in
1895, returned it to the classical appearance it retains today.

Built 1955. Single-story, flat-roofed, frame dwelling on stone foundation of carriage
shed of 4 Main Street. N/C

Built c1830. One-and-a-half-story, frame cottage comprising two blocks with steeply
pitched roofs; later renovation has removed all detailing of its original Gothic
Revival appearance.

Historic note: This house was built as a summer cottage in the Gothic Revival taste
by Judge Eben Morehouse, owner of Woodside Hall (1 Main Street), in the early
1830s. It was an early example of this style, which was never popular in
Cooperstown.

b4 Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*4 Main St Historic name: Mohican Lodge

Built 1884. Two-story, rectangular plan, stone dwelling with back wing; high
peaked roof with three-faceted ends; wood shingled upper story; single-story wing
on east side; open porch with Tuscan columns on lake side.

Shed: Frame with novelty siding, dilapidated, c1940. N/C

Historic note: This house lost prominent Queen Anne details in a 1956 remodeling,
including tall, articulated brick chimneys and a two-story entrance porch.

*8 Main St Historic name: Lakelands
Built 1802-1804. Two-story, five-bay, center entrance, frame dwelling with parapet
at roof; porch with paired Ionic columns span front facade; single-story wing at
northeast corner.
Outbuilding: Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with flushboard siding;
center entrance with Federal-style doorway, c1810.
Historic note: Lakelands was built for the Henry Bowers who held the Gottfried
Miller Patent, which comprised part of the modern day town of Middlefield. Except
for the years 1883-1891, the Bowerses held the property until recently. During that
short period, its owners the Steeres who came from New Orleans, added a mansard
roof. This has since been removed and the original parapet replaced.

*9 Main St Historic name: Riverbrink
Built 1854-1855. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, low-roofed, brick dwelling
on English basement with center entrance; lower, mansard-roofed wing on west
side (mansard added 1880); porch spans front facade; scrolled brackets at roofline.
Boathouse: Gable-roofed, frame at river's edge, renovated 1997.
Historic note: Riverbrink was built using brick salvaged from Otsego Hall, which
burned in 1853. The builder was Seth Field. Until the late 1800s, it had a cupola.

*10 Main St Built 1985. Two-story brick and frame dwelling with irregular plan and roofline.
N/C
Garage: Frame, c1985. N/C

Main Street Bridge Built 1924. Stone bridge with iron railing. Clinton-Sullivan Campaign memorial
markers in stone niches at each end.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*11 Main St Historic name: Pomeroy House

Built 1804. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, stone dwelling with
partial returns; end chimneys; herringbone patterns in stone work and "GAPC 1804"
laid in gable facing River Street; Colonial Revival period neo-Georgian door frame
around center entrance; paired stairs to center entrance added c1900.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame with blind arcade, c1990.

Historic note: Pomeroy House was built by William Cooper as a wedding gift for his
daughter Ann Cooper, when she married George Pomeroy. The house once had a
large, two-story, gable-roofed, frame ell to the rear. The front entrance has changed
at least three times, as it has had two Italianate style doorways, one with a porch,
during the second half of the nineteenth century. The elaborate Georgian Revival
one probably dates to the early 1900s.

*12 Main St Built 1790. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, dwelling with
single-story wing at northwest corner; center entrance porch with octagonal
columns; cast iron lyres in railing on porch; partial returns; six-over-six sash.
Garage: Single-bay, frame, c1960. N/C
Landscape: A large Colonial Revival style garden at rear of house, ¢1920.

Historic note: This house was built by Benjamin Griffin. It was used as an inn from
1796 to 1809.

*13 Main St Historic name: Worthington House
Built 1802; enlarged 1845. Two-story, five-bay, square plan, frame dwelling with
low cupola; corner pilasters with egg-and-dart abacuses; lower two-story back ell;
six-over-six sash; center entrance Greek Revival portico.
Carriage shed: Frame, renovated, c1997.

*14 Main St Historic name: Prentiss Cottage
Built c1800. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
center entrance, porticoed porch; six-over-six sash; shed-roofed addition with raking
cornice at rear; enlarged and improved 1882.

*16 Main St Historic name: Prentiss House
Built 1815. Two-story, three-bay, brick townhouse dwelling with side hall entrance;
Federal style door frame surmounted by arched light; six-over-six sash; three-sided,
three-story bay on east side; shares party wall with 18 Main Street.

*18 Main St Built 1815. Two-story, three-bay, brick townhouse dwelling with side hall entrance;
Federal style door frame surmounted by arched light; six-over-six sash; single-story,
three-bay, wing at west end; shares party wall with 16 Main Street.

Historic note: This house and #16 were built at the same time by the Prentiss family
and General Morrell. Morrell moved west shortly thereafter, selling his house to
William Averell.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*19 Main St Historic name: Otsego County Bank

Built 1831. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, stone bank building with coursed
ashlar walls; porch supported by fluted Doric columns spans front facade;
flushboard tympanum; deep frieze with triglyph and metopes; two-over-two sash on
first floor; stone plaque over center entrance reads "Estates of Edward Clark and
Alfred Corning Clark"; back wing added c1900.

Historic note: This building was built to house the newly charted Otsego County
Bank in 1831. It served as a bank building until 1866, when the bank closed.
Alfred Corning Clark bought the building in 1888, and presented it to the YMCA
with a newly appointed interior. The first floor remained a large open space, while
three rooms were laid out upstairs. In 1896, it became the office of the Clark
Estates, when both Edward and Alfred Corning Clarks estates were being settled.
Ernest Flagg, who also designed the village hall across the street, designed the
single-story office wing at the rear of the building. In 1939, the building was sold
to Leatherstocking Corporation.

*20-22 Main St Historic name: Cooperstown Village Hall
Built 1896-1898. Two-story, five-bay, double-pile stone building with monumental
front porch spanning front facade, supported by Corinthian columns; early
twentieth century addition to back included squash courts, now used as an art
gallery. Architect: Ernest Flagg.
Historic note: The village hall was given by Robert Sterling Clark and Elizabeth
Scriven Clark to the village for use as a library, office building, and village club. It
included large rooms on the ground level, meeting rooms below grade, and an
intact ballroom upstairs. At various times, the hall has housed the Otsego County
Historical Association, early exhibits for The Farmers' Museum and New York State
Historical Association, State Police offices, and the Cooperstown Art Association.
The last continues to house its permanent collection there and host exhibits
throughout the building. The library occupies much of the first floor, and the
village offices remain in the basement area.

*21 Main St Historic name: Alfred Corning Clark Gymnasium
Name: Fetzer-Yawkey Wing, National Baseball Hall of Fame and Museum
Built 1929. Two-story, three-bay, stone building with neo-classical details including
arched, multi-light windows in side elevation, Georgian Revival center entrance
front door, double-hung, multi-light sash. Architect: Frank P. Whiting.
Historic note: The gymnasium was built for the village by the Clark family to
replace an earlier brick gymnasium built in 1889. In 1986, the old gym became part
of the National Baseball Hall of Fame and Museum as the Fetzer-Yawkey wing, and
the Clarks built 2 new gymnasium building south of the Susquehanna River on land
that was part of Iroquois Farm.

*28-40 Main St Name: United States Post Office
Built 1936. Single-story brick, Neoclassical Revival brick building on raised
basement; sandstone pilasters frame center entrance. (This building is included in a
multiple property nomination of New York State post office buildings.)

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*39-43 Main St Historic name: National Baseball Hall of Fame and Museum

Built 1939. Two-story, U-plan, brick Neoclassical style building; wings have frontal
gables; Flemish bond; full returns; modilion blocks at roofline.

Library: Built 1966-1968. Two-story stone building. Architect, Robert Hutchins;
Builder, Nielsson Construction Co. Major additions made 1993, and attached to
museum building at the same period by a glass corridor on stone foundation. N/C
Historic note: The National Baseball Hall of Fame and Museum was opened in 1939
in this purpose-built Colonial Revival building designed by Frank P. Whiting, one of
Cooperstown's most influential twentieth century architects. The original building
was the east wing of the brick portion of the current museum, and a strongly
baroque influenced front facade. This was stripped down considerably when a
wing (now a hyphen) was added in 1956. Harry Zogbaum, who died in 1955, may
have planned the extension and the stripping of baroque details to leave a sparer
facade. In 1968, a second wing matching the footprint of the original building was
added at the west end, and a nineteenth century commercial building demolished
to make way for it.

The museum capitalized on the findings of the 1907 Mills Commission,
which declared the village of Cooperstown to be the birthplace of baseball. This
was one of the three museums opened in the Glimmerglass region by the Clark
family in the 1930s and 1940s to enhance the economy and preserve tourism in the
region.

*47-49 Main St Built 1960. One-story, brick commercial building with vitrine windows in front
facade; center entrance surmounted by pediment. N/C

*50-54 Main St Built c1850. Two-story, frontal gable, frame commercial building with Greek Revival
entablature surrounding center entrance to upper stories flanked by later storefronts;
corner pilasters and full returns; six-over-six sash; vinyl siding.

*60 Main St Historic name: Nancy Williams House
Name: Veterans of Foreign Wars Hall
Built 1796. Two-story, three-bay, brick dwelling with flat roof and later added
Italianate style cornice; arched doorframe surrounds side hall entrance. Reused as
veterans' meeting hall.

*61 Main St Built ¢1850. Three-story, three-bay, brick building with scrolled brackets at cornice
of flat roof; one-over-one sash above; non-historic storefront.

*62 Main St Historic name: Second National Bank Building
Built 1853; facade remodeled 1892. Two-story, stone Richardsonian bank building
with red sandstone details includes arched windows and entrance porch; large
arched window in first floor front facade.
Historic note: This building housed Cooperstown's bank, the Cooperstown Bank,
founded in 1853. Unlike the Otsego County Bank, which was a circulation bank
issuing its own currency, this one was a savings bank. Until it was remodeled in
1892, it featured a single-story Italianate facade. The remodeling followed on the
heels of the building of the new First National Bank across the street in 1891.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*63 Main St Built 1872. Two-story, brick commercial building with cast iron segmental arched

window heads; two-over-two sash; non-historic storefronts on first floor.

*64 Main St Built c1843. Two-story, three-bay, brick commercial building with decorative brick
cornice.
*65-67 Main St Built ¢1800. Three-story, six-bay, frame, two-unit commercial building with paired

frontal gable; six-over-six and later replacement sash; vinyl siding.

*66-70 Main St Built 1835. Three-story, five-bay, brick commercial building with Greek Revival style
center entrance and paired storefront; later cast iron cornice.
Historic note: This building was the home of Judge Samuel Nelson. The storefronts
were added later.

*72-74 Main St Built 1876. Three-story, four-bay, brick commercial building with limestone quoins;
vitrine storefront windows; limestone lintel and sill blocks in upper story; two-over-
two sash; Italianate style cornice with date in center lozenge. Builder: H.M. Hooker

*73 Main St Built 1883. Three-story, four-bay, brick commercial building with Renaissance
Revival style cornice over storefront with vitrine windows; cast iron window heads
and sills on upper stories.

*75-79 Main St Built 1880. Three-story, brick commercial building with cast iron cornice; articulated
parapet; arched windows and blind arcade in third floor; vitrine windows in
storefronts. Architect: H.J. Hardenburgh; Builder: McCabe Brothers.

Historic note: The Eagle Tavern occupied this site until it burned in the fire of 1862,
which decimated much of Main Street between Pioneer and Chestnut streets. Until
the late 1870s, from this corner west was an open park area locally called the
"Goose Patch."

*81 Main St Built 1881. Three-story, three-bay, brick commercial building with cast iron
Italianate cornices at roofline and above storefronts; cast iron window heads and
sills. Builder: McCabe Brothers.

*83 Main St Built 1882. Three-story, three-bay, brick commercial building with cast iron Stick
style cornice at roofline and cast iron cornice above storefronts with non-historic
vitrines; Renaissance Revival window heads and sills. Storefront altered 1960.

*87 Main St Built c1883. Three-story, three-bay, brick commercial building with cast iron
Italianate style cornices at roofline and over storefronts; cast iron Renaissance
Revival window heads.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*88-92 Main St

*91-93 Main St

*96 Main St

*97-99 Main St

*100-102 Main St

*101-103 Main St

*104-108 Main St

*110-114 Main St

*118 Main St

Village of Cooperstown

Historic name: Iron Clad Building

Built 1892. Three-story, seven-bay, brick commercial building with cast iron facade;
Corinthian columns flank center entrance to upper stories and in facade between
windows; arcaded third story. Designed by James Bogardus.

Historic note: This cast iron front was reputedly designed for a New York City
building, but was rejected, and so came to Cooperstown.

Built 1886. Three-story, polychrome brick commercial building with paired
storefronts in first floor; highly articulated front facade; one-over-one sash with
multi-light transoms above; retains historic storefronts. Builder: Smith and Lasher.

Built c1865. Three-story, three-bay, masonry building with coursed ashlar limestone
facade; segmental arched window frames; simple stone cornice at roofline.
Remodeled 1890s. Builder: John Wood.

Historic name: First National Bank Building

Built 1890-1891. Three-story, brick commercial building with irregular plan and roof;
terracotta architectural details; variety of arched windows; tower at northwest corner
in second and third stories; single-story addition to northwest corner added 1909.
Architect: Frank Waller; Builder: John Smith.

Historic note: When it was built the bank took the most westerly and the last of the
"park" lots left open by the fire of 1862.

Built 1931. Single-story masonry commercial building; non-historic facade
renovation has removed all historic detailing. N/C

Historic name: Crist Building

Built 1910. Four-story, brick commercial building with later (c1930) four-story
industrial building behind; bracketed roofline with parapet above; metal casement
windows. Remodeled 1928-1930. Architect: Frank P. Whiting; Builder: Griffiths and
Pierce.

Historic note: This building occupies the site of the Keyes Hotel. This building
housed the Crist Publishing Co. until 1923. It reopened as the Second National
Bank in 1930, while the upper story was later occupied by a garment manufacturer
into the 1950s.

Built ¢1863. Three-story, five-bay, frame commercial building, scrolled brackets at
cornice; non-historic sash and storefronts. Remodeled 1895.

Name: Cory Scott Block

Built 1862. Three-story brick Italianate commercial building with two storefront
units, one retaining cast iron facade with Corinthian columns; cast iron segmental
arched window frame heads and sills; heavy Italianate style cornice.

Built 1908. Three-story, three-bay, commercial building of yellow brick with paired
sash in upper stories; street level storefont retains cast iron columns and vitrine
windows.

o Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*120 Main St

*121 Main St

*131-133 Main St

Village of Cooperstown

Built 1986. Single-story, brick building with mansard roof. N/C

Historic name: Doubleday Field

Built 1939. Single-level steel girder grandstand with concrete sheathing and brick
kneewalls. Decorative iron work done by Norman Calhoun.

Statue: The Sandlot Kid (Sculptor: Victor Salvatore)

Historic name: Bowen Block

Built 1875-1876. Two-unit, two-story, brick commercial building with Italianate style
bracketed cornice at roofline with arches over storefronts; tall narrow windows in
second floor with arched limestone frames; retains historic storefronts.

Historic note: The law firm of Countryman and Bowen built this block. In the early
1900s, #133 housed the ticket office and passenger station of the trolley line. The
ticket office later moved to a purpose-built building at 160 Main Street.

*134 Main St Built ¢1840. Three-story, five-bay, frame commercial block with bracketed cornice;
third story added c1870.

Historic note: This building was owned by George Washington Smith,
Cooperstown's professional photographer from the mid-nineteenth century. The
building survived the fire of 1862, and Smith raised the third story and Italianized
the facade sometime soon after.

*135 Main St Rear. Built 1969. Single-story masonry amusement pavilion. N/C

*136%2 Main St Built 1921. Single-story, brick/cinder block commercial building.

*137 Main St Built 1921. Two-story, brick Moderne theater with center entrance flanked by
storefronts; marquis over center entrance.

*138 Main St Name: Mohican Club
Built 1820. Two-story, three-bay, stone building with coursed ashlar masonry and
cut limestone lintel and sill blocks; arched Federal style door frame on side hall
entrance; two-over-two sash; shingled Queen Anne style dormer protrudes from
front roof (added c1890).

Historic note: This house was built by John Hannay. It became the Mohican Club
in 1893.

*139 Main St Built 1926. Two-story, brick Moderne style commercial building with stepped
parapet at roofline; arcade of five arched windows in second story front; vitrine
windows at street level; arched entrances to storefronts flank vitrines. Built for
Cook's Garage.

*145 Main St Built ¢1825. Two-story, five-bay, frame commercial building with high false parapet
on front facade; Greek Revival style center entrance flanked by storefronts of
different historic periods; clapboard siding; two-over-two sash.

Historic note: Built as a dwelling, this building was turned into a saloon and barber
shop in 1891.
* Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*149 Main St Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, frame commercial building with Italianate style

cornice; two-over-two sash.

*157 Main St Historic name: Schneider Block
Built 1888. Three-story, frame commercial building with facades facing onto Main
and Chestnut streets; mansard roof; period storefronts; two-over-two sash.

*160 Main St Built 1917. Single-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with blind arcade on
front and flushboard siding on front facade; Federal style door frame; twelve-over-
twelve sash; Victorian style porch on east side.

Historic note: This building was built to house the ticket office and waiting room of
the trolley in 1917. The building on the site, the Jordan Cottage, was moved east
and now stands at 18 Chestnut Street.

*162 Main St Built ¢1850. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
Italianate style center entrance (c1888); raking cornice; two-over two sash; banked
basement fronts street; back ell added 1888.

*165-167 Main St Built c1890. Three-story, two-unit, brick commercial building with paired sash in
segmental arched window frames; brick corbel course and parapet at roofline.

*169 Main St Built ¢1880. Two-story, three-bay, frame Italianate commercial building with
bracketed cornice; porch over storefront.

*170 Main St Built 1971. Single-story, frame building with aluminum siding and carport. Architect:
John Sanford; Builder: Phillips Construction Co. N/C

*171 Main St Built 1886. Two-story, two-unit, frame commercial building with Stick style detailing
on front facade; bracketed cornice at roofline; paired doors in second story open
onto a balcony.

Historic note: This was built as a two-unit commercial building by the Otsego
Farmer, one of the village's two newspapers of the period.

*175 Main St Historic name: Susan M. Hughes Block
Built 1886. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame commercial building with Stick style
dormer protruding from front roof face; clapboard siding and raised basement.
Historic note: Built by Susan M. Hughes to house a millinery shop and a bakery.

*180 Main St Built ¢1885; moved to site 1917. Two-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with
replacement one-over-one sash, eaves, and siding; porch with paired Tuscan
columns in one inset; some Queen Anne details remain.

Historic note: Moved to site in 1917 from the site of the new D & H passenger
station built the year before.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*182 Main St Built 1885. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with cross gables and one-

and-a-half-story back ell; decorative shingles in gable ends; sash with unusual multi-
light uppers; entrance porch with punchwork corner braces and turned columns.
Carriage shed: One-and-a-half-level, frame with novelty siding and Gothic gable,
c1885.

Historic note: This house was built for J.A.M. Johnston, who lived here until 1900,
when he sold the building.

*183 Main St Historic name: Sheriff's Residence and County Jail
Built 1874-1875. Two-story, three-bay, square-plan, brick building with concave
mansard roof lined with arched window frames; center entrance with paired doors;
two-over-two sash; veranda with squared chamfered columns spans front facade;
brackets at all rooflines with two-story cut stone, flat-roofed jail wing attached at
rear. Converted to offices 1978.
Carriage shed: Two-level, frame with flushboard siding and cupola, c1875.

*184 Main St Built 1885. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with Queen Anne style
details, including decorative gable ends with shingles, consoles, and floral cutouts;
pediments above windows; four-over-four and replacement sash; entrance porch
with same details as gable ends; non-historic single-story back ell added 1976. Built
by J. Fred Reustle for himself.

*186 Main St Built 1972. One-and-a-half-story, frame, ranch style dwelling with variety of sash;
vinyl siding and brick foundation; porch added 1976. Architect: Paragon
Engineering Company. N/C
Garage: Two-bay, frontal gable, frame, ¢1972. N/C

*187 Main St Historic name: Otsego County Courthouse
Built 1880. Two-story, brick building with rectangular plan and steeply pitched roof
with decorative ironwork on ridge; carved sandstone details; variety of windows
including four stained glass lancets in front facade; porch with polished granite
columns on front facade. Architect: Archimedes Russell; Builders: McCabe Bros. and
S.R. Barnes.
Granite monument commemorating Civil War soldiers, ¢1900.
Historic note: This courthouse replaced an older stone Greek Revival one near the
same site. The Greek Revival courthouse was the third one to serve Otsego
County; the current High Victorian one is the fourth. This building was restored in
1984, both inside and out.

*188 Main St Built 1901. Two-story, frontal gable, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with cross
gables; decorative shingles and Palladian windows in gable ends; porch with
Tuscan columns on piers spans front and east side; one-over-one sash; plain
brackets at rooflines; non-historic carport on west side. Architect: Ernest Hoffman.
Built for Judge A.C. Tennant.

g Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*190 Main St Built 1881. Two-story, hip-roofed, brick dwelling with cross-gabled wings and one-

and-a-half-story back ell; decorative exposed rafter ends; enclosed glazed porch
(c1950) on east side; cut stone sash and lintel blocks; two-over-two sash. Architect:
Charles Newell; Builder: McCabe Brothers.

Carriage shed: One-and-a-half-story, frame with novelty siding and vertical board
detail in "gothic" gable, c1881.

Historic note: This house reuses brick from the old County Clerk's and Surrogate
Offices associated with the old Greek Revival courthouse demolished in 1879.

*192 Main St Built 1885. Two-story, frontal gable, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with cross-
gabled wings; decorative bargeboards on porch and in gable ends; full returns and
deep cornice; one-over-one and paired one-over-one sash. Builder: Barber.

*194 Main St Built 1885. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross-gabled wings;
modilion blocks at rooflines; decorative gable ends with bracket motifs; porch with
turned columns and spindle motifs spans front and east side; one-over-one sash;
aluminum siding.

*196 Main St Built 1912. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gambreled, frame dwelling with recessed
porch supported by Tuscan columns spanning front; one-over-one and paired one-
over-one sash; shingles in gable ends. Moved from Court Street (now gone) in
1967 to make way for parking lot. Built by Luther Robinson, George Decker, and
John Wedderspoon.

*197 Main St Name: Otsego County Office Building
Built 1969. Two-story, L-plan brick office building with paired buttresses. Architect:
Myron Jordan. N/C

*198-200 Main St Historic name: Apple Hill
Built 1800; moved and remodeled 1866. Two-story, three-bay, frame, two-family
dwelling with center entrance porch with paired entrances; Italianate-style doors
and paired one-over-one sash; porches with plain corner brackets and square
columns; plain brackets at rooflines.
Guesthouse: Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling, c1940.
Historic note: This house was built by Richard Cooper, son of William Cooper, and
stood on River Street overlooking the Susquehanna. Edward Clark bought the
property in 1866 and had this house moved to its present location to make way for
Fernleigh. In its former location, Apple Hill was also home to Judge Samuel Nelson
from 1825 to 1828.

*201 Main St Built ¢1898. Two-story, frame dwelling; Queen Anne-style porch wraps front and
side; one-over-one sash; vinyl siding.
Carriage shed: Two-level, frontal gable, frame, c1898.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*202 Main St Built 1893. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with cross-gabled wings; highly

decorative Queen Anne-style porch wraps front and east side of house; variety of
period sash, mostly one-over-one sash. Builder: H.I. Russell, for himself.
Carriage shed: Frame with novelty siding, c1893.

*203 Main St Built 1895. Later two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling (front block added 1902)
with earlier, lower two-story back ell (built 1895); porch with turned columns and
corner braces spans front facade; one-over-one and Queen Anne parlor sash;
aluminum siding.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frontal gable, 1902.

*204 Main St Previously listed as 34%; Nelson Ave
Historic name: D & H Passenger Railroad Station
Built 1916. Single-story, rectangular plan, stone building with deep eaved, braced
roof, with flared gables; eight-over-eight sash; battened doors; large lunettes in
gable ends; shed-roofed dormer windows added 1940s. Architect: Marcus T.
Reynolds.
Historic note: The Clark family built this passenger station to enhance tourists'
entrance to Cooperstown. It ceased being used in 1934.

*205 Main St Built 1901. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with pedimented entrance
porch supported by Tuscan columns; one-over-one sash; asbestos shingles with two
greenhouses, built 1913, at rear. Builder: W.F. Wagner.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, c1990. N/C

*206 Main St Built ¢1875. Two-story, frame commercial building with numerous additions,
mostly frame.
Warehouse: Barrel-vaulted, truss-roofed, frame building with novelty siding, c1950.
N/C
Warehouse: Pole barn with corrugated metal siding, c1960. N/C
Warehouse: Frame and cinder block building, c1960.
Historic note: With the arrival of the railroad in Cooperstown, real estate along its
length was highly desirable. This property began as a mill, built by Edward Clark
to provide local employment. In 1894, it was listed as a flour, feed, wood, and coal
mill run by John Pank, supervised by James Bunyan. By 1903, it was a flour and
feed mill run by W.T. Ashton. In 1922, Bruce Hall bought the property for use as a
lumber yard.

*207 Main St Built 1901. Two-story, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with one-over-one sash; vitrine
windows flank center entrance in first story front facade with greenhouse (1913)
attached at rear.

*209 Main St Built ¢1860. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with Greek Revival
style "eared" side hall entrance; six-over-six sash; vinyl siding; remodeled 1947.
Carriage shed: Frame with flush board siding, ¢1900.

¢ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*211 Main St Built 1923. Single-story, three-bay, hip-roofed, concrete block dwelling with eight-

over-one sash; exposed decorative rafter ends; porch with Tuscan columns spans
front facade. Once was identical to 213 Main Street.

*213 Main St Built 1923. Single-story, three-bay, hip-roofed, concrete block dwelling with eight-
over-one sash; exposed decorative rafter ends; enclosed glazed porch spans front
facade. Once was identical to 211 Main Street.

216 Main St Built c1860. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling, now partly commercial, with
wood shingle siding; lower service ells at rear; porch with Tuscan columns on knee
walls spans front facade; raking cornice; six-over-six sash.

217 Main St Built ¢1878. One-story brick building with historic and non-historic frame additions.
Historic note: This building was once part of a much larger complex called Pioneer
Mills, which included a large three-story frame flour mill and an office at the
southwest corner of Main and Grove streets. It became the Dairymen's League's
cheese factory and fluid milk depot about 1900. In 1901, it housed the Empire
Cheese Factory; two years later it was the International Cheese Co. About 1930, it
was used by Borden's.

218 Main St Built c1875. Two-story, six-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame, two-family
dwelling with vinyl siding and replacement sash. Now houses businesses on first
floor.

222 Main St Built 1884. Two-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan frame dwelling with center

"gothic" gable and variety of period and replacement sash; wood shingle siding.
Built for Alfred Jackson.

245 Main St Built ¢1900. Two-and-a-half-story, three-bay, frontal gable, rectangular plan, frame
dwelling with two-story, gable-roofed back ell; several porches, including enclosed
porch wrapping front facade; main block retains two-over-two sash; others
replaced.

Hop house: Large two-and-a-half-level frame building with vertical board siding and
sliding doors, c1880.

Main St Historic name: Our Lady of the Lake Cemetery
Cemetery laid out c1870 by the Roman Catholic parish in Cooperstown facing onto
Main Street on the side of Hannah's, or Irish, Hill. Retains a variety of burial stones
dating from the mid-1800s to the mid-1900s. The cemetery is no longer used for
interments.

270 Main St Built ¢1900. Two-story, three-bay, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with single-story,
shed-roofed ell at rear; shed-roofed dormers in front face of roof; variety of period
windows.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1970. N/C

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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274 Main St Built ¢1900. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with shingle
siding; "gothic gable" in front roof face; deep eaves and frieze; enclosed shed-
roofed entrance porch. Shingle siding. Replacement sash.

Garage: Single-bay, novelty-sided with six-over-six sash, c1940.

277 Main St Built 1951. One-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
entrance porch set under extended front roof; banked foundation; aluminum siding.
N/C

278 Main St Built c1870. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with hipped roof and one-and-a-

half-story wing; main block retains center entrance flanked by three-sided bay
windows on coursed ashlar foundations; deep eaves and friezes at rooflines; mostly
two-over-two sash; asbestos shingle siding.

279 Main St Built 1949. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with enclosed,
shed-roofed entrance porch; clapboard siding; banked foundation.

MAPLE ST

Maple Street was laid out in the early 1900s, and subdivision for village housing began a little later. The
land had been part of the Cooper House hotel's ten-acre lot, which had earlier been part of the financially
unsuccessful Cooperstown Seminary. Builder George Flynn appears to have built at least thirteen of the
houses on Maple Street, most of which are four square types.

2-4 Maple St Built ¢1870 as a hop kiln; converted to two-family house ¢1900. Two-story, six-bay,
rectangular plan, frame two-family dwelling with a hip-roofed porch supported by
turned columns spanning center third of facade; vinyl siding and period one-over-
one sash in original locations. Conversion done by George Flynn.

6 Maple St Built ¢1909-1915. Two-and-a-half-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling
with frontal gable roof and hip-roofed porch supported by paired Tuscan columns
wrapping front facade and north wall; decorative wood shingles in gable ends and
on porch wall; retains variety of windows, mostly period, including one Queen
Anne parlor type.

8 Maple St Built ¢1909-1915. Four-square-type frame dwelling with hipped roof; clapboard first
story and shingled second story; hip-roofed porch with Tuscan columns; gable
dormer in front roof face.

Garage: Non-historic frame. c1984.

10 Maple St Built c1913. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with cross-gabled
gambrel roof and single-story ell at rear; hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan
columns spans front facade; aluminum siding and one-over-one sash, many paired.
Garage: Non-historic clapboard frame. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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12 Maple St Built ¢1909-1915. Two-and-a-half-story, two-bay rectangular plan, frontal gable

dwelling with concrete block first story and frame upper story; two-story ell at rear
and hip-roofed porch with non-historic supports spanning front facade; aluminum
siding.

Garage: Non-historic garage with T-111 siding. N/C

14 Maple St Built 1911. Two-and-a-half-story, two-bay, frontal gable frame dwelling with cross
gabled wing and single-story ell at rear and porch spanning front facade; wood
shingle siding and variety of period sash. Builder: George Flynn.

Garage: Frontal gable frame with novelty siding and paired doors, c1920.

16 Maple St Built ¢1910. Four-square-type, frame dwelling with pyramidal roof and hip-roofed
porch supported by square columns; retains wood shingles on upper story,
clapboard first story; one-over-one sash and Queen Anne parlor window in front
facade; hip-roofed, bay window on side.

Garage: Non-historic frame. N/C

18 Maple St Built ¢1900. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with gable roof
and single-story ell at rear; hip-roofed porch supported by Tuscan columns spans
front facade; wood shingle cladding; retains one-over-one sash in most openings
and Queen Anne parlor window in front facade.

Garage: Frame with novelty siding, c1930.

20 Maple St Built ¢1915. Frontal gable four-square-type frame dwelling with hip-roofed porch
supported by square columns spanning front facade; retains clapboard siding with
wood shingle detail in gable end and porch; clapboards on main block; mostly one-
over-one sash.

Shed: Gable-roofed frame with novelty siding. ¢1940. N/C

22 Maple St Built ¢1910. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with screened porch set under extended roof spanning front facade;
retains clapboard siding and wood shingle details in gable ends and on large, gable-
roofed dormer in center front; Queen Anne parlor windows.

Garage: Frame with novelty siding, c1930.

24 Maple St Built ¢1928. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with gable roof;
screened side porch and hip-roofed porch over sidehall entrance; full returns and
clapboard siding.

26 Maple St Built ¢1900; moved to site. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, center entrance,

rectangular plan, frame dwelling with gable roof pierced by dormers in front face;
single-story ell with shed roof at rear; replacement sash throughout, paired on either
side of entrance; pedimented entrance porch; aluminum siding.

Garage: Two-bay frame, c1940.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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28 Maple St Built c1915. Four-square-type, frame dwelling with pyramidal roof and hip-roofed,

enclosed porch spanning front facade; some period six-over-one sash in original
openings; retains shingled second floor; clapboard first floor; gable-roofed entrance
with brackets to basement.

30 Maple St Built ¢1915. Four-square-type, frame dwelling with pyramidal roof and hip-roofed
porch supported by square columns spanning front facade; retains clapboard siding
on first story and shingles on second; retains variety of period sash.

Garage: Gable-roofed frame with vinyl siding, c1925.

32 Maple St Built ¢1950. Single-story, four-bay, gable-roofed dwelling. N/C
Garage: Two-bay frame with gable roof and shingled siding, c1950. N/C

34 Maple St Built ¢1925. One-and-a-half-story, side hall entrance bungalow with clapboard
siding and hip-roofed dormer window in front face of hipped roof; porch spanning
front facade supported by tapered, squared columns; period garage recessed under
porch; period sash and casements in all openings.

MILL ST

Mill Street is named for the mill that stood at its intersection with the Susquehanna River during the first
three-quarters of the nineteenth century. The present dam, built in the 1930s to create head for the village
water system, occupies much the same position as the old mill dam. Thus the pond above the current dam
occupies much the same position as the millpond.

*1 Mill St Demolished 1991 for the new clinic building at Bassett Hospital.
*3 Mill St Demolished 1991 for the new clinic building at Bassett Hospital.
Mill St Name: Cooperstown Water Department

Built 1879. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, brick building with
segmental arched window frames; pumphouse addition perpendicular to main
block added 1896 as boiler house; entire building parged and windows replaced
later.

Dam: Concrete dam a few yards downstream from bridge crossing built to provide
water to drive the old village water system. c1935.

*Mill St Bridge Replaced listed 1887 Pratt through truss bridge in 1991 with non-historic span. N/C

12 Mill St Built ¢1840. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
two-story back ell and further single-story wing added to that, with non-historic
garage attached; partial returns on main block and back ell; retains two-over-two
sash throughout; three-sided bay window on sidewall; non-historic pedimented
entry porch and asbestos shingle siding; back ell ¢1870.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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14 Mill St Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, mansard-roofed, frame dwelling with

vinyl siding and attached garage. N/C

16 Mill St Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling. N/C
Garage: Single-bay, frame, ¢1960. N/C

18 Mill St Built ¢1950. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with cross-
gabled entrance porch. N/C
Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1960. N/C

22 Mill St Built ¢1900. Two-and-a-half-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-
story back ell; full-front porch supported by Ionic columns; clapboard siding with
shingle detail in gable ends; one-over-one sash and Queen Anne parlor windows.
Carriage shed: Two-level frame with period doors and windows, ¢1900.

24 Mill St Built c1860. One-and-a-half-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
main block with same height, gable-roofed wing; wing has two-level, frontal gable
porch (c1910) supported by Tuscan columns; aluminum siding and replacement
windows.

Garage: Frame. N/C

25 Mill St Built ¢1980. Two-story, rectangular plan, vinyl sided, frame dwelling with attached
garage. N/C
28 Mill St Built ¢1900. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with single-

story, shed-roofed ell off rear on raised basement; retains 1900 pedimented entry
porch with square, tapered columns, six-over-six sash, and louvered shutters.
Shop: One-story, frontal gable workshop with chimney and paired, battened doors,
€1950. N/C

Shed: One-story, gable-roofed, frame, c1900.

NELSON AVE

Nelson Avenue, located on the west side of the village, north of Main Street and nestled at the base of
Hannah's Hill, was opened by Erastus F. Beadle, originator of the dime novel, in 1882. It developed as a
suburban street with large lots and elaborate late Victorian houses. It was named for Judge Samuel Nelson,

a Cooperstown native who served as a Supreme Court justice in the mid-1800s.

*1 Nelson Ave Demolished. This and #8 and 10 Nelson Avenue were demolished to make way for
a single service building for the Otesaga Hotel 1998-1999.

*2 Nelson Ave Part of the Otesaga Hotel property. Described at 60 Lake Street.

*8 Nelson Ave Demolished. This building and #1 and 8 Nelson Avenue were demolished to make
way for a single service building for the Otesaga Hotel 1998-1999.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing



United States Department of Interior OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Glimmerglass Historic District

Continuation Sheet Otsego County, New York

Section 7, page 96 Annotated Property List
Village of Cooperstown

*10 Nelson Ave Demolished. This building and #1 and 8 Nelson Avenue were demolished to make

way for a single service building for the Otesaga Hotel 1998-1999.

*20 Nelson Ave Built 1886. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with slightly flared shingled upper
story; two-story back ell with simpler details; porch with turned columns spans part
of front facade and part of north side; two-over-two sash. Built for William Crisler
by Smith and Lasher, masons; Peleg Smith, carpenter.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame, c1886.

*22 Nelson Ave Historic name: Westerly
Built 1932. Two-story, four-bay, frame dwelling with back ell and lower wing over
garage; stone single-story wing on south side with stone facing extending into main
block; six-over-six sash. Architect: Frank P. Whiting.

*23 Nelson Ave Built 1939. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with gable dormers; six-over-six and eight-over-eight sash; Colonial Revival
style details; aluminum siding; attached garage. Builder: Wilbur Parker for G.
Lippitt.

*24 Nelson Ave Built ¢1950; large addition overwhelms original building. Two-story, frontal gable
frame dwelling with center entrance in side wall; clapboard siding; six-over-six sash;
attached garage.

Historic note: This house and #26 occupy the site of the Templeton Lodge, a frame
resort hotel, named for Cooper's village in 7he Pioneers.

*25 Nelson Ave Built 1910. Large two-story, four-square-type, frame dwelling with beadboard frieze
and deep eaves; pyramidal roof; porch with Tuscan columns spans front facade;
eight-over-eight sash; paired and single eight-light casements. Built for Eugene
Stocker.

Garage: Pyramidal-roofed, frame, two-bay, c1910. Matches house.

*26 Nelson Ave Built 1942. One-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling;
small enclosed porch under partially extended roof.
Historic note: This house and #24 occupy the site of the Templeton Lodge, a frame
resort hotel, named for Cooper’s village in 7he Pioneers.

*27 Nelson Ave Built 1891. Two-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross gables;
raking cornice; sash with complicated light design in uppers; large triple window
projects from gable end; braces at roofline. Built by C.L. Root for E.F. Beadle.

*28 Nelson Ave Built 1913. One-and-a-half-story bungalow with shed-roofed dormer spanning front
roof face; glazed porch (added 1939) with stone piers spans front facade; shingled;
six-over-six sash and nine-light casements. Builder D.H. Willsey.

Garage: Two-bay, frame. Matches house in style and detailing. Built 1929.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing



United States Department of Interior OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Glimmerglass Historic District

Continuation Sheet Otsego County, New York

Section 7, page 97 Annotated Property List
Village of Cooperstown

*29 Nelson Ave Built ¢1891. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross gables; small

entrance porch with turned columns; twelve-over-one sash and multi-light Queen
Anne windows; aluminum siding. Built by C.L. Root for E.F. Beadle.

*30 Nelson Ave Built 1910. Two-story, three-bay, hip-roofed stucco dwelling with deep eaves; center
entrance with neoclassical doorframe; enclosed porch on north side; paired and
tripled sash. Built on speculation for Eugene Stocker.

Garage: Frontal gable, frame, novelty siding, c1960. N/C

*31 Nelson Ave Built 1886. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with irregular cross-gabled
roofline; porch with Tuscan columns spans front and north side; north wing added
1911 to make a two-family house; one-over-one sash and Queen Anne parlor type;
porte-cochere on south side. Builder: H.K Bowdish as his home and business
location; wing added by Ambrose Shipman to make a two-generation house.

*32 Nelson Ave Built 1911. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with cross-gabled roof; Palladian
window in gable ends; porch with paired Tuscan columns spans front facade; vinyl
siding and some sash replaced.

Garage: Frontal gable, frame. N/C

*33 Nelson Ave Built 1886. Two-story, pyramidal-roofed, square plan, frame dwelling with
decorative shingles on upper story; sash with multi-light uppers; side hall entrance
with pedimented porch; non-historic attached garage. Built for E.F. Beadle.

*34 Nelson Ave Built 1920. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with hip-on-gable roof; latticed
sash throughout; braced roofline; pediment over center entrance; aluminum siding
and non-historic window heads with dentils; non-historic balcony and door in
upper story.

Shed: Frame shed, c1940.

Historic note: This is reputedly the first pre-fabricated house built in Cooperstown.
It was built by Thomas Chapman and the Geiger-Crist Co. for Mrs. Della Thompson,
editor of Today's Housewife, as a laboratory to test modern appliances, devices, and
recipes.

*34Y, Nelson Ave See 204 Main St

*35 Nelson Ave Built 1913. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with paired shed-roofed dormers in front roof face; stuccoed upper story and
clapboard first story; tripled sash in front facade, eight-over-ones flanked by four-
over-ones; center entrance porch with pedimented roof; glazed porch on north side.
Built for W.W. Hovey.

Garage: Single-bay matching house in style and form, c1931.

*36 Nelson Ave Built 1899. Two-story, three-bay, center entrance, frontal gabled, frame dwelling
with Queen Anne parlor windows; two-over-two and paired two-over-two sash
otherwise; porch with elaborate columns and plain brackets spans front facade.
Builder: Fayette Houck.

‘ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing



United States Department of Interior OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Glimmerglass Historic District

Continuation Sheet Otsego County, New York

Section 7, page 98 Annotated Property List
Village of Cooperstown

*37 Nelson Ave Built ¢1883. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with paired one-over-one sash

in pedimented window frames; raking cornice; wood shingles; enclosed porch on
north side; two-story back ell added later.

*38 Nelson Ave Built 1894. Two-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with neo-classical details
including fluted columns with Tuscan capitals, dentil course at roofline, and arched
windows in gable ends; pyramidal-roofed, frame garage attached by breezeway.
Builder: Grant Burns for F.W. Spraker.

*40 Nelson Ave Built 1887. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with side hall entrance and
simple entrance porch; shingled gable ends; dentils on window frames. Built for
George Gould.

*41 Nelson Ave Historic name: Forest View
Built 1892. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with cross gables; Queen Anne
shingle detailing in gable ends; shingled upper story and clapboard first story; porch
with turned columns, later glazed, spans front facade.
Carriage shed: Frame Queen Anne style matches house, c1892.
Historic note: Nicknamed the Hamburger or Beefsteak Castle by villagers, this house
was built for a William H. Michaels, Sr., who worked in the meatpacking industry.
He saw plans for the house in the 1891 Architects and Builders Edition of Scientific
American, and purchased them from the designer, Joseph W. Northrup of
Bridgeport, Connecticut.

*42 Nelson Ave Built 1886. Two-story, square plan, frame dwelling with cross-gabled roof; porch
with square columns and corner braces spans front facade; Queen Anne style bay
window on south side; one-over-one sash; aluminum siding. Built for Allen Gallup,
who bought land from E.F. Beadle.

Garage: Single-bay, frame with novelty siding, c1930.

*43 Nelson Ave Built ¢1900. Two-story, frontal gable, frame carriage shed converted to dwelling;
asbestos shingles; vertical three-over-one and six-over-six sash.

*44 Nelson Ave Historic name: Cherry Hall
Built 1885. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with flared, pyramidal-roofed
tower on northeast corner; variety of period sash; entrance porch with latticed frieze
and unusual turned columns. Architect: E.P. Brink, Denver, Colorado.
Garage: Non-historic, frame, novelty-sided, ¢1950. N/C
Historic note: This house was built for Erastus F. Beadle, developer of Nelson
Avenue, and the originator of the dime novel.

*46 Nelson Ave Built 1902. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with "gothic" gable; shingle siding; eight-over-eight sash; Palladian window over
center entrance; glazed center entrance porch with Tuscan columns. Builder:
Fayette Houck.

Historic note: This building was first designed as a carriage house and coachman's
quarters for #44 Nelson Avenue. It was later turned into a house.

¥ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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OLD SCHOOLHOUSE COURT

Old Schoolhouse Court is a small subdivision off of Susquehanna Avenue, developed on a lot once occupied
by an old academy building (now 26 Susquehanna Avenue). The Union Free School was built on the site in
1868, and was used until 1908, when it was turned into a tenement. The school building was torn down in
1939, and the subdivision laid out. The houses are all built from similar plans, and are intact examples of
colonial influenced dwellings of the period.

*1 Old Schoolhouse Ct Built 1939. Single-story, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with enclosed brick
entrance porch; six-over-six sash with battened plain board shutters;
clapboard siding.

*2 Old Schoolhouse Ct Built 1939. Single-story, frame dwelling with three-bay main block and

lower wings; shingle siding; brick chimney on front facade; six-over-six
sash with battened plain board shutters; modified shingled entrance porch.

*3 Old Schoolhouse Ct Built 1939. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling; six-over-six sash with battened plain board shutters; vinyl siding.

*4 Old Schoolhouse Ct Built 1939. Single-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with wing; vinyl siding
and modified enclosed entrance porch; battened plain board shutters.

*5 Old Schoolhouse Ct Built 1939. Single-story, frame dwelling with wing; frontal gable enclosed
front porch; six-over-six sash with battened plain board shutters.

*6 Old Schoolhouse Ct Built 1939. Single-story, frontal gable frame dwelling with pedimented brick
entrance; eight-over-eight sash and replacement casements with battened
plain board shutters; vinyl siding.

*7 Old Schoolhouse Ct Built 1939. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
frontal gable brick entrance porch; small back ell; six-over-six sash with
battened plain board shutters; vinyl siding.

*8 Old Schoolhouse Ct Built 1939. Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with sunporch on
front facade; battened plain board shutters; aluminum siding.

*Old Schoolhouse Ct-end Built 1939. Frame, L-plan, eight-bay, community garage.

PINE BLVD

Pine Boulevard used to be Pine Street. In 1882, Erastus Beadle bought much of the open land on Pine
Street and developed it over the next several years in similar manner to Nelson Avenue. These streets
replaced Chestnut Street as the most desirable addresses in Cooperstown at this period.

*Statue Placed 1931. World War I Memorial; granite and bronze.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*2 Pine Blvd Built 1888. Two-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling

with three-story tower at northeast corner; shingled upper story; decorative Queen
Anne style treatment of gable ends; porches on front and side. Built by C.L. Root
for Erastus Beadle.

*4 Pine Blvd Built 1885. Two-and-a-half-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with steep gambrel
roof and variety of groupings of one-over-one sash; some Queen Anne details;
aluminum siding; back ell added 1890; gambrel-roofed three-story wing added 1906.
Built by C.L. Root.
Carriage shed: One-and-a-half-level frame with novelty siding and cross gables,

c1885.

*5 Pine Blvd Built 1953. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with overhanging upper story; paired six-over-one sash; aluminum siding; attached
garage. N/C

*6 Pine Blvd Built 1883. Two-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with Italianate style porch with

squared, chamfered columns and cross-braces; arched and pedimented window
frames; raking cornice.

*7 Pine Blvd Built 1951. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with eight-over-twelve and six-over-six sash; attached one-bay garage with
arched doorway. Architect: Paul Allen; Builder: Gilbert Cummings. N/C

*8 Pine Blvd Historic name: The Overlook
Built 1888. Three-story, irregular plan, Queen Anne style frame dwelling with
shingled third story; remodeled in 1917 with porches wrapping front and side
supported by squared and round Tuscan columns; elaborate neoclassical main
entrance; porte-cochére on south side; three-sided bay projects from center of top
story on axis of main entrance. Architect for remodeling: Linn Kinne.
Garage: Frame, 1929.

*9 Pine Blvd Built 1901-1903. Single-story, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with multi-light sash;
asbestos shingles; attached single-bay garage added later.
Historic note: This house was once the kitchen for The Orchard, the house of J.A.M.
Johnston.

*10 Pine Blvd Built 1880. Two-and-a-half-story, symmetrical plan, frame dwelling with novelty
siding; two-over-two sash; porch spans much of front facade; later (c1889)
alterations include porch with flared ends and shingle siding spanning upper front
facade, sixteen-over-one sash.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1960. N/C

Historic note: This house was built for George Coburn, an Otsego Lake steamer
pilot. Erastus Beadle bought the house from Coburn in 1889, and he enlarged it
and renamed it Manhattan Villa.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing



United States Department of Interior OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Glimmerglass Historic District

Continuation Sheet Otsego County, New York

Section 7, page 101 Annotated Property List
Village of Cooperstown

*11 Pine Blvd Built 1958. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with six-

over-six sash and attached garage. N/C

*12 Pine Blvd Built 1881. Two-story, square-plan, frame dwelling with lower two-story, back ell;
bracketed roofline; porch with turned columns and corner braces spans front facade
and south side; two-over-two. Built by Smith and Lasher.

*14 Pine Blvd Built 1895. Two-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with decorative gable ends;
gular p 8 g
elaborate Queen Anne style porch spans part of front and side; variety of period
sash.
Garage/guest house: Two-story, frame, c1980. N/C

*15 Pine Blvd Built 1958. Single-story, frame dwelling with gable roof extended porch spanning
front facade; board-and-batten siding and exposed rafter ends; attached two-bay
garage. Architect: Formica; Builder: Ward Rathbun.

*16 Pine Blvd Built 1903. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with cross gables; porch with
Tuscan columns set on piers and spindle balustrade spans front facade; six-over-one
sash; shingled upper story; non-historic single-story ell at rear. Builder: Martin H.
Bronner.
Shed: Hip-roofed frame, c1930.

*18 Pine Blvd Built 1893. Two-story, frame dwelling with hipped roof and cross gables; porch
with turned columns and corner braces spans front and part of side; aluminum
siding; decorative braces at roofline. Builder: M.H. Bronner.

*19 Pine Blvd Built ¢1880. One-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling with frontal gable main block and
higher frontal gable back ell; raking cornice; two-over-two sash; side hall entrance
and non-historic porch spanning front facade.

Garage: Frontal gable, frame, c1930.

*21 Pine Blvd Built 1910. Four-square, frame dwelling with vinyl siding; one-over-one and Queen
Anne parlor sash; non-historic porch spans front facade; pyramidal roof.
Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1930.

*War Memorial Placed 1966. Plain granite block. N/C

PIONEER ST

Laid out as the westernmost street in William Cooper's plat of Cooperstown, and called West Street, Pioneer
Street was renamed Pioneer Street for James Fenimore Cooper's novel, The Pioneers, published in 1823.

2 Pioneer St Built ¢1985. Two-story, frame dwelling with single-story wings. N/C
Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1985. N/C

y Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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4 Pioneer St Built c1985. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling

with center pediment. N/C
Garage: Two-bay, frame, ¢1985. N/C

5 Pioneer St Built c1985. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with attached garage. N/C

*9 Pioneer St Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with pedimented enclosed entrance porch; attached garage. N/C

*11 Pioneer St Built 1957. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
gable-roofed dormer; enclosed porch on north side; attached garage; aluminum
siding. N/C

14 Pioneer St Built ¢1985. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with extended

back gable roof; center entrance; garage attached to house by breezeway. N/C

*16 Pioneer St Built 1978. Two-story, square-plan, pyramidal-roofed frame dwelling. N/C
Garage: Square-plan, pyramidal-roofed frame, 1978. N/C

*20 Pioneer St Built c1840. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with non-historic enclosed
front porch and attached garage; raking cornice; asbestos shingle siding; mostly
replacement sash in old openings; two-over-two sash in some openings.

*21-23 Pioneer St Built ¢1796. Two-story, seven-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame, two-family
dwelling with shed-roofed porches on rear; #21 has two-over-two sash; #23 has
replacement sash; novelty siding; non-historic roof.

*22 Pioneer St Built ¢1810. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
center entrance; two-story back ell; Greek Revival cornice with partial returns; six-
over-six sash.

*24 Pioneer St Built 1820. Two-story, four-bay, stone dwelling with end chimneys; wood cornice
on front roofline surmounted by balustrade; cut stone lintel and sill blocks; six-over-
six sash; single-story frame back ell. Built for Ellery Cory.

*25 Pioneer St Built ¢1790. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with two non-historic shed-roofed dormer in front roof face; dentils in
cornice.

*27 Pioneer St Built 1884-1887. Two-story, three-bay, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with paired

brackets at roofline; center entrance; porch spans two bays; replacement sash and
siding. Replaced an earlier building.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*28 Pioneer St Built 1872. Frame dwelling with two-story, three-bay mansard-roofed main block

with two-story, single-bay wing on south side; large rear ell with vertical four-over-
one sash, ¢1910; main block retains segmental arched window frames and two-
over-two sash.

*29 Pioneer St Built c1835. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with two-story back ell (added 1868-1887); bracketed roofline; later Eastlake
pediment and porches (1889); variety of sash, including six-over-one in sides and
later Victorian types in front facade; asphalt shingles.

*30 Pioneer St Built ¢1971. Single-story, frame house. N/C
*31 Pioneer St Built 1791. Two-story, four-bay, two-unit frontal gable, frame commercial building

completely renovated in 1994; much historical detail lost.
Office: Single-story, frontal gable, frame, 1994.

*34 Pioneer St Built ¢1850. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
raised basement and center entrance; modilion blocks at roofline; two-over-two
sash.

*36 Pioneer St Built 1802. Three-story, six-bay, brick dwelling with side chimneys and raised

basement; replacement sash and non-historic fenestration in first floor. Built by
Lawrence McNamee, who came from Burlington, New Jersey.

*43 Pioneer St Historic name: Phinney Block
Built 1850. Three-story, seven-bay, coursed ashlar stone building; two street-level
non-historic storefronts reproducing historic appearance flank center entrance; sash
replaced and window openings partially boarded up. Builder: McCabe Bros.
Historic note: The Phinney Publishing Company built this stone block as a branch
bookstore, replacing a building destroyed by fire in 1849. At roughly the same
time, the main office moved to Buffalo.

*45 Pioneer St Built 1850-1851. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with three-bay,
gable-roofed wing; non-historic porch spans front facade; six-over-six sash; small
brackets on gable ends at roofline.

*46 Pioneer St Built 1862. Three-story, four-bay, brick commercial building with cast iron window
heads and sills and roof cornice with brackets, lozenges, and dentil course.
Architect: L.M. Bolles.

*47-49 Pioneer St Built 1839. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, stone building with two
street-level storefronts; two-level open porch (c1900) spans front facade.

¢ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*50 Pioneer St Name: Pratt Hotel

Built 1867. Three-story, seven-bay, flat-roofed, frame hotel with cast iron balustrade
porch on second story front; Greek Revival style door frames; bracketed cornice;
six-over-six sash except for non-historic vitrines on first floor. Architect: Daniel
Wheeler.

Historic note: This hotel replaced earlier hotels that stood on this spot.

*51-53 Pioneer St Built 1826. Two-story, six-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, two-family fieldstone
dwelling with decorative stone medallion with Masonic symbols in upper story.
Porch with square columns spans front facade; deep frieze with brackets at roofline;
six-over-six sash.
Historic note: This house was built using stone that had been used first for James
Fenimore Cooper's house, Fenimore, which burned in 1823.

*52 Pioneer St Built ¢1860. Two-story, frontal gable, frame commercial building with raised,
pedimented false front; enclosed porch (c1900) extends from upper story front,
supported by fluted columns on piers; two-over-two and six-over-six sash.
Carriage shed: Frame, novelty-sided, ¢1900.

Historic note: Building moved to site in 1864, and used as a blacksmith's shop.

*55 Pioneer St Name: The Smithy-Pioneer Gallery
Built 1786; 2nd story added c1810; 3rd story added c1840. Three-story, frontal
gable commercial building built in three phases: stone storehouse converted to a
blacksmith's shop; brick carriage shop with loading door in south wall added to
make second story; frame third floor reputedly a Masonic meeting hall; twelve-over-
twelve sash in second and third stories; retains doors in original openings.
Historic note: Reputedly the oldest building in Cooperstown, it housed a
blacksmith's shop in its ground floor until 1922. The wagon shop above, opened
¢1840, continued operations into the late nineteenth century. When the last smith
closed shop, James Fenimore Cooper II bought the building. Here Dr. Marguerite
Cockett set up her summer studio and apartment in the second story and opened
an antiques shop in the stone ground floor, which allowed her and Cooper to
indulge their taste for antiques hunting. The third floor was first used as a gallery
when she showed an exhibit of her own work in 1924. After Cockett's death in
1954, Dr. Henry S.F. Cooper guided the Smithy's development into a local arts
center with a summer exhibit schedule of local art and history.

*59 Pioneer St Built 1824. Two-story, frontal gable, frame commercial building with lunette in
gable end; paired shop doors in first floor; loading door in center front upper story
flanked by six-over-six windows.

Historic note: This was built as Cooperstown's first firehouse.

*60 Pioneer St Built 1959. Single-story, brick commercial building. N/C

*61 Pioneer St Built ¢1900. Two-story, three-bay, flat-roofed, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with
paired brackets at roofline; Queen Anne style porch spans front facade.

- Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*62 Pioneer St Historic name: Closet Hall

Built 1867. Two-story, eclectic brick dwelling with variety of period windows and
Gothic details, including bargeboards in gable ends of irregular roofline.

Shop building: Single-story, cinderblock with metal casement windows, 1962. N/C
Historic note: This was named Closet Hall by James Fenimore Cooper's
granddaughter in 1928 for the house Cooper and his wife occupied in Westchester
County, New York, in the early 1800s.

*63 Pioneer St Historic name: Universalist Church
Built 1833. Frontal gable frame church with differing square towers at northwest
and southwest corners; center entrance with Greek Revival entablature; clapboard
siding; rectangular, multi-light sash.
Historic note: Steeples removed 1960.

*64 Pioneer St Built c1803. Multiple dwelling complex made of three buildings, or phases. Front
portion: One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling, with two
buildings of similar size and type attached behind. Retains some early nineteenth
century details; aluminum siding.

Historic note: This building was the Beasley School for boys from 1929 to 1949.

*67-69 Pioneer St Historic name: First Presbyterian Church
Built 1805-1807. Frontal gable frame church building with flushboard siding and
tower with spire; round-topped arched windows throughout; connected to later
parish hall, also frontal gable with gothic-arched center entrance, by arcade of
round-topped arches set on octagonal Gothic columns. Interior remodeled c1875.
Built by Cyrus and Cyrenus Clark.
Churchyard: Cemetery along south side and to rear, or east side, of church building
preserves some of the area's earliest burials.

*71 Pioneer St Built ¢1860. One-and-three-quarter-story, three-bay frame dwelling with symmetrical
cross gabled roof and raking cornice; two-story back ell; six-over-one sash.

*73 Pioneer St Built 1844. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with
corner pilasters, Greek entablature door frame with dentil course, partial returns;
two-story back ell; wood shingle siding; six-over-six sash. Built by Thomas Clarke
for himself.

Outbuilding: Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame with twelve-over-
twelve sash, c1854.

*75 Pioneer St Built 1830. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
center entrance with simple porch supported by Tuscan columns; two-over-two
sash; non-historic addition with deck at rear.

Garage: Frontal gable, novelty-sided, frame, c1930.

*77 Pioneer St Built ¢1915. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with raking cornice; porch
with square columns set in corner; six-over-one sash; non-historic addition to rear
of building.

. Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*78 Pioneer St Built ¢1830. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with center entrance
Victorian porch with pierced board supports; shed-roofed back ell; two-over-two
sash.

Pavilion: Non-historic picnic pavilion at back of property. N/C

*80-82 Pioneer St Built 1833. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, two-family, frame dwelling
with shed-roofed additions at rear; six-over-one sash; Italianate paired arched light
front doors; aluminum siding.

Historic note: This was built as a schoolhouse.

*83 Pioneer St Built 1903-1909. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with raking
cornice; two-over-two sash.
Garage: Frontal gable, frame with paired, battened doors, ¢1930.

*84 Pioneer St Built 1967-1968. Single-story, ranch-style frame dwelling with aluminum siding;
attached garage. N/C

*85 Pioneer St Built ¢1890. Two-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with raking cornice;
small arched window over side hall entrance.

*87 Pioneer St Built ¢1840. One-and-a-half-story, four-bay, frame dwelling with two additions at
rear; partial returns; twelve-over-twelve sash.
Garage: Non-historic frame, c1960.

*88 Pioneer St Built c1840. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling on
raised fieldstone basement; Victorian porch with squared, chamfered columns spans
two bays; six-over-six sash.

*89 Pioneer St Built 1915. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, stuccoed dwelling with porch
supported by heavy stuccoed columns spanning front facade; variety of multi-light
windows in symmetrical fenestration plan; deep-eaved gable roof; Arts and Crafts
style stained glass panels flank center entrance.

Garage: Single-bay, stucco, frontal gable garage, c1930.

*92 Pioneer St Built 1856. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with Gothic
vergeboards on gable ends and Gothic taste porch over main entrance; back ell;
raking cornice; six-over-six sash. Builder: Cornelius Devoe.

Barn: Single-level, frame, c1860.

92Y: Pioneer St Built 1939. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with overhung second story; center
entrance flanked with pilasters; six-over-six sash; concrete block foundation.
Builder: Wilbert Parker.
Historic note: The owner, Charles Wick, got the idea for this house's design from a
paint advertisement in a Montgomery-Ward catalog.
Garage: Two-bay, non-historic, frame, ¢1970.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*93 Pioneer St Built 1913. Frame four-square-type, hip-roofed dwelling with deep eaves; enclosed

sunporch on north side; center entrance porch with squared, tapered columns; hip-
roofed dormer pierced front roof face; Arts and Crafts detailing.
Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1930.

*94 Pioneer St Built 1841. Two-story, four-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-story,
recessed open porch spanning front facade; six-over-six sash; vinyl siding.
Garage: Non-historic, single-bay, frame. N/C

*95 Pioneer St Built 1913-1914. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with deep eaves; shed-roofed dormer in front roof face; porch with latticed
supports spans front facade; retains period fenestration plan though some sash
replaced. Builder: Wilbert Parker.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1930.

*97 Pioneer St Built 1910. Frame Dutch Colonial dwelling with crossed gambrel roof; porch with
square columns spans front facade with square columns set on knee wall; two-story
back ell; six-over-one and eight-over-one sash; vinyl siding. Builder: Wilbert Parker.
Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, c1970. N/C

*99 Pioneer St Built 1908. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with irregular
detailing, including semi-circular entrance porch, asymmetrical fenestration plan
with arched, paired, and latticed types; shingled upper story and clapboard first
story.

Garage: Single-story, frontal gable, frame, c1930.

*100 Pioneer St Built ¢1960. Single-story, frame, ranch-style dwelling with aluminum siding. N/C
Single story dwelling to rear, c1960. N/C

*101 Pioneer St Built 1911. Cross-gambrel-roofed Dutch Colonial frame dwelling with lunette in
street facade; porch with Tuscan columns spans front facade; shingled upper story
and clapboard first story; variety of one-over-one sash.

Garage: Gambrel-roofed, frame with shingled gambrel end matches house, c1911.

*102 Pioneer St Built c1915. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with center
entrance; porch with turned columns and corner braces spans front facade; raking
cornice; two-over-two sash.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1940.

*103 Pioneer St Built 1915. Two-story, three-bay, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with shingled upper
story and clapboard first story; one-over-one sash except for large multi-light
window in front facade.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame with paired doors, c1930.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*104 Pioneer St Built c1840. Temple-form frame dwelling with two-story frontal gable main block

flanked by single-story wings; porch with square columns recessed under main
block; corner pilasters throughout; two-over-two sash.
Garage: Two-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1940.

*105 Pioneer St Built 1913. Four-square type, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with stuccoed first story
and shingled upper story; hip-roofed dormer in front roof face; porch with Tuscan
columns spans front facade; clapboarded frame addition at rear. Builder: Nelson
Houck, for Gerald Ellsworth.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay frame, c1960.

*106 Pioneer St Built ¢1845-1850. One-and-a-half-story, gambrel-roofed, frame dwelling with center
entrance porch supported by Tuscan columns set on knee wall; Queen Anne parlor
windows in first floor front; paired one-over-ones in gable-roofed dormers in front
roof face; roof changed to gambrel in 1903. Builder: J.J. Cory.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame, c1940.

*107 Pioneer St Built 1911. Two-story, pyramidal-roofed, square-plan, frame dwelling with center
entrance; porch with Tuscan columns spans front facade; six-over-one sash; gable-
roofed dormers in front and side roof faces.

*108 Pioneer St Built c1850. Frame dwelling made of two adjoined two-story, three-bay buildings
with a two-story back ell added; main entrance retains Greek entablature door
frame; variety of period and replacement sash; aluminum siding. Builder: Luther 1.
Burditt.
Garage: Non-historic two-bay, frame, ¢1950. N/C
Historic note: This house once had a square tower and porch spanning its north
wing, considerably altering its appearance.

*109 Pioneer St Built 1913. Two-story, pyramidal-roofed, frame dwelling with variety of sash, some
replaced in original openings; clapboard first story and shingled second story; deep
eaves and hip-roofed dormer in front roof face; non-historic porch spanning front
facade probably replaces earlier similar one. Builder: David Willsey.

*110 Pioneer St Built ¢1840. Two-story, square plan, frame dwelling with pyramidal roof capped by
low, square cupola; porch with square Doric columns spans center three bays;
center entrance door frame retains Greek entablature; one-and-a-half-story back ell
with garage in old woodshed.

*111 Pioneer St Built 1915. Cross-gambrel, frame dwelling with porch supported by Tuscan columns
spanning front facade; clapboard first floor and shingled upper story; non-historic
back addition matches character of house; variety of sash, some replaced, in period
openings.

Garage: Non-historic, frame, c1970. N/C

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*112 Pioneer St Built 1921. Two-story, three-bay, hip-roofed, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with

arched porch over center entrance; dormer in front roof face mimics arch of porch;
screened porch on south wall; tripled sash in front parlor windows; six-over-one
sash otherwise; vinyl siding. Builder: David Willsey.

Garage: Single-bay, hip-roofed, frame garage, c1921.

*113 Pioneer St Built ¢1912. Frame bungalow-style dwelling with porch supported by Tuscan
columns recessed under front roof face; eight-over-one and six-over-one sash; two-
story rear addition made c1980 matches character of house.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, ¢1970. N/C

*114 Pioneer St Built ¢1962-1963. Single-story, ranch-style, frame dwelling with brick faced front;
attached garage. N/C

*116 Pioneer St Built 1961. Single-story ranch-style, frame dwelling; vinyl siding. N/C

PROSPECT PL

*1 Prospect Pl Built 1891. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with replacement sash and
siding. N/C

Historic note: This was the carriage shed for 27 Nelson Avenue.

*3 Prospect P1 Built c1889. One-and-a-half-story, frontal frame dwelling with later (c1900) wing on
west side; paired one-over-one and two-over-two sash in older part and six-over-six
sash in later wing; novelty siding; deep-eaved roof and raking cornice.

*4 Prospect Pl Built 1912. Three-bay, gambrel-roofed, frame dwelling with lower, later gambrel-
roofed wing; main block has six-over-six sash and wing has casement windows;
shingled. Builder: Eugene Stocker.

Garage: Frame, gambrel-roofed, c1920.

RAILROAD AVE

*5 Railroad Ave Built 1895. Two-story, three-bay, flat-roofed, frame commercial building; brackets at
roofline on front facade; some six-over-six sash on side walls; replacement sash in
first floor front; non-historic siding.

Historic note: Built for hops storage for S. And F. Uhlmann. Simon Uhlmann built
Uncas Lodge at Three-Mile Point in 1899.

*7-9 Railroad Ave Built ¢1878. Two-story, two-unit, frame commercial building with shed roof;
brackets at roofline; two storefronts with vitrine windows and braced canopy in first
floor; six-over-six sash. vinyl siding.

Shed: Two-bay, board-and-batten siding, frame, c1900.

: Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*10 Railroad Ave Built 1869. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame railroad depot building

with board-and-batten siding and braced, deep-eaved roof; square tower with
bracketed roofline at north end.

*21 Railroad Ave Built 1902. Two-story, three-bay, square-plan, frame dwelling with bracketed
roofline; back ell on raised basement; non-historic cinder block addition on
southwest corner; two-over-two sash; clapboards on front facade.

Historic note: Charles Francis built this as a carriage factory. It later became a car
dealership and repair shop.

*25 Railroad Ave Built ¢1880. Two-story, three-bay, square plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with
segmental arched window frames and two-over-two sash; paired, scrolled brackets
at roofline; non-historic porch spans front facade.

*27 Railroad Ave Built c1878. Two-story, two-bay, square plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with small
cupola; paired brackets at roofline.
Carriage shed: Non-historic frame replica, ¢1990.

*28 Railroad Ave Built 1890. Two-story frame feed mill with aluminum siding set alongside railroad;
lower ell bridges oldest portion with another, lower two-level building, possibly an
old barn. Now used as a store.

RIVER ST
River Street was called Water Street until the early twentieth century.

River St - end Name: Council Rock Park
Steps lead down to platform with compass arrow in the paving stones overlooking
Otsego Lake. Council Rock, a large glacial erratic pokes through the water just east
of the plaform. A lightly wooded slope leads down to it.

*11 River St Built c1870. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with shed-roofed
extension to rear; enclosed front porch; raking cornice; replacement sash.

*13 River St Built ¢1840. Two-story, shed-roofed, frame dwelling with shed-roofed back ell;
enclosed non-historic front porch; mostly two-over-two sash.

*15 River St Built ¢1840. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with pediment
over center three bays; center entrance with enclosed porch supported by octagonal
columns, unusual millwork panels in upper part of porch; six-over-six sash.

*17 River St Built ¢1840. One-and-three-quarter-story, three-bay, frontal gable frame dwelling
with louvered fan in gable end; Greek Revival details include panels under parlor
windows, door frame around side hall entrance, partial returns; porch with square
Doric columns.

Garage: Non-historic, single-bay, frame, c1980. N/C

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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19 River St Built 1991. Two-story, five-bay, frame dwelling with porch spanning three central
bays. N/C
*30 River St Historic name: Greencrest

Built 1872-1873. Frame dwelling with two-story, frontal gable, main block; three-
story tower at southeast corner; variety of elaborate window frames and varied sash
and casement; millwork trim on roofline; open porches on north and south sides;
one-and-a-half-story kitchen ell.

Landscape: Stone retaining wall holds steep lawn.

*31 River St Historic name: Byberry Cottage
Built 1853-1854. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, brick dwelling
with hip-on-gable end facing street; many Gothic Revival details including two-
story, three-sided bay window with Gothic tracery; millwork trim at roofline; frame
addition mimicking original portion in details, built c1903.
Historic note: This house was built for Susan Fenimore Cooper and her sister
Charlotte after Otsego Hall, by then a hotel, burned to the ground in 1853. Built
from brick salvaged from the Hall, it was the sisters' home until their deaths in the
1890s. Its plan nearly matches Plan V in Downing's Architecture of Country Houses
(1850).

*43 River St Historic name: Fernleigh
Built 1869. Two-story, mansard-roofed, stone dwelling with ashlar masonry, quoins,
and segmental arched windows. Architect: James Van Dyke of New Jersey.
Servants' quarter: One-and-a-half-story, fieldstone rectangular plan, gable-roofed
building with dormer windows; Downing influenced.
Turkish bath house: Built 1874. Single-story, stone bath house and billiards room.
Architect: H.J. Hardenburgh.
Landscape: Fernleigh's landscape includes an open lawn dotted by mature trees, a
taste popularized by Andrew Jackson Downing in the 1840s, an Italian water garden
designed by Marcus T. Reynolds in 1923, a stone arched *bridge (built 1928)
connecting the property with the open meadow called Fernleigh-Over, which Clark
bought from Mrs. John Bowers's estate in 1878, and a stone fence on the River
Street side built about 1870. The last is very similar to the stone fencing running
along both sides of West Lake Road (New York Route 80) beside The Farmers'
Museum and the Leatherstocking Golf Course.
Historic note: From the back of this property, Samuel F.B. Morse took the view he
painted of Otsego Lake, From Apple Hill, in 1828. When Edward Clark bought the
Apple Hill property (built by Richard Cooper in the early 1800s) in 1854, he
arranged to have the house moved to Main Street (198-200) and built Fernleigh as
his summer home in 1869. Clark bought additional contiguous properties to the
south on the same side of River Street. James Van Dyke, the architect of Fernleigh
house, also designed the Fenimore Hotel, which Clark opened at the northeast
corner of Main and Chestnut streets in 1874. The remaining part of Fernleigh house
is but a small portion of the original building. Over the years, several generations
of the Clark family have owned property.

* Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing

e
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*River St, west side;
south of Church St

*45 River St

*48 River St

*55 River St

*56 River St

*58 River St

*59 River St

*

Village of Cooperstown

Historic name: Christ Church

Built 1807. Original frontal gable brick building four bays deep; buttresses and
stone chancel added 1840; spire replaced old steeple 1853; transepts added 1865;
Carter Memorial Chapel at west end added 1891.

Grace Chapel: Built 1861. Single-story, frontal gable, frame chapel with flushboard
siding and open belltower; single lancet windows in side walls. Chapel attached to
the church with a cloister surmounted by decorative ironwork.

Landscape: Churchyard used as a cemetery from the eighteenth century into the
early twentieth century fronts on both River and Church streets. A lychgate built in
the 1890s enters the churchyard from the River Street side. Apple trees, larger
maples, and spruce trees shade the yard.

Historic name: Fernleigh Cottage

Built c1850. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with two-story back ell; elaborate Gothic taste millwork trims rooflines and center
entrance porch supported by octagonal columns; earlier details include fanlight and
sidelights surrounding main entrance; porches on north and south sides.

Historic note: This house was built by Philip Root between the time he bought the
land in 1842 from James Fenimore Cooper and 1856.

Built 1814. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
two-story back ell; center entrance porch with octagonal columns and balustrade;
front door retains Federal-style fanlight and sidelights; twelve-over-twelve sash;
attached, non-historic two-bay garage.

Landscape: Property enclosed by wood fence, reproduced in 1996.

Historic name: Foote Cottage

Built 1852. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled, frame cottage with two-story tower in
corner; raking cornice trimmed with brackets with drops; porch with Tuscan
columns; pedimented sash with four-over-four sash. Builders: Thomas Clarke and
Luzerne M. Bolles.

Historic note: This cottage apparently used Design VI for an irregular villa in the
Italian style, bracketed, in Andrew Jackson Downing's Cottage Residences, 1844.

Built 1870. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, brick commercial building with large
center entrance doors and segmental arched windows converted to dwelling.
Garage: Non-historic frame attached by breezeway, c1970.

Historic note: This was the carriage shed for 1 Elk Street, a house built for Elizabeth
Scriven Clark.

Built ¢1939. One-and-a-half-story, frame Tudor Revival cottage with half-timbered
enclosed front porch; variety of sash, mostly six-over-six.

Built c1885. Single-story, frame stables with wide clapboard siding and Shingle style
detailing attached to two greenhouses, built in the mid-1900s. Part of the Fernleigh
property.

Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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RIVERSIDE DR
1 Riverside Dr
2 Riverside Dr

3 Riverside Dr

ROCK ST

Village of Cooperstown

Built 1968. Frame ranch style dwelling. N/C
Built ¢1965. Frame ranch style dwelling. N/C

Built ¢1965. Frame ranch style dwelling. N/C

Rock Street is located in the Irish Hill neighborhood of the village of Cooperstown.

15 Rock St

SOUTH AVE

Built c1870. Two-story, frame dwelling comprising two rectangular plan, flared
gable-roofed blocks joined by a third block similar in construction and details;
Italianate window frames; flushboard siding; brackets on bay windows.

South Avenue is a dead end street off the southern part of Delaware Street. Its built environment includes
farm buildings pre-dating the street's development in the 1880s.

2 South Ave

3 South Ave

4 South Ave

5 South Ave

6 South Ave

*

Built ¢1960. Single-story, three-bay, clapboard ranch style house on raised concrete
block basement. N/C

Built 1948. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with six-over-six sash
and clapboard siding; shed-roofed dormer spans entire back roof; battened shutters
on front openings.

Garage: Single-bay frame with novelty siding. N/C

Built ¢1980. Two-story, frame dwelling. N/C

Built ¢1885. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with one-story kitchen ell to
rear and open porch set in L; all windows replaced with same size sash in original
locations; only window frame retained is decorative one over paired one-over-one
in front gable end; vinyl and aluminum siding.

Carriage shed: Large, two-level, frontal gable, frame (now remodeled), c1870.

Built ¢1870. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan frame dwelling with gable roof
and one-story non-historic wing on west wall; retains pedimented window frames
and two-over-two sash in most openings of old block; entrance moved; original
location uncertain.

Garage: Non-historic frame, ¢1960. N/C

Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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7 South Ave Built c1885. Two-story, two-bay, T-plan, frame dwelling with two-story ell spanning
half of back facade; non-historic entry porch over one doorway; paired one-over-
one and two-over-two sash with late Victorian window frames; mid-20th century
colonial taste door frame and stone stoop.

Barn: One-and-a-half-level board-and-batten frame, possibly predating house, ¢1870.

8 South Ave Built c1860 or earlier. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frontal gable frame
dwelling with one-and-a-half-story non-historic wing on west wall; vinyl sided, but
retains nine-over-six sash in many openings in main block. Building heavily altered
through renovation. N/C

9 South Ave Built 1923-1945. Two-story, square plan, frontal gable, frame dwelling with one-
story shed-roofed kitchen ell at rear; retains wood shingles and six-over-one sash,
though second floor ones are replacement type; triple window in parlor; full return
in gable end.

Garage: Non-historic frame, c1960. N/C

11 South Ave Built ¢1930; substantially altered c1965. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling
with overhung second story on long walls; replacement sash and siding. N/C

13 South Ave Built c1885. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular frame dwelling with cross-gabled wing;
porch supported with square columns in corner of main block; two-over-two sash
in some openings; others replaced with one-over-one in original openings; raking
cornice, novelty siding.

15 South Ave Built ¢1971-1980. Two-story, five-bay, frame dwelling. N/C
SPRING ST
Spring St Historic name: Westhill

Built ¢1920. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, stone dwelling with
flanking one-and-a-half-story wings with frontal gable enclosed porches; Georgian
Revival center entrance with broken pediment and pilasters; six-over-six sash.
Guest house: Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling partially
wrapped by simple porch, c1945.

Caretakers house: Built ¢1950. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed,
frame dwelling; recessed, glazed porch; six-over-six sash.

Garage: Two-bay, frame garage, c1950.

383 Spring St Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, rectangular plan, frame dwelling
with single-story, shed-roofed rear ell; very deep front eave supported by large,
arched brackets; aluminum siding; replacement sash.

Garage: Non-historic two-bay frontal gable-roofed garage. N/C

* Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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393 Spring St Built c1880. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame

dwelling with "gothic" gable and single-story, shed-roofed ell to rear; shed-roofed
porch with turned columns spans three-quarters of front facade; asbestos shingles;
replacement sash.

Barn: Frame, considerably altered. N/C

414 Spring St Built c1935; remodeled as a dwelling ¢1970. One-and-a-half-story, frame stable
retains box stalls in old part of house; wing added 1973; further addition added
1974-1975. N/C
Shed: Corrugated metal, c1970. N/C

440 Spring St Built ¢1955. Split-level frame dwelling. N/C
SUSQUEHANNA AVE
*1 Susquehanna Built ¢1850. Frame house comprised of two one-and-a-half-story, frontal gable,

frame blocks with corner porch on front facade and veranda with scrolled millwork
on long wall of back block; variety of sash, some replaced; vinyl siding.
Barn: One-and-a-half-level, frame, c1850.

*3 Susquehanna Built c1860. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with center entrance; Greek Revival style "eared" door frame; pedimented entrance
porch (¢1900) with Tuscan columns; two-over-two and one-over-one sash; partial
returns; wood shingle siding.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame with novelty siding, c1940.

*5 Susquehanna Built c1860. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with later, flat-roofed wing at
back corner; side hall entrance with "eared" door frame; porch with Tuscan
columns spans wing; attached non-historic carport.

Carriage shed: Frontal gable, frame converted touest house.

*6 Susquehanna Built 1913. Two-story, four-square, frame dwelling; all historic detail lost and form
subsumed by later additions. Built by John Pank, reusing lumber from house
standing on site previously. N/C

*7 Susquehanna Built ¢1860. Frame dwelling with two-story, three-bay, frontal gable main block with
partial returns and side hall entrance with sidelights and single-story wing; two-
over-two sash throughout; three-sided bay window on front of wing.

*8 Susquehanna Built 1886. Two-story, three-bay, square plan, frame dwelling with paired two-over-
two sash throughout; center entrance; porch with squared, tapered columns spans
front facade; lower ell to back; deep eaves and plain frieze.

Garage: Pyramidal-roofed, two-bay, frame, ¢1930.

. Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*9 Susquehanna Built ¢1860. Frame dwelling with one-and-a-half-story, frontal gable main block and

four-bay, single-story wing; partial returns on main block; porch with Tuscan
columns spans front of wing; six-over-six sash; vinyl siding; non-historic attached
garage.

*10 Susquehanna Built 1872. Two-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with lower two-story back ell;
Italianate style entrance porch and front door; raking cornice; later Queen Anne
additions including porches.

Garage: Two-bay, frame, c1970. N/C

*11 Susquehanna Built c1860. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with taller two-story
back wing; Greek Revival side hall entrance with "eared" door frame; entrance
porch with Tuscan columns; six-over-six sash; wood shingle siding.

*12 Susquehanna Built ¢1892. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with cross-gabled entrance
porch and corner porch with matching pediments, spindles, turned columns; variety
of wall treatments and sash; lower back ell added c1900.

Carriage shed: One-and-a-half-level, frontal gable, frame with shingled gable ends,
c1892.

*13 Susquehanna Built c1892. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-story back ell; raking
cornice; recessed entrance porch with Tuscan columns; one-over-one sash.
Carriage shed: Frontal gable frame with novelty siding, c1892.

*14 Susquehanna Built ¢1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with pedimented
porch over side hall entrance; shed-roofed, single-story back ell; replacement sash
and siding.

Garage: Single-bay, novelty-sided, frame, c1940.

*15 Susquehanna Built 1887. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with cross gables; applied wood
decoration in gable ends; six-sided tower with six-faced roof on southwest corner
and south wing added somewhat later; Stick style and Queen Anne detailing.
Carriage shed: One-level, frontal gable, frame, c1880.

*16 Susquehanna Built ¢1880. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with paired Italianate style
doors with arched lights; one-over-one and paired one-over-one sash; raking
cornices; single-story shed-roofed ell at rear.

*17 Susquehanna Built 1906. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with shingled gable
end; front porch with spindled frieze, turned columns, and corner braces spans
front facade; full returns; one-over-one sash; two-story back ell. Builder: Peleg
Smith.

Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*22-24 Susquehanna Built 1887. Two-story, four-bay, two-family frame dwelling with shed-roofed
addition on south side; porch (c1900) with corner braces spans center entrances;
novelty siding; two-over-two sash.

Historic note: Built as electric light station, and used until 1901, when Dr. H.A.
Harrison turned it into a two-family house.

*23 Susquehanna Built c1885 (standing by 1886). One-and-three-quarter-story, frontal gable, frame
dwelling with three-sided bay window in front facade; side hall entrance with
scrolled Italianate style bracketed hood; paired one-over-one sash in front; two-
over-two sash in sides; raking cornice; vinyl siding. Matches # 25, 27, 29. Builder:
Luther I. or William Dean Burditt.

*25 Susquehanna Built c1885 (standing by 1886). One-and-three-quarter-story, frontal gable, frame
dwelling with three-sided bay window in front facade; side hall entrance with
scrolled Italianate style bracketed hood; paired one-over-one sash in front; two-
over-two sash in sides; raking cornice; vinyl siding. Matches # 23, 27, 29. Builder:
Luther I. or William Dean Burditt.

*26 Susquehanna Built c1840. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame building with
center entrance; twelve-over-twelve sash; Federal-style door frame, possibly altered.
Historic note: This was an academy building, and once stood behind the site of the
Roman Catholic Church on Elm Street. It appears in early pictures of the church.
Later, it was moved, probably in the 1870s.

*27 Susquehanna Built c1885 (standing by 1886). One-and-three-quarter-story, frontal gable, frame
dwelling with three-sided bay window in front facade; side hall entrance with
scrolled Italianate style bracketed hood; paired one-over-one sash in front; two-
over-two sash in sides; raking cornice; wood shingle siding. Matches #23, 25, 29.
Builder: Luther I. or William Dean Burditt).

*28-32 Susquehanna Built c1850. One-and-a-half-story, three-family, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with millwork trim featuring trefoils at the eaves; six-over-six sash; non-
historic porch spans front.

*29 Susquehanna Built c1885 (standing by 1886). One-and-three-quarter-story, frontal gable, frame
dwelling with three-sided bay window in front facade; side hall entrance with
scrolled Italianate style bracketed hood; paired one-over-one sash in front; two-
over-two sash in sides; raking cornice; wood shingle siding. Matches #23, 25, 27.
Builder: Luther I. or William Dean Burditt.

*34 Susquehanna Built 1902. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross gabled
wing; shingles in Queen Anne-style gable ends; one-over-one sash; aluminum
siding.

*36 Susquehanna Built 1879. Two-story, L-plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling; some segmental arched
window frames; two-over-two sash; porch (c1900) with Tuscan columns partially
spans front facade; period door with segmental arched frame.

e Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*37 Susquehanna Built 1910. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross gables; shingled
gable ends and round windows; full returns; variety of sash including Queen Anne
parlor type; porch with square columns spans front facade. Builders: Luther
Robinson and David Willsey.

Shed: Single-story, novelty-sided frame, c1910.

*38 Susquehanna Built c1881. Two-story, irregular plan, Stick style, frame dwelling with Queen Anne-
style porch spanning front and side; decorative shingles in gable ends; one-over-one
sash. Remodeled 1882 by Peter McCabe.

Garage: Non-historic, single-bay, frame, c1970. N/C

*39 Susquehanna Built ¢1880. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with taller gable-
roofed back ell; shed-roofed wing with replacement sash in south wall; porch with
pierced board supports spans two bays; raking cornice.

*41 Susquehanna Built c1880. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with taller two-story, flat-roofed
back ell; porch in corner; raking cornice. Once matched 45 Susquehanna.

*42 Susquehanna Built c1870; remodeled 1882. Two-story, irregular plan, flat-roofed, Italian villa
dwelling with paired scrolled brackets and deep frieze at roofline; pedimented
window frames with two-over-two sash; variety of verandas and bays; flushboard
siding; coursed ashlar stone foundation.

*43 Susquehanna Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with lower two-
story back ell; pedimented window frames with replacement sash; partial returns.
Garage: Shed-roofed, frame, c1930.

*44 Susquehanna Built c1875. Two-story, three-bay, flat-roofed frame dwelling with paired brackets at
roofline with two-over-two sash; side hall entrance with side and transom lights;
three-sided bays and back ell.

Garage: Non-historic frontal gable frame, c1970. N/C

*45 Susquehanna Built ¢1880. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with two-story, flat-roofed,
back ell; pedimented window frames with paired one-over-one sash; small porch
with pierced board supports and millwork braces in corner; deep-eaved roof with
raking cornice. Once matched 43 Susquehanna.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, c1970. N/C

*46 Susquehanna Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, cross-gabled Downingesque frame dwelling; low
gable roof with flared eaves and boxed gutters; modilion blocks at roofline; side
hall entrance with non-historic door frame; two-over-two sash; porch with squared
columns.

Garage: Non-historic, frontal gable, frame, c1985. N/C

Historic note: This house was used as the Baptist Parsonage from 1882 until 1917
when the one next to the church on Elm Street was built at 19 Elm Street on land
traded for this property.

* Previously listed resource

N/C  Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*47 Susquehanna Built c1873. One-and-three-quarter-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with raking
cornice; porch with turned columns and corner braces on front and side; six-over-
six sash; vinyl siding. Builder: Luther I. Burditt.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame with novelty siding, c1940.

*47Y; Susquehanna  Built c1920. Two-story, two-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with front porch
supported by turned columns; asbestos shingles; replacement sash; non-historic
gable-roofed back ell. Builder: Jim Barnes.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, frame with extended roof, c1920.

*48 Susquehanna Built 1870. Two-story, three-bay, flat-roofed, square plan, frame dwelling with
paired, scrolled brackets at roofline; segmental arched window and door frames;
lower two-story back ell; two-over-two sash; veranda on side.

Garage: Non-historic frame, c1960. N/C

Historic note: This house was built for James A. Lynes, an attorney, and the son-in-
law of Luther 1. Burditt, also an attorney and an active real estate developer of the
period. At the time the house was built, the lot to the north was occupied by
McCabe's stoneyard, owned by Cooperstown's most prominent masonry firm of the
period. Later, Lynes bought the stoneyard lot, providing the house with an
unusually large lot in the village.

*49 Susquehanna Built 1894-1903. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling; shingled gable
ends with vergeboards; two-over-two sash; porch with square columns on knee
wall spans front facade; shed-roofed back ell. Built on same plan as #51, 53, 55
Susquehanna Avenue. Builder: Cory.
Garage: Frontal gable, frame with sliding battened doors, c1920.

*51 Susquehanna Built 1894-1903. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling; vergeboard in
gable ends; shed-roofed kitchen ell; two-over-two sash; entrance porch with turned
columns and corner braces. Built on same plan as #49, 53, 55 Susquehanna Avenue.
Builder: Cory.

*52 Susquehanna Built 1894-1903. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with scrolled bracket on
entrance porch over side hall entrance; two-over-two sash; paired period doors.
Builder: Cory.
Carriage shed: Two-level, board-and-batten frame, ¢1880.

*53 Susquehanna Built 1894-1903. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with shingle
siding; wood shingle siding; two-over-two sash; center entrance porch with Tuscan
columns and simple fan light over door frame. Built on same plan as #49, 51, 55
Susquehanna Avenue. Builder: Cory.

*55 Susquehanna Built 1894-1903. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with diamond
shingles and decorative vergeboard in gable end; shed-roofed entrance porch with
turned columns and corner braces; shed-roofed kitchen ell. Builder: Cory.

» Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*56 Susquehanna

*57 Susquehanna

*58 Susquehanna

*59 Susquehanna

*60 Susquehanna

*61 Susquehanna

62-64 Susquehanna

66 Susquehanna

68 Susquehanna

Village of Cooperstown

Incorrectly listed as #54 in old list.

Built 1894-1903. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with low gable roof (possibly
changed later); later shed-roofed addition on south side; porch with Tuscan
columns on front and side; two-over-two sash. Builder: Cory.

Carriage shed: Two-level, frontal gable, frame with board-and-batten siding, c1880.

Built ¢1900. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling; shingled gable end
with decorative vergeboard; porch with square columns spans front facade; two-
over-two sash; single-story kitchen ell.

Garage: Shed-roofed frame with novelty siding and paired, battened doors, c1930.

Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling; porch with turned
columns and corner braces spanning front facade; pedimented window frames with
two-over-two sash; partial returns.

Garage: Frame with partial returns matching house, ¢1940.

Built ¢1906. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with decorative shingles and
arched window in gable end; porch with turned columns and corner braces spans
front facade with non-historic, attached, single-bay, frame garage.

Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, square plan, pyramidal-roofed, frame dwelling
with Colonial Revival-style side hall entrance (c1940); replacement sash; asbestos
shingles; lower two-story back ell.

Built ¢1906. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling; shingles and
Palladian window in gable end; full returns; porch with Tuscan columns spanning
front facade; one-over-one sash; non-historic carport attached at rear.

Built 1909. Two-and-a-half-story, four-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, two-
family frame dwelling with single-story, shed-roofed kitchen ell at rear; hip-roofed
porch supported by Tuscan columns spans front facade; novelty siding with
decorative shingles in gable ends; two Queen Anne parlor windows. Built by
Taylor and Ellsworth, adjacent to their Ellison Cottage at 45 Beaver Street.

Built 1903-1909. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling; hip-roofed
porch supported by turned columns with millwork braces spanning front facade;
clapboard siding with scalloped shingle detail in gable end; variety of period sash.
Carriage shed: Frame with novelty-siding and rolling doors, c1890.

Built ¢1890. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross-gabled wing and
two single-story ells at rear; hip-roofed porch supported by square columns spans
front facade; wood shingle siding with variety of period sash.

Garage: Non-historic, two-level frame. N/C

Previously listed resource

N/C  Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing




United States Department of Interior OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Glimmerglass Historic District

Continuation Sheet Otsego County, New York

Section 7, page 121 Annotated Property List
Village of Cooperstown

70-72 Susquehanna  Built c1880. Two-story, four-bay, rectangular plan dwelling with frontal gambrel
roof; hip-roofed, enclosed porch spans front facade; variety of period sash; asbestos
shingle siding.

Shed: Non-historic frame. N/C
Historic note: This building was originally two frontal gable structures sharing a
long wall. The resulting gully was filled, creating the gambrel, about 1900.

74 Susquehanna Built ¢1900. Single-story, center entrance, frame dwelling with enclosed porch set
under extended front roof; novelty siding; three-sided bay window on south wall.
Shed: Frontal gable, frame with novelty siding and paired doors. c1900.

76 Susquehanna Built 1959. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling.
N/C
Garage: Frame single-bay. N/C

80 Susquehanna Built 1915. Two-story, T-plan, frame dwelling with attached garage; vinyl siding.
Considerably altered, and has lost all historic integrity. N/C

WALNUT ST

The west end of Walnut Street, from Chestnut to Delaware streets, was laid out in the last quarter of the
nineteenth century parallelling Beaver Street, which had formerly been the village's south boundary. Until
the 1870s, this area had been farms, and the maps show several hop kilns and a few farmhouses. The
Burditt family—father Luther and son William Dean—played a leading role in developing the area south of
Beaver Street, including Walnut, Beaver, and Delaware streets and South Avenue. They resided at 15 Walnut
during much of this period. The eastern part of Walnut Street was opened about 1940, and houses in that
section reflect post-World War II development.

1 Walnut St Built 1940s. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with
single-story wing and non-historic hip-roofed porch over entry; three gable-roofed
dormers in front roof face, with six-over-six sash. N/C

2 Walnut St Built c1950. Single-story, frontal gable frame dwelling with cross-gabled wing, hip-roofed
entry porch, and attached garage; aluminum siding; partial returns; vertical three-over-
one sash. Architect: Warren Cooper; Builder: David Willsey. N/C

3 Walnut St Built 1949. Single-story, four-bay, rectangular, frame, gable-roofed dwelling with non-
historic metal pent roof over entry. Architect: Gunnison Company, subsidiary of US
Steel. N/C

4 Walnut St Built 1965. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with variety of sash;

attached single-bay garage. Architect: Ridge Homes, Pennsylvania; Builder: Woodcraft,
Latham, New York. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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5 Walnut St

6 Walnut St

7 Walnut St

8 Walnut St

9 Walnut St

10 Walnut St

11 Walnut St

12 Walnut St

12%-14 Walnut St

Village of Cooperstown

Built 1947. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, L-plan, frame dwelling with shed-roofed,
single-story wing; enclosed porch and open entry porch supported by square columns;
aluminum siding and false stone cladding. N/C

Built 1949. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, cinder block dwelling with attached
two-bay garage. N/C

Built ¢1950. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with brick first story
and vinyl siding on second story and shed-roofed dormer spanning front roof face; small
enclosed porch over entrance. N/C

Built 1949. One-and-a-half-story, two-bay, rectangular-plan, cinder block dwelling with
attached garage; retains mostly six-over-one sash, except for parlor window; aluminum
siding. N/C

Built 1962. Single-story, four-bay, frame dwelling with gable roof and attached garage.
N/C

Built ¢1950. Single-story, rectangular plan, cinder block dwelling with gable roof and
single-story gable-roofed wing; paired six-over-six sash in gable ends; single six-over-six
otherwise; vinyl siding. N/C

Built 1948. Single-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with gable roof and single-story wing;
attached two-bay garage; vinyl siding; retains six-over-one sash throughout.

Built ¢1950. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, cinder block dwelling with gable
roof and metal awning on iron supports over main entrance; replacement siding covers
masonry; attached garage. N/C

Built 1959. Single-story, three-unit, frame dwelling with brick knee wall converted into a
dwelling. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing



United States Department of Interior OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Glimmerglass Historic District

Continuation Sheet

Section 7, page 123

Otsego County, New York

Annotated Property List

15 Walnut St

17 Walnut St

22 Walnut St

24 Walnut St

26 Walnut St

27 Walnut St

28 Walnut St

Village of Cooperstown

Built 1871-1872. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame, dwelling with later (c1882)
cross-gabled wing and same height back ell; retains pedimented window frames with
two-over-two sash; three-sided bay windows on side walls. Now used as multi-family
dwelling.

Garage: Two-bay, frame with novelty-siding, ¢1950. N/C

Historic note: Luther 1. Burditt, an attorney and a leading real estate developer, built this
house for himself in 1871-1872. In 1882, he deeded the property to his son, William
Dean Burditt. W.D. Burditt carried on his father's developing business, playing a
prominent role in the development of Delaware and Beaver streets. The son added the
east wing to the house, as well as the pedimented window frames and a large piazza,
removed in the 1950s, when the house was divided into apartments. William occupied
the house into the twentieth century, and ran a large poultry farm there. In 1903, 7he
New Century Atlas showed the house on Delaware Street, because Walnut Street ended
west of this property. It also shows Burditt owning much of the surrounding
undeveloped land used as his Riverview Poultry Yards, and was contiguous to the new
fairgrounds. #17 Walnut Street was once a carriage shed for this property.

Built 1890-1903. One-and-a-half-story, gable-roofed frame carriage shed converted to
dwelling with arched non-historic replacement windows.

Historic note: This was the carriage house for #15 Walnut Street, built for William Dean
Burditt.

Built ¢1880. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling with frontal gable main block, two-
story wing, and small, single-story ell at rear; hip-roofed porch with turned columns
partially spans front facade; clapboard siding; mostly two-over-two sash.

Built ¢1890. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, frontal gable frame dwelling with two-
story addition at rear; retains original fenestration; asbestos shingles.
Garage: Frame pyramidal-roofed frame with exposed gable ends, ¢1920.

Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
small, single-story wing and enclosed porch spanning front facade; vinyl siding.
Garage: Non-historic frame. N/C

Name: Cooperstown Elementary School

Built 1954. Single-story brick building with two-level wing at east end. Builder: Neil R.
Neilsen. N/C

Historic note: This property was the second Otsego County Fairgrounds, after the first
one was dismantled in the late 1800s.

Built c1870. Two-story, three-bay, square plan, frame dwelling with low pyramidal roof
with one-and-a-half-story, three-bay wing; pedimented window frames; two-over-two
sash and period door; non-historic hip-roofed entrance porch; vinyl siding.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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30-32 Walnut St

34 Walnut St

37 Walnut St

38 Walnut St

40 Walnut St

41 Walnut St

42 Walnut St

43 Walnut St

Village of Cooperstown

Built 1903-1909. Two-story, T-plan, two-family frame dwelling with shed-roofed porch
spanning front and partially wrapping sides; pediment in porch roof over entrance;
retains decorative shingles in gable ends and period windows with diamond lattice
upper sash.

Garage: Non-historic, two-bay sheet metal. N/C

Built c1880. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frontal gable, frame dwelling with
one-and-a-half-story, two-bay wing; non-historic enclosed front porch; clapboard siding;
raking cornice.

Carriage shed: Two-level frame with novelty siding and sliding doors, ¢1890.

Built 1932. One-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, frontal gable, frame dwelling with wing
and enclosed porch; clapboard siding, mostly nine-over-one sash.

Garage: Frame with paired doors, ¢1940.

Historic note: This was a precut house brought from Michigan by rail.

Built 1931. Single-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with cropped gable
ends and asymmetrical, flared gable over center entrance; wood shingle siding; retains
period windows in variety of sizes and shapes. Builder: Matt Chapman.

Garage: Frame with pyramidal-roof, c1931.

Historic note: This was a precut house brought from Michigan by rail.

Built 1903-1909. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with cross-gabled
gambrel roof; hip-roofed porch with square columns spans front facade; retains
clapboard siding and period sash.

Garage: Frame with paired doors, ¢1920.

Built 1917. Two-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with hip-roofed porch spanning front
facade. Builder: George Robinson.
Carriage shed: Frame, one-and-a-half-level with two non-historic garage bays, c1910.

Built 1912. Two-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with
cross-gables; shingle siding; retains period window openings with replacement sash.
Builder: George Robinson.

Garage: Single-bay, frame with frontal gable, 1940.

Built 1903-1908. Two-and-a-half-story, square plan, frame dwelling with irregular roof
and shed-roofed porch supported by square columns spanning main gable block; wood
shingles in gable ends; vinyl siding elsewhere; period one-over-one sash.

Carriage shed: Frame, one-and-a-half-level with clapboards, c1890.

’ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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44 Walnut St

45 Walnut St

49 Walnut St

50 Walnut St

52 Walnut St

54 Walnut St

WEST BEAVER ST

4 West Beaver St

5 West Beaver St

WESTRIDGE RD

*2 Westridge Rd

Village of Cooperstown

Built ¢1890; moved to site 1902. Two-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan,
frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-story porch with pierced board balustrade
wrapping front and both sides; novelty siding with shingles in gable ends.

Sheds: Two frame, c1900.

Historic note: This building was the men's clubhouse at the Fair Street playing grounds.
When it was moved, the roofline was altered from its original asymmetrical frontal gable
to the present symmetrical one.

Built 1951. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with cross-gabled
enclosed front porch. N/C
Garage: Non-historic frame two-bay. N/C

Built 1917. One-and-a-half-story, T-plan, frame dwelling with enclosed shed-roofed
porch spanning front facade; aluminum siding; all sash replaced; house oriented to
Linden Ave. Built for Martin Moakler as a rental property.

Garage: Frame single-bay, frontal gable, c1940.

Built ¢1890. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with frontal gable roof and later
wing; hip-roofed porch with millwork supports and simple arched braces; non-period
wood shingle first story; vinyl-sided upper story.

Built ¢1870. Two-story, three-bay, square plan, frame main block with two-story, three-
bay wing and single-story kitchen ell at rear; flat roof with deep eaves and cornices;
brackets at roofline; two-over-two sash; resided with aluminum.

Garage: Cinder block, two-bay, gambrel-roofed, ¢1960. N/C

Built 1909-1915. One-and-a-half-story, two-bay, square plan, frame dwelling with gable-
roof; entrance set under extended roof; clapboard siding with decorative shingles in
gable ends; hip-roofed dormer window in front facade; paired one-over-one sash.
Shed: Non-historic frame. N/C

Built ¢1960. Single-story, five-bay, frame dwelling with attached garage; aluminum
siding. N/C

Built ¢1950. Two-story, three-bay, stucco on frame commercial building with non-historic
windows. N/C

Built 1965. Single-story, frame ranch style dwelling with frontal gable wing and attached
two-bay garage. N/C

s Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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*3 Westridge Rd  Built 1958. Frame dwelling made up of three single-story blocks of descending heights,
including two-bay garage; vinyl siding. N/C

*5 Westridge Rd  Historic name: McKim House
Built 1884. Two-story, frame, Shingle style, dwelling with irregular roofline, including
prominent frontal gable, now sided with aluminum; most exterior walls shingled.
Several porches and irregular footprint contribute to general sense of asymmetry;
northwest wing added 1903. Most windows replaced. Architect: Babb, Cook and
Willard.
Carriage shed (now a separate address): Two-level, frame, with Shingle style detailing,
though more curvilinear and fanciful than that of house, 1884.
Historic note: This house was built as a summer home for Robert V. McKim, a Brooklyn
banker with connections to Cooperstown families. When it was built in 1884, it caused
comment in the local press because its design was so unusual for the region. Its
architects, Babb, Cook and Willard, was a prominent New York City firm with strong
connections to the firm of McKim, Mead and White. Two of the principals of Babb,
Cook and Willard apprenticed with McKim, Mead and White, and the two firms often
worked jointly on projects at this period. This house was published in the 1 July 1886
number of The Sanitary Engineer.

7 Westridge Rd  Built 1959. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with board-and-
batten siding; attached garage. N/C

9 Westridge Rd  Built 1959. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with two-bay attached garage;
vinyl siding; prominent nine-light picture window overlooking lake. N/C

11 Westridge Rd  Built 1962. Single-story, frame dwelling with vertical board siding; exposed roofbeams in
gable ends. N/C
Garage: Two-bay garage matches house, c1980. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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This list uses the 911 numbering system implemented in Otsego County in 1999.

BEAVER MEADOW RD

689 Beaver Meadow Rd Built ¢1880; moved to site ¢1980. One-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling with
cross-gabled roof; raking cornice; two-over-two sash. N/C

715 Beaver Meadow Rd Built c1850. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed
frame dwelling with non-historic siding and sash.

BOWEN RD

370 Bowen Rd Built c1985. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling

with T-111 siding; two-bay garage attached by breezeway. N/C
Dairy barn: Gable-roofed, frame, basement type, c1900.
Hop house: Frame, c1880; remade into a workshop, c1990.

CHICKEN FARM HILL RD

Chicken Farm Hill Road is among the oldest approaches to the village of Cooperstown. It comes from the
older village of Cherry Valley (1740) and passes through a saddle in the ridge on the east side of Otsego
Lake, passing just north of Mount Vision.

Quarry Quarry is positioned about halfway up the hill. It is the site where James Fenimore

Cooper introduced Oliver Edwards, in the company of Natty Bumppo, to Judge
Marmaduke Temple and his daughter Elizabeth in 7he Pioneers.

EAST LAKE ROAD (CO HWY 31)

East Lake Road (County Highway 31) overlays the old route from the East Springfield settlement to the
village of Cooperstown.

110 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1970. Two-story, frame dwelling with stone-faced first story. N/C

116 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1970. Single-story, frame dwelling with garage underneath. N/C

128 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1970. Single-story, frame dwelling with stone facing and garage underneath.
N/C

136 Co Hwy 31 Built c1980. Single-story, frame dwelling. N/C

142 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1980. Single-story, frame dwelling. N/C

148 Co Hwy 31 Built c1980. Single-story, frame dwelling with shed-roofed porch spanning part of

front facade and attached garage. N/C

g Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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154 Co Hwy 31 Built c1970. Single-story, frame dwelling with enclosed porch and clapboard siding.
N/C
182 Co Hwy 31 Historic name: Lakewood Cemetery

Landscape: Steeply sloping landscape with curving drives rising through the family
plots; shaded by mature white pines and deciduous trees; graves date from all
periods from 1856 onward, with some earlier re-interred burials and markers moved
to the site.

Monument: Leatherstocking Monument—a three-quarter statue by Launitz of
Cooper's Natty Bumppo standing on a column—rises near center of first terrace of
land above road.

Caretaker's cottage: One-and-a-half-story, brick dwelling with steep-pitched roof.
¢1860.

Historic note: Lakewood Cemetery was founded in 1856 by an association of
Cooperstown citizens who desired a rural cemetery for the community. Previously,
people were buried in the church yards of the Presbyterian and Episcopal churches.
The Leatherstocking Monument was erected in 1860, after a failed effort by friends
of the deceased novelist to raise the monument in New York City.

221 Co Hwy 31 Historic name: Fairy Spring(s) Park
Caretaker's house: Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with flanking wings
designed as changing rooms; most windows replaced, c1937.
Pavilion: Single-story, frame pavilion with carved posts and braces, now enclosed;
large stone chimney and hearth in one end wall, c1937.
Outhouse: Frame, c1937.
Landscape: Retains terraced landscape with log retaining walls; lawn dotted with
large trees used for picnicking, etc.
Historic note: This is said to be location of Natty Bumppo's hut in 7he Pioneers
(1823). It became a village park in 1936.

307 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story, frame camp. N/C
309 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story, frame camp. N/C
313 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story, frame camp. N/C
315 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1950. Single-story, frame camp. N/C

319 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1950. Single-story, frame camp. N/C

* Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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324 Co Hwy 31 Historic name: Chalet Farm

Name: Fernleigh Farm

Built ¢1870. One-and-a-half-story, stone chalet style dwelling on high raised stone
basement; decorative woodwork on frontal gable and porch on main level.

Horse barn: Small, frame, single-level, gable-roofed, frame horse barn with board
and batten siding, ¢1900.

Dairy barn: Large, two-level, gable-roofed frame bank barn with gable dormers for
loading mows; Stick style details, c1885.

Horse barn: Frame single-level, non-historic, ¢1980. N/C

Landscape: Open land extends along same level as house and barn and a mown
swath opens land above barns to the ridge creating Star Field.

Historic note: This property was owned by the novelist James Fenimore Cooper
from the 1830s until his death in 1851. He visited it almost every day that he was in
Cooperstown, overseeing its operation by a tenant farmer. It seems to be referred
to as The Cliffs in Susan Fenimore Cooper's Rural Hours (1850). The old
farmhouse, a small frame rectangular plan dwelling with board-and-batten siding
and millwork trim, was destroyed by fire. Edward Clark family acquired the
property in the mid-1870s, and built the present chalet-style dwelling as well as the
dairy barn.

481 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1920-1940. Single-story, gable-roofed, frame camp built in several phases: first
phase a long, narrow room with six-over-six sash; enclosed porch added to front of
this, overlooking lake; screened breezeway attaches older part with non-historic
bunkhouse.

Outhouse: Frame outhouse, ¢1940.

523 Co Hwy 31 Historic name: Point Judith Camp
Built c1875. Single-story, frontal gable, chalet style frame camp with porch spanning
lake side.
Tower: (Historic name: Kingfisher Tower) Random ashlar stone tower with tile roof,
designed to resemble a fourteenth-century Rhenish tower. Architect: Henry ].
Hardenburgh; built 1876.
Landscape: Steep road descends through woods to open lawn surrounding camp.
Historic note: Edward Clark developed this property for his family's use in the
1870s. It was among his earliest acquisitions of lakefront property.

541 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1910-1930. Single-story, single-room camp with same height addition at north
end; variety of windows.

583 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1940-1950. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame camp with variety of siding;
screened and glassed-in windows.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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625 Co Hwy 31 Historic name: Point Florence Camp

Built c1880. Single-story, frontal gable, novelty-sided, frame dwelling with porch
wrapping lake and side walls; south end extended with screened sleeping porch;
porch supported by tree trunks with exposed braces; Stick style wall patterning; six-
over-six sash and lunette in gable end overlooking lake.

Landscape: Steep road descends through woods to open lawn surrounding camp.
Historic note: Built by Clark family.

725 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1900. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
camp with novelty siding and "gothic" gable on lake side; hip-roofed porch on lake
side and end walls supported by squared, chamfered columns; single-story kitchen
wing added at north end; deck extends from north end of older porch; six-over-six
sash throughout; stone chimney.

Outhouse: Frame, ¢1920.

733 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1920-1940. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame camp with
clapboard siding; sills are reused posts from a nineteenth-century building; Shed-
roofed porch spanning lake side with supports made from birch trunks; six-over-six
sash and six-light casements.

Outhouse: Frame, ¢1920.

737 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1920. Single-story, frontal gable, frame camp with novelty siding; wing added
€1940; older portion retains six-over-six sash and multi-light door, screened porch;
bunk house at north end with overhanging roof.

Outhouse: Frame, ¢1940.

741 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1900. Frame camp built in two phases: earlier part a two-story, gable-roofed
frame building with porch spanning two-thirds of lake side and later shed-roofed
addition on north end with four-light casements; stands on high piers with storage
area beneath.

Outhouse: Frame, ¢1920.

745 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1900-1920. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame camp
with hip-roofed, screened porch on lake side and north side; most sash replaced.
Landscape: Cobblestone retaining wall at lake edge; creek diverted to wrap on
north side of this property's open area.

749 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1900-1930. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame camp with porch wrapping
lake and north side; rustic log railing on porch; mostly six-over-six sash; retains late
Victorian door and screen door; faced with logs, bark face out.
Outhouse: Frame, with stone steps, ¢1920.
Landscape: Camp situated on small, beachy point with low retaining wall between
house and beach; rustic log railings on gravel steps leading down to beach;
walkway links this property and next one to north (755 Co Hwy 31).

® Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing



United States Department of the Interior OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Glimmerglass Historic District

Continuation Sheet Otsego County, New York

Section 7 Page 131 Annotated Property List
Town of Middlefield

755 Co Hwy 31 Name: Willowdale

Built 1934. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame camp with cross-
gabled porch on lake side; sided with rough boards.

Garage: Frame, at roadside with dilapidated chute for sending goods down to camp
on lakeshore, ¢1940.

Playhouse: Frame, non-historic, ¢1980. N/C

Woodshed: Frame, non-historic, N/C

Utility shed: Frame, non-historic, N/C

Landscape: Stone retaining wall along lake shore with flagged steps leading up to
camp; small open lawn framed by cedars and willows; walkway joins this camp
with 749 Co Hwy 31.

759 Co Hwy 31 Name: Camp Minnetoska
Built ¢1940. Single-story, frame dining hall with three wings; porch spans two wings
facing lake; large stone chimney set in junction between two wings facing lake;
paired casement windows throughout; board-and-batten siding.
Shed: Frame, gable-roofed, ¢1940.
Cottage: Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame building with three-sided
bay window on lake side; board-and-batten siding. ¢1930.
Landscape: Camp situated on a sloping lawn with trees at chosen locations around

the property.
907 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1960. Single-story, frame camp. N/C
909 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1960. Single-story, frame camp. N/C
911 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1960. Single-story, frame camp. N/C
913 Co Hwy 31 Built c1960. Single-story, frame camp. N/C
¢ Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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1041 Co Hwy 31

1229 Co Hwy 31

1257 Co Hwy 31

1261 Co Hwy 31

Town of Middlefield

Name: Pathfinder Lodge

Built c1940. Single-story, frame lodge built in several phases, beginning ¢1930;
oldest portion faces lake and has rustic stone hearth, a porch facing the lake;
French doors open onto porch.

Bunkhouses: Twelve small rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame bunk houses with
bark-faced log siding, c1940.

Camp: Frame, two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, with porch wrapping lake
and south sides, ¢1910-1930.

Camp: Frame, two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, with shingle siding and a
small porch on the north wall, c1920.

Bunkhouse: Two open frame bunk houses, c1960. N/C

Bunkhouse: Large frame two-story, bunk house, ¢1980. N/C

Dining hall: Large masonry dining hall, c1980. N/C

Landscape: Camp buildings mostly sited between two creeks that create the point,
locally known as The Dugway. Paths wind from the lake shore up to the road, and
the land is generally wooded. Three cabins are on the south side of the southern
creek and are reached by a small wooden bridge on a stone foundation. A
recently built steel bridge connects the upper buildings with the lower ones on the
other side of the main gorge.

Historic note: The Dugway has been a site for camps on Otsego Lake from at least
the 1880s. In 1918, the Pathfinder Camp for girls had its first season at The
Dugway. The campers slept in platform tents perched on the steep hillside; by the
1930s permanant sleeping cabins and the main craft and dining building on the
lakeshore provided more durable accommodations. The property is now owned by
the Baptist Conference of New York State, which has added a large, non-historic
dormitory and dining hall near the road.

Built ¢1940. Two-story, rectangular plan, frame camp with barrel-vaulted roof and
hip-roofed porch on long wall facing south onto lake; some windows replaced,
possibly with altered openings.

Sheds: Two non-historic gable-roofed frame. N/C

Landscape: Camp set at the end of Pegg's Point surrounded by many trees of
varying ages; stone retaining wall contains creek that created the point.

Built ¢1980. One-story, frame house with clapboards; attached garage. N/C

Built ¢1960. Single-story, frame camp. N/C

Bunkhouse: Frame bunkhouse with small porch facing lake, c1960. N/C
Shed: Frame, c1980. N/C

Outhouse: Frame, c1960. N/C

1340 Co Hwy 31 Built c1985. Two-story, frame house built in two blocks; clapboard siding and
assorted sash. N/C
* Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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1387 Co Hwy 31

1397 Co Hwy 31

1401 Co Hwy 31

Town of Middlefield

Historic name: The Dower House

Built 1893. Two-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan dwelling with gable roof
extended at the rear; porch spanning lake side supported by braced timbers;
limestone first story and half-timbered upper levels; one-over-one sash.
Outbuilding: One-and-a-half-story, frame building, possibly built as a servants'
dwelling. c1900.

Historic note: The Dower House was built for Maria Gregory Clarke on land
overlooking Hyde Bay owned by the Clarke family, who held much of the land
surrounding the bay.

Built ¢1980. Single-story, frame dwelling with fieldstone chimney, clapboard siding,
and rustic porches. N/C

Built ¢1990. One-and-a-half-story, gambrel-roofed, frame dwelling with clapboard
siding. N/C
Garage: Frame, two-bay frame. N/C

1405 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1990. One-and-a-half-story log dwelling with gambrel roof and porch
spanning front facade. N/C

1412 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1980. One-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling. N/C

1413 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1960. Single-story, frame camp on block foundation with vinyl siding. N/C
Bunkhouse: Frame bunkhouse entered from deck surrounding house, c1960. N/C
Boathouse: Frame, gable-roofed, c1960. N/C
Outhouse: Frame with beadboard siding, ¢1960. N/C

1425 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1900. Two-story frame dwelling with frontal gable main block and one-and-a-
half-story wing with shed-roofed porch at rear; assorted windows, mostly one-over-
one sash; novelty siding.
Sheds: Three frame, all post-1948. N/C

1429 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with vinyl siding;
attached garage. N/C

1436 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1980. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
porch spanning front. N/C
Garage: Frame three-bay with T-111 siding, c1980. N/C

1445 Co Hwy 31 Historic name: Hyde Bay Association
Name: Hyde Bay Beach Colony
"Lakeview": Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame camp on pilings with
board-and-batten siding, six-over-six sash, and hip-roofed porch wrapping front and
side facing lake, c1905.
"Main House": Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame camp built in two
phases: earlier part matches "Lakeview" with a second building of similar plan

» Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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placed alongside first part; hip-roofed porch wraps all four sides; board-and-batten
siding, c1902.

"Hilltop": Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame camp with clapboard
siding, six-over-six sash, and hip-roofed porch wrapping front and portion of lake
side, c1948.

Water tank: Cement tank with gable roof and framed addition to northwest corner,
c1928.

"Buns": Two-story, gable-roofed, frame camp with shed-roofed porch on lakeside
elevation; sheathed mostly with board-and-batten siding, c1950.

Pumphouse: Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame building on high
cement foundation, c1928.

"Lakeside": Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame camp with board-and-
batten siding; nine-over-six and six-over-six sash, c1915.

"The Candy Store": Single-story, two-bay, gable-roofed, frame building with board-
and-batten siding, c1915.

Boathouse: Two-story, gable-roofed, frame building with board-and-batten siding.
Built as a pavilion or recreation hall for indoor parties; moved to present location
before 1940, c1902.

"Brookside": Single-story, gable-roofed, frame camp with clapboard siding and shed-
roofed front porch, ¢1952. N/C

"Woodside": Single-story, gable-roofed, frame building with clapboard siding and
shed-roofed front porch, c1952. N/C

"Shadyside": Single-story, gable-roofed, frame building with clapboard siding and
shed-roofed front porch, c1952. N/C

"Sunnyside": Single-story, gable-roofed, frame camp with clapboard siding; back
room added; shed-roofed front porch, c1950. N/C

"Simplicity": Single-story, gable-roofed, frame camp with clapboard siding; added
back room; shed-roofed front porch, ¢1950. N/C

"Finally": Single-story, gable-roofed frame camp with clapboard siding; added back
room; shed-roofed front porch, ¢1950. N/C

Unnamed cottage: Single-story, gable-roofed frame camp with clapboard siding,
added back room; shed-roofed front porch, ¢1950. N/C

"Twin Pines": Three single-story, frame duplex cottages with clapboard siding and
shed-roofed front porches on southeast side of colony, c1962. N/C

Historic note: The Hyde Bay Association was organized in 1902 by a large group of
local shareholders, mostly from Cherry Valley and Springfield, as a picnic and
camping ground. In 1904, the association added more land contiguous to the
original property. Both parcels were bought from the Hyde Clarkes. The property,
approximately four acres, evolved into a cabin colony run by the Rathbun family by
the 1920s. From the 1930s through the mid-1960s, the property was run by Mary
Lybeck. In the 1950s and 1960s, she and her husband added several additional
cabins near the roadside. After Lybeck sold the property, it became a private camp
colony with individual buildings owned by different people. It continues this way
today.

1451 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1990. One-story, log house with T-111-sided shed-roofed dormer with
attached garage. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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1488 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1990. Single-story log house. N/C

1494 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1990. Two-story frame house. N/C

1496 Co Hwy 31 Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story frame dwelling with vinyl siding and gable-roofed

dormers, c1960. N/C
Garage: Frame. N/C

1527 Co Hwy 31 Name: Glimmerglass State Park
Vehicle shed: Eight-bay frame vehicle shed, ¢1970. N/C
Sheds: Four frame sheds of varying sizes, c1970-1980. N/C
Block shed: ¢1970-1980. N/C
Note: The main portion of the Glimmerglass State Park property straddles the
Middlefield-Springfield town line. The park occupies land once owned by the Hyde
Clarke family at the north end of the lake. The state took over the property in the
mid-1960s, and nearly demolished the family house Hyde Hall. This was preserved
by the Friends of Hyde Hall, while the land was reorganized as a state park with a
beach and campground. See Town of Springfield for park resources in Springfield.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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CO HWY 33 (River Rd and Middlefield Center Rd)

This county highway combines the northern end of the back river road along the Susquehanna River and
part of the oldest road to Cooperstown (from Cherry Valley), often called the Middlefield Center Road.

1527 Co Hwy 33

1583 Co Hwy 33

1591 Co Hwy 33

1599 Co Hwy 33

1617 Co Hwy 33

Historic name: Iroquois Farm

Name: Livestock Show Barn

Built c1910. Single-level, frontal gable, frame horse barn with lower stable block
added to south side; tin ventilators; exposed gable ends; multi-light windows.

Bam: Rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame barn for hay and grain storage, matches
horse barn in details, ¢1910.

Barn on east side of road (1550 Co Hwy 33): Rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dairy barn with board-and-batten siding on stone basement, c1900.

Pole barn on east side of road: Corrugated metal siding, ¢1990. N/C

Stone tower: Tall round tower designed to resemble an Irish medieval tower, built
1928.

Graveyard: Graves of Ambrose Clark; Kellsboro Jack, Clark's horse who won the
Grand National in England in 1936; and Buttons, a dog. Enclosed by low iron
fence.

Historic note: Ambrose Clark developed the Iroquois Farm property during the early
1900s. It embraced considerable acreage beginning at the Middlefield-Cooperstown
town line and going south along the Susquehanna River and Red Creek valleys as
well land on the other side of the eastern ridge. Much of it remains in Clark family
hands; its consolidation played an important role in preserving the visual boundary
at the southern end of the Glimmerglass Historic District. Sheep raising, horse
breeding, and dairying were all part of Iroquois's agricultural activities. Today, the
large barn with the ventilators is used to host the annual Junior Livestock Show,
now more than sixty years old. The show is jointly sponsored by The Farmers'
Museum, founded by Stephen C. Clark and the 4-H. For other parts of this
property, see 123 County Highway 52.

Built ¢1970. One-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling with gable roof pierced by gable
dormers; attached garage. N/C

Single-story, frame dwelling with two-over-two sash. Abandoned and dilapidated.
N/C

Built c1980. One-and-a-half-story frame dwelling. N/C
Garage: Frame, c1980. N/C

Built ¢1980. One-and-a-half-story frame dwelling. N/C
Garage: Frame, ¢1980. N/C
Barn: Single-level, non-historic horse barn, c1980. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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1635 Co Hwy 33 Built ¢1900. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with hip-

roofed porch supported by square columns spanning center three bays; two-story
back ell; two-over-two sash.

Barn: Frontal gable frame horse and hay barn with unusual extended roof on one
side supported by handsome braces, c1900.

1647 Co Hwy 33 Built ¢1900; converted to dwelling, c1975. One-and-a-half-story frontal gable, single-
level horse barn with cupola ventilator; garage attached c1978.

1659 Co Hwy 33 Frame house under construction, 1999. N/C

1660 Co Hwy 33 Built ¢1900. Two-story, six-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame dwelling with

nine-over-six and six-over-six sash; partial returns; two-story back ell; Colonial
Revival porch over center entrance.

Garage: Frame, ¢1940.

Historic note: This house was built for Robert Sterling Clark.

1672 Co Hwy 33 Built c1880. Two-story, frame dwelling with late nineteenth century storefront at
corner of building; fishscale shingle detail in gable ends; two-over-two sash in
pedimented window frames.

Garage: Non-historic three-bay frame garage with apartment above, c1980. N/C

1787 Co Hwy 33 Built c1980. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with smaller
rectangular plan, gable-roofed wing attached by single-story hyphen; clapboard
siding; variety of sash and casements.

1791 Co Hwy 33 Built ¢1860. One-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with brackets at
roofline and deep cornice; clapboards; two-over-two sash.
Barn: Frame, gable-roofed, c1880.
Barn: Frame, gable-roofed, c1880.

1805 Co Hwy 33 Built ¢1850. One-and-a-half-story, irregular plan, highly developed brick Gothic
Revival dwelling with bracketed entrance porch, bargeboards in gable ends, variety
of sash and casement windows.

Horse barn: Frame, frontal gable, with pedimented window frames, on high stone
basement, c1850.
Garage: Non-historic, frame, ¢1970. N/C

MURPHY HILL RD (CO HWY 52)

92 Co Hwy 52 Built 1992. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with vinyl siding; attached two-bay garage.

. Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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123 Co Hwy 52

124 Co Hwy 52

174 Co Hwy 52

178 Co Hwy 52

180 Co Hwy 52

188 Co Hwy 52

205 Co Hwy 52

209 Co Hwy 52

210 Co Hwy 52

211 Co Hwy 52

Town of Middlefield

Historic name: Iroquois Farm

Tenant house: Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with two-over-two sash, c1875.

Stables: Stucco, U-plan, stable building with cupola. Built 1923.

Greenhouse: Glass-roofed with brick kneewall, c1950. N/C

Landscape: Property fronted by a high stone wall similar to the ones following West
Lake Road alongside the old Fenimore Farm property. A deerpark with dimunitive
European deer lies along the bottom land by the Susquehanna River.

Historic note: Edward Severin Clark bought Riverside Farm, as this part of the
Iroquois Farm property was called in the late 1800s, for his brother, Ambrose
Clark's, twenty-first birthday in 1902. Ambrose Clark built an elaborate house, now
demolished, and developed his love of all kinds of horse-related activities, including
racing, driving, and simply riding. On this site, he built his racehorse stable, which
Percy Griffin designed for him in similar vein to the stables at 9 Elk Street in
Cooperstown. The racehorse stables burned, and were replaced in 1923 with this
much simpler building. For other parts of the property, see 1527 County Highway
33.

Name: Clark Sports Center
Brick gymnasium. Built 1986. N/C
Shed: Large, frame storage building, c1985. N/C

Built ¢1970. Two-story, gable-roofed, frame dwelling. N/C
Garage: Frame, two-bay, ¢1970. N/C

Built c1915. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with clipped gable
ends; shed-roofed dormers on north roof face; screened side porch supported by
Tuscan columns; paired six-over-one sash.

Built ¢1880. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with pedimented window
frames and two-over-two sash; porch with square columns wraps front and side.

Built ¢1880. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable, frame dwelling with cross-gabled
wing; pedimented window frames; replaced sash and siding.
Barn: Two-level, frontal gable horse and hay barn with shingle siding, c1880.

Built 1980. One-and-a-half-story frame dwelling with clapboard siding. N/C

Built ¢1870. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame schoolhouse with segmental-
arched windows and clapboard siding. Converted to a dwelling.

Built ¢1890. Two-story, five-bay, frame dwelling with steep gable roof and porch
spanning front facade. Heavily restored and has lost much historic detail. N/C
Garage: Non-historic frame, single-bay, ¢1970. N/C

Built c1840. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with non-historic, full-height back ell. Heavily altered during restoration. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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212 Co Hwy 52

213 Co Hwy 52

214 Co Hwy 52

217 Co Hwy 52

223 Co Hwy 52

224 Co Hwy 52

229 Co Hwy 52

230 Co Hwy 52

234 Co Hwy 52

235 Co Hwy 52

237 Co Hwy 52

241 Co Hwy 52

Town of Middlefield

Built ¢1880. Two-story, hip-roofed, frame dwelling with novelty siding; full front
porch probably replaced earlier one; attached frame garage added c1930.

Built ¢1890. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with porch supported by
Tuscan columns spanning front facade; raking cornice.

Built ¢1900; moved to site ¢1930. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan,
gable-roofed frame dwelling with Colonial Revival details; attached garage. c1940.
Landscape: House is at end of a long drive lined by an abandoned orchard and
fenced in.

Historic note: This house was once a wing of 1635 County Highway 33, built for
Robert Sterling Clark.

Built c1915. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable frame dwelling with shingle detail in
gable end; clapboard first level; enclosed porch set under extended gable roof on
south side; later attached garage on north side.

Barn: Frontal gable hay barn converted to shop, ¢1900.

Built ¢1850. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with pedimented window frames and "gothic" gable; offset entrance; later
remodeling.

Built ¢1975. Split-level brick dwelling with garage under one part. N/C

Built c1850. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling
with partial returns; non-historic ell at rear; aluminum siding.

Built c1850. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, center entrance, rectangular plan,
gable-roofed, frame dwelling with non-historic attached garage; replacement sash;
aluminum siding.

Built ¢1850. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, center entrance, rectangular frame,
gable-roofed dwelling with two ells, one non-historic, at rear; full front porch (1910)
supported by Tuscan columns; replacement sash and siding.

Barn: Frame horse and hay barn, c1900.

One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame dwelling, apparently built
1850, with much early twentieth century alteration, including extension of front
roof face to enclose porch; sash replaced.

Garage: Frame three-bay with two older paired doors, c1930.

Built c1900. Single-story, frame dwelling with gable roof extended on north side to
enclose shop area.

Built ¢1900. Two-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, hip-roofed frame dwelling with
novelty siding and entrance porch supported by square columns and non-historic
attached garage.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing



United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places

Continuation Sheet

Section 7 Page 140

OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form

Glimmerglass Historic District
Otsego County, New York

Annotated Property List

Town of Middlefield
243 Co Hwy 52 Built ¢1920. Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling on block foundation; paired
sash; non-historic porch spans front facade; attached non-historic garage.
LIPPITT DEVELOPMENT RD

Lippitt Development Road is the main route in the Lippitt Development, a subdivision at the south edge of
Hyde Bay. The area consists mostly of camp properties, though some are no longer seasonal.

137 Lippitt Dev Rd

138 Lippitt Dev Rd

140 Lippitt Dev Rd

142 Lippitt Dev Rd

146 Lippitt Dev Rd

149 Lippitt Dev Rd

151 Lippitt Dev Rd

158 Lippitt Dev Rd

159 Lippitt Dev Rd

160 Lippitt Dev Rd

161 Lippitt Dev Rd

Built c1965. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with vertical
board siding and wraparound deck. N/C

Built ¢1960. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with T-111 siding. N/C
Shed: Non-historic frame shed. N/C

Built ¢1970. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with vinyl siding. N/C

Built c1980. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with plywood siding. N/C
Pavilion: Frame, c1980. N/C

Built ¢1960. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with vinyl siding. N/C
Shed: Frame, non-historic, c1980. N/C

Built ¢1970. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with wraparound deck
and cobblestone chimney. N/C

Built c1960. Single-story, frame dwelling made up of two rectangular blocks; vinyl
siding. N/C

Built ¢1960. Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with vinyl siding. N/C
Shed: Frame, non-historic. N/C

Built ¢1980. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with
clapboard siding. N/C

Built ¢1960. Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with vinyl siding. N/C

Built c1980. Two-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with clapboard siding. N/C
Garage: Frame, non-historic, c1980. N/C

162 Lippitt Dev Rd Built c1950. Single-story, stucco-over-cinderblock dwelling with metal casement
windows and low gable roof. N/C

164 Lippitt Dev Rd Built ¢1950. Single-story cinderblock dwelling with metal casement windows and
enclosed deck, ¢1980. N/C
Garage: Frame, non-historic. N/C

* Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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Town of Middlefield

167 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built ¢1960. Single-story, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with novelty siding. N/C
Shed: Frame, non-historic, ¢c1970. N/C

172 Lippitt DevRd  Built c1970. Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with wraparound deck and
vinyl siding. N/C

173 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1960. Single-story, frame camp with block chimney and enclosed porch
porch set under extended gable roof on lake side. N/C

176 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1960. Single-story, frame dwelling with low gable roof and porch with
exposed rafter ends on lake side; vinyl siding. N/C

177 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1950. Single-story, T-plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with novelty siding
and deck wrapping lake side. N/C
Shed: Frame, non-historic, c1970. N/C

178 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1960. Single-story, frame dwelling with low gable roof with later deck and

181 Lippitt Dev Rd

vinyl siding. N/C

Built ¢1940. One-and-a-half-story, frame camp on banked foundation with flared
gable on lake side with porch set underneath; aluminum siding.

185 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1960. Single-story, shed-roofed, block dwelling with brick chimney. N/C
187 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1960. Single-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling timber frame detailing. N/C
189 Lippitt DevRd  Built c1960. A-frame camp with shingles and false stone facing; decorative

191 Lippitt Dev Rd

eaveboards. N/C

Built c1960. Single-story, gable-roofed, frame camp. N/C

195 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1950. Single-story, block camp with metal casement windows. N/C
197 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1965. Single-story, gable-roofed frame camp with fieldstone chimney. N/C
Picnic house: Frame, screened-in picnic house, c1980. N/C
Garage: Frame, novelty-sided, non-historic, c1980. N/C
205 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1960. Small, single-story, frontal gable frame dwelling. N/C
207 Lippitt Dev Rd  Non-historic trailer home with gable-roofed frame over it. ¢1960. N/C
Studio: Frontal gable frame studio on piers on slope above, c1960. N/C
209 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1960. Non-historic trailer with gable-roofed frame over it. N/C
Shed: Frame, shed-roofed. N/C
Garage: Frame, two-bay. N/C
219 Lippitt Dev Rd  Built c1980. Single-story, log cabin. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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MEMORY LN

Town of Middlefield

Memory Lane is a post-World War II camp property subdivision on the east side of Otsego Lake south of

Hyde Bay.

102 Memory Ln Built ¢1960. Single-story, gable-roofed, rectangular plan dwelling. N/C

104 Memory Ln Built ¢1945. Single-story, frame camp with T-111 siding and deck facing lake.

108 Memory Ln Built ¢1945. One-and-a-half-story, gable-roofed frame camp with shed-roofed back

112 Memory Ln

120 Memory Ln

PEGGS BAY

ell and large enclosed porch on lake side; vinyl siding.
Built ¢1945. Single-story, with irregular roofline and vinyl siding.

Built ¢1970. Single-story, frame camp with wood shingle siding and gable roof
extended over porch on lake side. N/C

Peggs Bay is mainly a post-World War II camp property subdivision on the east side of Otsego Lake south of

Hyde Bay.

112 Peggs Bay Built ¢1975. Two-story, gable-roofed, frame camp. N/C

114 Peggs Bay Built ¢1960. Single-story, frame camp with shed-roofed dormer on back side;
clapboard siding. N/C
Boathouse: Non-historic frame. N/C

118 Peggs Bay Built ¢1965. Two-story frame camp with extended gable-roof; board-and-batten
siding. N/C

122 Peggs Bay Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story frame camp with clerestory above shed roofs. N/C
Shed: Non-historic frame, c1960. N/C

128 Peggs Bay Built ¢1970. One-and-a-half-story, frame camp with irregular roof, wood shingles,
and deck. N/C
Shed: Non-historic frame, c1970. N/C

132 Peggs Bay Built ¢1965. Single-story, frame camp with aluminum siding. N/C

138 Peggs Bay Built c1965. Single-story frame camp with clerestory loft; novelty siding. N/C

142 Peggs Bay Built c1935. Single-story, frontal gable frame camp with porch on lake side.

144 Peggs Bay Built ¢1965. Single-story, frame, shed-roofed camp on banked foundation. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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148 Peggs Bay

152 Peggs Bay

154 Peggs Bay
156 Peggs Bay

158 Peggs Bay

160 Peggs Bay

162 Peggs Bay

PREVOST PL

Town of Middlefield

Built ¢1960. Single-story, frame camp made of two rectangular blocks; wood shingle
siding and cobblestone chimney. N/C

Built ¢1965. Single-story, shed-roofed, frame camp with board-and-batten siding.
N/C
Shed: Frame, c1980. N/C

Built c1965. Single-story, frame camp. N/C

Built ¢1950. Single-story, gable-roofed, frame camp made of two rectangular blocks
with clapboard siding. N/C
Bunkhouse: Frame, ¢1970. N/C

Built ¢1960. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable frame camp with shingle siding;
deck on lakeside. N/C

Built ¢1950. Single-story, frame camp on piers sided with plywood secured with
battens. N/C
Shed: Frame, c1970. N/C

Built ¢1950. Single-story, frame camp sided with plywood secured with battens. N/C
Bunkhouse: Frame, c1960. N/C

Prevost Place is mainly a post-World War II camp property subdivision on the east side of Otsego Lake

south of Hyde Bay.

102 Prevost Pl Built ¢1960. Non-historic house trailer with frame addition. N/C

114 Prevost Pl Built ¢1980. Two-story, frame dwelling with overhanging upper level; vertical board
siding. N/C

116 Prevost Pl Built ¢1990. Single-story, frame dwelling with dormer windows. N/C

VAN YAHRES RD

211 Van Yahres Rd  Built 1985. Two-story frame dwelling. N/C

212 Van Yahres Rd  Built 1989. Two-story frame dwelling. N/C

246 Van Yahres Rd  Built c1980. Trailer home. N/C

257 Van Yahres Rd  Built c1980. Single-story, frame dwelling. N/C

. Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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265 Van Yahres Rd  Built ¢1980. Trailer home. N/C
276 Van Yahres Rd  Built ¢1990. One-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling. N/C

279 Van Yahres Rd Built ¢1970. Single-story, frame dwelling. N/C
Workshop: Single-story, non-historic frame, ¢1970. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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This list uses the 911 addressing system implemented in Otsego County in 1999.
BADGER LN

Badger Lane is part the resort development north of Hickory Grove, or Six-Mile Point, and straddles the
Otsego-Springfield town line. It is named for Bob Seaver's column in 7he Freeman's Journal signed by The
Badger.

102 Badger Ln Built ¢1940. One-and-a-half-story, gable-roofed, frame camp.

103 Badger Ln Built ¢1940. Single-story, two-unit, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame camp with
novelty-sided porch on lakeside facade and side walls.

104 Badger Ln Built ¢1915. Single-story, pyramidal-roofed, frame camp with novelty siding and
two-over-two sash in Italianate window frames.
Shed: Frame with matching window frames and novelty siding, c1915.

106 Badger Ln Built ¢1980. Single-story, modular house. N/C
Boathouse: Non-historic frame. N/C

108 Badger Ln Built ¢1950. Single-story, frame camp with novelty siding and screened porch on
lake side.

109 Badger Ln Built ¢1940. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame camp with screened porch

spanning lake side; exposed rafter ends; eight-light windows; novelty siding.
Garage: Non-historic frame with T-111 siding. N/C

110 Badger Ln Built ¢1930. One-and-a-half-story, frame camp with flared gable roof with raised
shed-roof dormer; clapboards; six-over-six sash and six-light casements; porch
spanning lake side.

114 Badger Ln Built c1915. Two-story, hip-roofed frame camp with clapboards; paired six-light
casements.
116 Badger Ln Built ¢1900. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame camp with novelty

siding; paired six-light casements.
Garage: Two-bay, frame with novelty-siding, c1940.
BROWDY MT RD
Browdy Mountain Road is recent access road to a non-historic subdivision.
104 Browdy Mt Rd Built ¢1990. Single-story, frame dwelling with mansard roof and T-111 siding. N/C

111 Browdy Mt Rd  Built c1990. Two-story, rectangular frame dwelling with gable roof and T-111 siding.
N/C

" Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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114 Browdy Mt Rd

127 Browdy Mt Rd

141 Browdy Mt Rd

144 Browdy Mt Rd

156 Browdy Mt Rd

162 Browdy Mt Rd

164 Browdy Mt Rd

165 Browdy Mt Rd

Town of Otsego

Built ¢1990. Two-story, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with clapboard siding. N/C

Built ¢1995. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with vinyl
siding and attached garage. N/C

Built ¢1990. Two-story, frame dwelling with uneven gable roof and horizontal wood
siding. N/C

Built c1990. One-and-a-half-story, pyramidal-roofed, frame dwelling with exposed
rafter ends; banked foundation. N/C

Built ¢1990. Single-story, frame dwelling with raised gable-roofed portion and
attached garage; clapboards. N/C

Built ¢1990. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with board-
and-batten siding. N/C

Built ¢1990. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with clapboard siding.
N/C

Built ¢1985. One-story, ranch style, frame house with arcaded porch spanning front
and attached garage. N/C

GLIMMERGLASS CONDOMINIUMS

This cul-de-sac townhouse development was built in the 1980s. It is accessed by privately maintained roads:
Press Booth Circle, Box Seat Lane, and Lakefront Terrace. It consists of three rows of frame townhouses
with unfinished wood siding.

1-8 Box Seat Ln

1-12 Press Booth Cir

1-4 Lakefront Ter

GLIMMERGLEN RD

173 Glimmerglen Rd

235 Glimmerglen Rd

Two four-unit condominium buildings. N/C

Three four-unit condominium buildings. N/C
Single-story frame maintenance building. N/C

One four-unit condominium building. N/C

Built c1840. Two-story, three-bay, frontal gable frame dwelling with cross-gabled
wing; full returns on main block; replacement sash and siding.
Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame. N/C

Built ¢1980. Single-story, ranch style frame and stone dwelling. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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285 Glimmerglen Rd  Built c1870. Two-story, three-bay, square plan, frame dwelling with altered roofline
and several back additions.
Barn: Three-bay English barn, built c1850, converted to dwelling, c1970.
GLIMMER HILL LN

Glimmer Hill Lane is a recently built access road to a non-historic subdivision.

102 Glimmer Hill Ln  Built c1990. One-and-a-half-story shingled frame dwelling with garage underneath.
N/C

112 Glimmer Hill Ln Built ¢1990. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with extended
back roof. N/C

167 Glimmer Hill Ln  Built c1990. Two-story, gable-roofed frame dwelling with attached garage. N/C

168 Glimmer Hill Ln Built ¢1990. Two-story, frame dwelling with attached garage and deck wrapping
two sides. N/C

LAKE SHORE RD

Lake Shore Road accesses several historic camps south of Hickory Grove, or Six-Mile Point.

101 Lake Shore Rd  Built ¢1980. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with vertical
board siding. N/C

102 Lake Shore Rd  Built c1925. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan frame camp with hip-on-gable
roof; shed-roofed dormers; novelty siding; variety of sash including old two-over-
two and replacements.

104 Lake Shore Rd  Built ¢1930. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame camp with novelty
siding and exposed gable ends; porch wraps lake facade and sides.

106 Lake Shore Rd  Built ¢1930. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame camp with
clapboard siding; porch on lake facade and sides; six-over-six sash.
Guesthouse: Non-historic, gable-roofed, frame, c1980. N/C

107 Lake Shore Rd  Built ¢1920. Single-story, hip-roofed, frame camp with enclosed porch on piers on
lake side; completely remodeled. N/C

108 Lake Shore Rd Built ¢1930. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame camp with porch on lake facade
and sides; paired six-over-six sash; clapboard siding.

109 Lake Shore Rd  Built c1970. Two-story, frontal gable, frame camp with porch on lake side. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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110 Lake Shore Rd

112 Lake Shore Rd

116 Lake Shore Rd

Town of Otsego
Built ¢1925. Two-story, pyramidal-roofed frame camp with exposed rafter ends;
porch on lake side; paired casements; non-historic shutters and vinyl siding.

Built ¢1940. Single-story, frontal gable frame dwelling with asbestos shingles; sash
replaced except for one-over-one in lakeside porch; new block foundation. N/C

Built ¢1990. Single-story, frame dwelling with vinyl siding and attached garage. N/C

New York State Route 28 (NY 28)

5378 NY 28 Name: Cooperstown Optical
Built ¢1970. Single-story brick commercial building with mansard roof. N/C

5386 NY 28 Name: Wilber National Bank
Built c1850. Two-story, five-bay, hip-roofed brick dwelling with Italianate cornice
and brackets at roofline. Altered 1870; reused as a bank, ¢1990, with addition of
non-historic drive-through window on south side.

5388 NY 28 Name: First Community Care of Bassett
Built ¢1960. Single-story, steel frame commercial building with concrete block rear
addition. N/C

5390 NY 28 Name: Haggerty Ace Hardware
Built 1994. Single-story, frame commercial building.

Warehouse: Single-story, cinderblock, c1998.

5396 NY 28 Name: Church and Scott Pharmacy
Built ¢1930. Single-story, concrete block commercial building with stepped parapet;
center entrance framed by vitrine windows.

5410 NY 28 Built ¢1940. One-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling with steep gable roof; two gable-
roofed dormers in front roof face; center entrance; six-over-one sash, paired in front
facade.

5417 NY 28 Built c1880. Two-story, cross-gabled, frame dwelling with clapboards; two-over-two
sash.

5418 NY 28 Name: Peppermill Restaurant
Built c1960. Single-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with T-111 siding.

5429 NY 28 One-and-a-half-story, frame dwelling with "gothic" gable; sash and siding replaced.
Historic, but date uncertain. N/C

5430 NY 28 Name: Kirn's Autobody
Built ¢1970. Pole barn with corrugated metal siding. N/C

” Previously listed resource

N/C  Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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5435 NY 28

5436 NY 28

5438 NY 28

5439 NY 28

PARSHALLRD

Town of Otsego

Built ¢1900. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with porch spanning front
facade; raking cornice; one-over-one sash.
Garage: Two-bay frame, ¢1940.

Name: Arnold's Drive-In
Built ¢1997. Single-story frame commercial building with vinyl siding. N/C

Name: Mang Insurance/Leatherstocking Group
Built ¢1970. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame commercial building.
N/C

Built ¢1970. Non-historic frame modular dwelling. N/C

Parshall Road is an access road for a non-historic subdivision.

119 Parshall Rd Built ¢1970. Single-story, frame ranch style dwelling with fieldstone elements. N/C
125 Parshall Rd Built ¢1970. Two-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-level deck on lake
side. N/C
Garage: Frame; matches house, connected by raised walkway. N/C
PIERSTOWN RD (CO HWY 28)

Pierstown Road is the oldest route running northwest away from Cooperstown to the Mohawk Valley. A
thriving mill and farm community clustered along its course during the first half of the nineteenth century,
but many the commercial and industrial buildings related to that development are now gone, leaving a
strongly agricultural appearance today.

148 Pierstown Rd Historic name: Leatherstocking Farm
Built 1890. Two-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with shingled
upper story and steeply pitched roof and variety of period sash; large fieldstone
chimney on south end. Built in two phases, first in 1890s; second in 1930s; second
phase designed by Frank P. Whiting.
Barn: Gable-roofed frame dairy barn, c1890.
Shed: Single-story, frame, gable-roofed, c1900.
Shed: Small single-story frame, c1900.
Landscape: The access road crosses Leatherstocking Falls, a popular picnic
destination for nineteenth-century visitors. Open land, including an orchard,
surrounds the house and barn.
Historic note: Leatherstocking Farm was first developed as a summer estate in the
1890s by the Guy family of St. Louis. Its name came from Cooper's Leatherstocking
Tales.

* Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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152 Pierstown Rd

159 Pierstown Rd

191 Pierstown Rd

Cemetery

198 Pierstown Rd

203 Pierstown Rd

209 Pierstown Rd

221 Pierstown Rd

240 Pierstown Rd

241 Pierstown Rd

Town of Otsego

Built ¢1840. Temple form, frame, Greek Revival style dwelling with two-story, three-
bay center block flanked by one-and-a-half-story, two-bay wings; veranda
supported by square Doric columns spans main block; six-over-six sash.

Garage: Single-bay, frontal gable, novelty-sided frame, ¢1930.

Historic name: Fairview (1868 atlas)

Built ¢1860. Two-story, five-bay, square plan, frame Italianate dwelling with low
pyramidal roof supported by brackets in a deep frieze; Victorian fretwork porch
spans front.

Barn: Gable-roofed, frame basement barn with gable extended on one side. c1900.
(House moved to a new location outside the district in 1998)

Large community cemetery for Pierstown set on hill southeast of barn at 191
Pierstown Road enclosed by stone wall. Markers date from the early 1800s through
the Civil War period.

Built ¢1850. Single-story, rectangular plan, frame schoolhouse reused as a dwelling.
Built ¢1860. Single-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame dwelling.
Built ¢1970. Non-historic trailer home. N/C

Built ¢1885. Two-and-a-half-story, cross-gabled frame dwelling with slate roof;
single-story, three-bay window on front facade; two-over-two sash; porch with
spindle detail wraps front and side of building.

Barn: Gable-roofed frame basement barn with board-and-batten siding, c1860.
Shed: Frame, gable-roofed, c1900.

Name: Gray Goose Farm

Built ¢1875. Two-and-a-half-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame
dwelling with bracketed Victorian porches over front and side entrances; arched
window with keystone detail in "gothic" gable in front roof face.

Sheds: Three small frame sheds. Dates uncertain.

Built ¢1835. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame
dwelling with single-story, four-bay wing; Egyptian Revival taste center entrance
doorframe; friezeband windows in main block.

Garage: Frame, non-historic. N/C

265 Pierstown Rd Built ¢1960. Non-historic single-story modular house. N/C

276 Pierstown Rd Built ¢1900. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling with two-story,
rectangular plan addition; single-story, bracketed porch in corner made by addition;
one-over-one and two-over-two sash; single-story woodshed at rear.

y Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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287 Pierstown Rd

316 Pierstown Rd

328 Pierstown Rd

592 Pierstown Rd

642 Pierstown Rd

656 Pierstown Rd

660 Pierstown Rd

692 Pierstown Rd

745 Pierstown Rd

Town of Otsego

Built c1820. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed brick dwelling with
non-historic shed-roofed frame addition to back wall; internal end chimneys; full
returns and deep frieze; three-bay portico spans center front.

Barn: Frontal gable frame dairy barn with vertical siding and partial returns, c1900.
Garage: Non-historic shed-roofed. N/C

Name: Thistlebrook Farm

Built ¢1880. Rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dairy barn converted to dwelling
¢1980.

Garage: Five-bay pole barn used as garage. N/C

Built c1880. Two-story, T-plan, frame dwelling with cross-gabled roof. Heavily
renovated with non-historic materials. N/C

Historic name: Cliffside Farm (1868 Atlas)

Built ¢1840. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed dwelling
with Greek Revival door frame; single-story wing on southeast end; nine-over-six
sash.

Non-historic frame dwelling. N/C

Built c1940. Single-story, L-plan, stone dwelling with varied roofline.

Garage: Frame with novelty siding and exposed rafter ends and dormer windows,
€1925.

Pavilion: Rustic style picnic pavilion. N/C

Landscape: House sited to take in view of north end of Otsego Lake.

Built ¢1915. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, bungalow style camp with shed-roofed
dormers and porch spanning side with view of north end of the lake; wing and
garage on one side.

Historic note: This camp property was developed on land purchased from the
Wedderspoon family. The house takes advantage of its site by taking in the view of
Mt. Wellington and the north end of Otsego Lake.

Built ¢1840. One-and-a-half-story, three-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with
variety of later additions to create an irregular plan with added dormer windows.
Barn: Gable-roofed, frame, dairy barn, built ¢1880, converted to apartments, ¢1990.
Hophouse: Frame hophouse converted to apartments ¢1990, built c1880.
Guesthouse: Single-story, three-bay, frame house overlooking lake, c1930.
Landscape: This old farm property with a sweeping view of the north end of
Otsego Lake has been redeveloped, but retains considerable open land
characteristic of an nineteenth-century agricultural property.

Non-historic trailer, ¢1970. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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759 Pierstown Rd

792 Pierstown Rd

907 Pierstown Rd

917 Pierstown Rd

PINE RIDGE RD

Town of Otsego

Built c1830. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame
dwelling with two-story back ell added later; wood shingle siding postdates
building.

Smokehouse: Gable-roofed stone smokehouse near main house. ¢1830.

Dairy barn: Gable-roofed, two-level, frame bank barn, c1880, with early twentieth
century frame addition and two silos.

Vehicle shed: Mid-twentieth century frame vehicle shed.

Vehicle shed: Non-historic pole barn used as a vehicle shed, c1980. N/C

Old house: Frame dwelling. c1850, reused as a storage building. In poor condition.
Historic note: This property spans Pierstown Road with its buildings clustered
mainly on the non-lake side and much of its open agricultural land across the way.
The property continues as a working farm, one of a handful in the town of Otsego.

Built ¢1930. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with an irregular
roofline with enclosed front porch; some sash replaced.
Garage: Frame, novelty-sided, c1930.

Built ¢1980. One-story chalet style camp on block basement. N/C

Built ¢1950. Single-story, frame dwelling with wood shingle siding. N/C

Pine Ridge Road is an access road to a non-historic subdivision on the west side of West Lake Road (NY 80).

110 Pine Ridge Rd Built ¢1990. One-story, frontal gable, frame dwelling consisting of two rectangular
plan blocks. N/C
124 Pine Ridge Rd Built ¢1980. Single-story, frame dwelling with board-and-batten siding. N/C
130 Pine Ridge Rd Built ¢1990. Non-historic single-story, modular house. N/C
Shed: Gable-roofed frame, c1990. N/C
138 Pine Ridge Rd Built ¢1970. Two-story, frame dwelling with overhanging upper level and single-
story wing; vinyl siding. N/C
Shed: Non-historic frame, ¢1980. N/C
RED HOUSE ROAD
134 Red House Rd Non-historic frame dwelling, c1970. N/C
Garage: Non-historic, two-bay, frame, c1970. N/C
Shop: Gable-roofed, frame, ¢1970. N/C
Milkhouse: Single-story, frontal gable, novelty-sided, ¢1925.
* Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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Red House Rd Van Horn family cemetery. Small family cemetery on east side of road, now

completely hidden by trees. Used ¢1825-1880.

250 Red House Rd Built ¢1860. Large, highly developed frame Italianate dwelling with bracketed
roofline; veranda overlooking lake; two-over-two sash.
Barn: Two-level, gable-roofed, frame dairy barn with horizontal siding and gable-
roofed ventilator, c1880.

260 Red House Rd Single-story, gable-roofed, rectangular plan, frame camp, c1945.

REISS RD

Reiss Road is an access road to a non-historic subdivision off of Pierstown Road (Co Hwy 28).

152 Reiss Rd Built ¢1995. Two-story, five-bay, rectangular plan frame dwelling with overhanging
upper story; attached kitchen wing and garage. N/C
Shed: Single-story, gable-roofed frame, c1995. N/C

153 Reiss Rd Built ¢1995. Two-story frame dwelling with irregular plan and roof; variety of
windows; attached garage. N/C

STOCKING BROOK RD

Stocking Brook Road is an access road to a non-historic subdivision off of Pierstown Road (Co Hwy 28).

132 Stocking Brook Rd Built ¢1980. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, gable-roofed, rectangular plan,

frame dwelling. N/C
Shed: Large frame shed built to resemble gable-roofed basement barn.

¢1980. N/C

166 Stocking Brook Rd Built ¢1990. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling. N/C
Garage: Frame, two-bay, with extended back roof, ¢1990. N/C

171 Stocking Brook Rd Built ¢1980. Single-story, chalet style frame dwelling. N/C

190 Stocking Brook Rd Built ¢1980. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame

dwelling flanked by lower wings. N/C

WEDDERSPOON HOLLOW RD

101 Wedderspoon Hiw Rd Built ¢1970. Single-story frame modular dwelling with frame addition. N/C
Barns: Two non-historic pole barns with corrugated siding, c1980. N/C

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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107 Wedderspoon Hlw Rd

117 Wedderspoon Hiw Rd

127 Wedderspoon Hiw Rd

245 Wedderspoon Hiw Rd

248 Wedderspoon Hiw Rd

281 Wedderspoon Hlw Rd

b Previously listed resource

Town of Otsego

Built ¢1890. Two-story, frame dwelling with frontal gable main block, cross-
gabled wing, and lower back ell; porch with square columns and simple
braces spans front of main block and wing; two-over-two sash.

Barn: Single-level, rectangular plan, frame with vertical board siding; added
wings on gable and long walls; pedimented window frames, c1880.

Built c1860. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame
dwelling with three dormer windows (c1940) in front roof face; glazed
porch spans front facade; shed-roofed, two-bay garage attached on north
side; asphalt shingle siding.

Shed: Single-story, frame, aluminum siding, ¢1900.

Historic name: Pierstown Grange

Single-story, frontal gable, frame building with steeply pitched roof; raking
cornice; high stone basement foundation; center entrance; porch spans
front facade.

Historic note: The Pierstown Grange preserves an intact late Victorian
interior.

Built ¢1810. Dwelling made of three blocks added at different eras: all one-
and-a-half-story, gable-roofed rectangular plan, frame; oldest has late
Federal doorframe; one has partial returns. One barn attached to the back
of the house.

Barn: Small, frame, novelty-sided, ¢1900.

Barn: Frame dairy barn, c1880.

Single-story, gable-roofed, frame camp with roof extended over glazed
porch, c1940.

Built c1870. Two-story, L-plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling with deep,
bracketed frieze; two-over-two sash; scrolled bracket entrance porch; back
ell is the older rectangular plan, frame dwelling reused as workers quarters.
Barn: Two-level bank barn with novelty siding and added wing, c1900.
Barn: Two-level bank barn with vertical siding and frame roof ventilator,
¢1880.

Chicken house: Small, frame, novelty-sided, ¢1920.

Shed: Gable-roofed, novelty-sided, small ventilator, ¢1920. Dilapidated.

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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WEST LAKE RD (NY 80)

West Lake Road (New York State Route 80) combines the routes of older roads in one lakeside route going
north from Cooperstown to the Mohawk Valley. In the mid-nineteenth century it was designated a plank
road running from Cooperstown to Fort Plain, where there was a railroad station. The northern portion of
this road, laid out in 1847, was a popular driving road for summer visitors throughout the nineteenth

century.

5785 NY 80

Historic names: Fenimore Farm (c1800-1939); The Farmers' Museum (1939-present)
Main barn: Large stone barn with paired stone siloes at north end; gambrel-roofed
mows over two wings; twelve-over-twelve sash with paneled shutters. Built 1918;
architect Frank P. Whiting, 1917. Now used as exhibit space for museum. (NR listed;
Village of Cooperstown Historic District boundary expansion)
Herder's Cottage: One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, stone dwelling with flared gambrel
roof, dormer windows, and porch spanning front and frame wing at north end.
Built 1918; Architect: Frank P. Whiting, 1917. Now used as a snack and gift shop.
(NR listed; addendum Village of Cooperstown district)
Creamery: One-and-a-half-story, stone creamery with flared gambrel roof and
porches set in northeast and southeast corners; now used as office space for the
museum. Architect: Frank P. Whiting, 1917. (NR listed; addendum Village of
Cooperstown district)
Museum buildings:
Church: Frontal gable, frame church with square tower and square-topped
window frames. Moved in 1962 from Cornwallville, New York. Built c¢1820.
Farmhouse: One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, rectangular plan, frame dwelling
with extended back roof, c1800. Moved in 1952 from Hinman Hollow,
Hartwick, New York.
Hop house: Gable-roofed frame hop house, c1855. Moved in 1998 from
Burlington Flats, New York.
Frame barn: Three-bay, frame English barn, c1803. Moved in 1998 from
Laurens, New York.
Sheep shed:
Log barn: Log-construction barn sheathed with board siding, c1795. Moved
in 1952 from New Berlin, New York.
Lawyer's office: Single-story, frontal gable, frame office building, c1830.
Reputedly used by Samuel Nelson as an office during period when he
owned the Fenimore Farm property.
Doctor's office: Single-story, frontal gable frame office building. Moved in
1950.
Druggist's shop: Single-story, square plan brick shop building with frieze
band windows and wooden grilles, c1845. Moved in 1952 from Hartwick,
New York.
Print shop: Two-story, three-bay, stone shop building with center entrance
and cut stone lintel and sill block, c1840. Moved in 1951 from XXX, NY.
Blacksmith shop: One-and-a-half-story, frontal gambrel, stone shop building
with center entrance and twelve-over-twelve sash, c1825. Moved in 1944
from New Berlin, New York.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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General store: Two-story, frontal gable, stone building with raised center
entrance and pent roof, c1807. Moved in 1944 from Toddsville, New York.
Schoolhouse: Single-story, frontal gable, stone schoolhouse with twelve-
over-twelve sash, c1825. Moved in 1945 from Filer's Corners, Morris, New
York.
Carriage shed: Four-bay, single-story, frame carriage shed with arched
openings and keystone detail, c1830. Moved in 1957 from Clinton, NY.
Tavern: Two-story, five-bay, frame tavern with porch supported by reeded
Ionic columns, added ¢1840; two-story back kitchen ell with entrance
porch. ¢1810. Moved in 1955 from Greene County, New York.
Outhouses: Two frame outhouses.
Landscape: The Farmers' Museum property is set at the base of the ridge on the
west side of Otsego Lake. Grassy areas separate the museum buildings, which face
onto a board sidewalk and a narrow dirt street. A steep hill rises behind the
museum village. On the top is a pond, known both as Artificial Lake and Moe
Pond, which once provided water to Fenimore Farm.
Historic note: Used as a farm for many years, the land was resculpted as a museum
of rural life beginning in 1944. The area south of the stone buildings from
Fenimore Farm was turned into the Village Crossroads, meant to resemble an
upstate village of the pre-industrial era. Unusual rather than typical buildings
tended to be chosen for the model village, and these were placed according to
historicist ideas of the 1940s and 1950s. Before this period, the property was
farmland. In the early 1810s, James Fenimore Cooper owned it and named the hill
rising behind the property Mount Ovis for his sheep raising activity. Judge Samuel
Nelson owned the property from 1829 until his death. Edward Clark bought the
property in 1874. Alfred Corning Clark, Edward's heir, predeceased his father, and
Edward Severin Clark (Edward's grandson) inherited the property.

Previously listed resource

N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing



United States Department of the Interior OMB No. 1024-0018, NPS Form

National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Glimmerglass Historic District

Continuation Sheet

Section 7 Page 157

Otsego County, New York

Annotated Property List

5798 NY 80

5838 NY 80

5900 NY 80

Town of Otsego

Historic name: Fenimore House

Name: Fenimore Art Museum; New York State Historical Association

Fenimore House: Two-and-a-half-story, X-bay, stone dwelling with single-story
porches at each end; large stone chimneys; XXX. A large underground area opens
onto sloping area at back of building. Now used as a museum and office building.
Architect: Harry Zogbaum, 1932. (NR listed; Cooperstown Historic District)

The White House: Two-and-a-half-story, five-bay, gambrel-roofed house with porch
supported by Tuscan columns spanning front facade. c1885. (5816 NY 80; NR listed;
Village of Cooperstown)

Icehouse: Frontal gable, frame ice house with clapboard siding and wood trim.
c1870.

Library: Non-historic stone library with hipped roof. Built 1969. (5808 NY 80; NR
listed; N/C; Village of Cooperstown)

Landscape: A large circular drive lined by large trees leads up to Fenimore House.
An allee of maple trees marks the south line of the land surrounding the house.
The back lawn descends to Otsego Lake. The landscape includes also the
refurbished cupola from Bassett Hospital, originally from the cotton spinning mill at
the hamlet on Phoenix Mills on the Susquehanna River, now on a deck overlooking
Otsego Lake, and a replica of an Iroquois fishing shack, which is reconstructed
annually.

Historic note: Fenimore House was built by Edward Severin Clark as a summer
home on the site of the Federal-period cottage Fenimore that was used by James
Fenimore Cooper in the early 1800s. The property was later owned by Samuel
Nelson before it was bought by the Clark family.

Name: Biological Field Station/Cooperstown Graduate Program for Museum
Studies/State University College at Oneonta

Built ¢1980. Single-story, gable-roofed, rectangular plan, frame building on banked
basement. N/C

Built c1885. Stone barn foundation with flat roof used as a storage building. N/C
Historic note: One of the Stick style barns of Edward Severin Clark's model dairy
farm Fenimore Farm. The barn was demolished in the mid-1900s.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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5911 NY 80

5931 NY 80

5934 NY 80

5937 NY 80

5943 NY 80

5949 NY 80

Town of Otsego

Historic name: Glimmerglen

Gatehouse: Single-story, rectangular plan, stone dwelling with Tudor Revival
detailing, ¢1890.

Boathouse: Two-story, rustic Stick style, frame building on the lake shore, c1890.
Garage: Frame with plastered panels and carved timbers on front facade. c1930.
Picnic pavilion: Thatch-roofed open pavilion on lakeshore, ¢1940.

Landscape: Property retains large orchard along drive entering the property. House
site is surrounded by stone garden walls, steps, and plots. A small portion of a
formal garden, possibly designed by Frederick dePeyster Townsend based on
similarities between it and garden at Townsend's own house Brookwood, survives
on the south side of the house site.

Historic note: Glimmerglen was a summer estate developed at the turn of the
century with a Tudor Revival dwelling built in 1884 by the Constable family. This
house burned in a gas explosion in 1887 and was replaced with a second mansion.
It was the summer estate of the Hyde family from 1919 to 1962. The Clark family
demolished it in 1966 after acquiring the property. The name comes from the
Leatherstocking Tales. The property later became a farm with a much larger
property on Johnston Rd.

Built ¢1900. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with wing on
north end; new sash and siding.
Carriage shed: Shingle style, gambrel-roofed, frame, c1890.

Built ¢1905. One-and-a-half-story, stucco-on-frame dwelling with cropped gable
ends and casement windows; half-timbered walls, slate roof; variety of windows.
Garage: Non-historic frame. N/C

Historic note: This Tudor Revival style house was the winter house of the
Glimmerglen property, but has since been sold away from the property.

Built c1870. Two-story, irregular plan frame dwelling composed of three square
blocks; bracketed cornice at roofline, paired at the corners; porch with millwork
brackets on southeast corner.

Carriage shed: Two-level, gable-roofed, frame, c1870.

Built ¢1870. Two-story, irregular plan, flat-roofed, frame dwelling made up of two
square blocks with two-story bay window in front facade; paired brackets and deep
cornice; two-over-two sash; porch set in L of two blocks.

Carriage shed: Two-level, gable-roofed, frame, c1870.

Built ¢1980. Two-story, three-bay, frame dwelling flanked by lower wings. c1980.
N/C
Garage: Three-bay frame. N/C

¥ Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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5959 NY 80 Built ¢1930. Two-story, two-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with

lower wing; partial returns and Neoclassical details; gable end toward road; two
additional wings to rear.

Barn: Two-level, gable-roofed frame with entrance bank on gable end, c1880.
Guesthouse: Single-story, frontal gable frame, c1960. N/C

5981 NY 80 Built c1890. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable, rectangular plan, frame schoolhouse
used as a dwelling; beadboard detail in pediment; six-over-six sash; shed-roofed
dormer.

5988 NY 80 Built c1960. Single-story, frame dwelling with unusual multi-faceted roof; fieldstone

chimney; vertical board siding. N/C

5992 NY 80 Name: Otsego Sailing Club
Shed-roofed frame pre-fabricated building, c1970. N/C

6000 NY 80 Historic name: Brookwood; Lake House (1868 Atlas)
Built 1800, substantially enlarged 1885. Two-story frame house built in several
phases (earliest portion built pre-1800); three rectangular plan blocks with variety of
Victorian porches on lake and south sides; gable-roofed except for south block,
with flat roof and bracketed cornice; mostly two-over-two sash.
Carriage barn: Single-story, rectangular plan frame carriage barn with "half-timbered"
detailing, c1900.
Garden: Garden in two levels looking south over Otsego Lake, with small fish
pond, extensive perennial borders, and stucco-on-frame Japanese tea house, c1913.
Designed by Frederick dePeyster Townsend.
Icehouse: Deteriorated, ¢1900.
Greenhouse: Greenhouse attached to dilapidated garden shed. ¢1910.
Historic note: The Brookwood property was first developed by Elihu Phinney in the
settlement period. It developed its current configuration in the 1880, when it was
owned by James B. Jermain, a Phinney descendant. His granddaughter Katherine
Jermain Townsend inherited the property, and she and her husband, Frederick
dePeyster Townsend, a landscape architect, added the carriage shed and the garden
on the south side of the point. The property extended west of NY 80 at this period
to include the Annex (6023 NY 80), which was a large dairy and hops farm. It
eventually also included the Leatherstocking Farm property (148 CR 28). Today, the
portion of the property on Brookwood Point is separate from the others.

6006 NY 80 Built 1885. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan, frame dwelling with back ell;
board-and-batten siding on first level; applied board with punched designs on
upper level suggestive of Gothic Revival.

Historic note: This cottage was part of the Brookwood property owned by the
Townsend family in the late 1800s and early 1900s. It stands near two earlier
sawmills on the creek that created Two-Mile or Brookwood Point. In 1868, the
house was owned by Tracy Kellogg.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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6008 NY 80 Built c1980. Two-story, rectangular plan, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with six-over-
six sash. N/C

6014 NY 80 Built ¢1980. One-and-a-half-story, rectangular plan frame dwelling with attached
shingled garage. N/C

6016 NY 80 Built c1980. Two-story, gable-roofed, frame dwelling with irregular fenestration. N/C

6023 NY 80 Historic name: The Annex; Locust Grove (1868 Atlas)

Frame dwelling built in two phases, now a two-family house: One-and-a-half-story,
five-bay, rectangular plan, gable-roofed dwelling (c1835) with two-story, two-bay
frontal gable addition on north side, with boxed gutters and Italianate detailing
(c1870); oldest portion raised to two stories ¢1900.

Dairy barn: Gable-roofed, frame barn, built first as a three-bay English barn with
added bays on north end and set on high banked foundation, ¢1870.

Hop house: Frame hop house, ¢1880, converted to artist's studio for Walter Frankl,
€1940.

Milk house: Two-story frame building (c1850) moved to current site and converted
to milk house, ¢1900.

Garage: Frame with paired doors, ¢1930.

Historic note: The Annex property was first divided from Tracy Kellogg's property
in the 1830s and the first dwelling was probably built there by Cyrus Thayer. He
and his descendants occupied the property until the early 1900s, when the
Townsends purchased the property. A view of the house and its prospect across
the lake to Kingfisher Tower were published in Hurd's History of Otsego County in

1878.
6050 NY 80 Built c1985. One-and-a-half-story, five-bay, frame dwelling. N/C
6056 NY 80 Historic name: Annsfield

Built ¢1930. One-and-a-half-story, irregular plan, stucco-over-frame dwelling with
Tudor Revival detailing.

Historic note: The Tudor Revival style house replaces earlier summer houses called
"Leatherstocking" and "Deerslayer" noted on the point in the 1903 Atlas. The Atlas
noted that it was a valuable property with cottages to rent owned by the Byard
family.

6088 NY 80 Name: Sam Smith's Boatyard
Built ¢1930. Two-story, five-bay frame dwelling with two-story, three-bay wing and
attached garage; clapboard siding; six-over-six sash; partial returns and other
Neoclassical details.
Boatyard buildings (6098 NY 80): Four large pole-barns with corrugated metal
siding for boat storage and repair, c1970-1980. N/C
Boathouse (6130 NY 80): One-and-a-half-story, frame building with berths in lower
level and living quarters above; extended gable roof and shingle siding; six-over-six
sash and Colonial Revival detailing. Architect: Harry Zogbaum, c1935.

: Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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6229 NY 80 Built ¢1980. One-and-a-half-story, frontal gable frame lodge with rustic railings on

both levels of porch spanning front facade. N/C

6235 NY 80 Two frame houses under construction, replacing older mansion, 1999. N/C
Greenhouse: Non-historic greenhouse. ¢1950. N/C
Barn (6249 NY 80): Three-level, gable-roofed, frame with entrance bank in gable
end; same height wing in long wall, c1900.
Landscape: A large open lawn spreads in front of house down to the road, allowing
a sweeping view of the lake from the house.
Historic note: This is part of the property assembled by the Busch family at the turn
of the century.

6266 NY 80 Historic names: Three-Mile Point; Signal Oak Point (Susan Fenimore Cooper, 1850)
Built ¢1995. Non-historic frame caretaker's cottage on banked foundation.
Historic note: Three-Mile Point, one of many small capes created by a creek's
outwash, was set aside by William Cooper for his own use in his plat of the land on
the west side of the lake. After his son, the novelist James Fenimore Cooper, left
the area in 1817, the property appears to have been used by local people as a
public picnic ground. The large oak trees, which gave the point its name of Signal
Oak Point, were damaged by the building of fires among their roots. When the
novelist returned to the area in the 1830s, he entered a lawsuit to reclaim the point
for his family's use, which he won. In 1899 most of the point was sold for a
nominal sum to the Village of Cooperstown as a recreational spot for its residents,
which use continues today.

* Previously listed resource
N/C Non-contributing resource; non-historic denotes post-1949; all other resources are contributing
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6273 NY 80

6287 NY 80

6429 NY 80

6434 NY 80

6439 NY 80

6453 NY 80

Town of Otsego

Historic name: Uncas Lodge

Built 1901. Two-story, irregular plan, frame dwelling with shingled upper level and
gable roofs; variety of windows including bay windows, six-over-one sash, and
latticed casements; porch supported by Tuscan columns spans front facade. Built for
Simon Uhlmann.

Boathouse (6274 NY 80): Shingle style, frame boathouse on north side of Three-Mile
Point, c1901.

Horse and carriage barn: Gambrel-roofed, Shingle style two-level horse and carriage
barn with four-over-four, nine-over-nine, and nine-over-one sash, c1895.

Barn: Rectangular plan, gable-roofed frame with gambrel-roofed, cross-gabled
entrance, ¢1910.

Barn: Two-level, hip-roofed basement barn with entrance in long wall; cupola
ventilators set at corners of hip roof, ¢1910.

Cottage: Hip-roofed, five-bay frame cottage (possibly made from service building)
on high concrete basement, ¢1920.

Landscape: Property is terraced with groupings of mature trees. The house is set on
a raised site and an open lawn stretches north from it.

Historic note: The Uncas Farm property, named for Cooper's Indian hero of The
Deerslayer, was bought by Simon Uhlmann, a New York City hops merchant, from
the Van Horne family about 1900, when Otsego County was still a prime hops
producing region. He built the elaborate Shingle style lodge as a summer home,
which he sold in 1903 to Augustus Busch, a St. Louis brewer. At one time, an
Italian style garden was laid out on the hillside above the lodge. Earlier, this was
the site of the Three-Mile House opened by A.W. Thayer in the 1850s. It wa